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Ciry or BURLINGTON

P.O. Box 1358 « 425 South Lexington Avenue
Burlington, North Carolina 27216-1358
Telephone (336) 222-5000 « Fax (336) 222-5019

October 13, 2012

The Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City
of Burlington, North Carolina:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Burlington,
North Carolina, for the year ended June 30, 2012, is submitted for your
review. This report was prepared by the City’'s Finance Department and it is
the comprehensive publication of the City’s financial position and results of
operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, for all funds and the

component unit of the City. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the
presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with c¢ity management. To provide a

reasonable basis for making these representations, we have established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the
government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the City of Burlington’s financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GARAP).
Because the costs of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the
City's comprehensive <framework of internal controls has been designed to
provide reasonable «rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we believe
the data, as presented, are accurate in all material respects and are reported
in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various funds and component unit of the City. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
City’'s financial activities have been included.

The City is required by North Carolina General Statutes Section 159-34
to have an annual independent audit. A compliance audit on federal and state
financial assistance programs is also required under the Federal Single Audit
Act of 1984 and the U. S. Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizaticns, and the

State Single Audit Implementation Act. The City of Burlington’s financial
statements have been audited by Stout, Stuart, McGowen & King, LLP, a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was

to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of
Burlington for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based wupon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an ungualified opinion that the City of
Burlington’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are
fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is

included in the financial section of this report. In addition, the auditor’s
report, reqguired as part of a single audit, is found in the Single Audit
Section of this report. This report focuses not only on the fair presentation

of the financial statements, but also on the City’s internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements involving the administration of state and
federal awards.

GAAP requires that management ©provide a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form
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of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
The City of Burlington’s MD&R can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditor.

CITY PROFILE

The City of Burlington, incorporated on February 14, 1893, is located in
the Piedmont Region of Central North Carolina along Interstate Highways 85/40.
The City is the largest municipality in Alamance County, with a land area of
31.92 sguare miles and a population of 50,587. The City is empowered by
statute to levy an annual ad valorem property tax on the appraised value of
all real and tangible property except manufacturers, retallers and wholesalers
inventory located therein. The City is also empowered by statute to extend
its corporate limits by annexation. Since January 1980, the City has annexed
14.78 square miles, which includes its most recent annexations of 0.007 square
miles. These annexations represent industrial and institutional properties.
The City generally annexes on a voluntary basis.

The City of Burlington operates under the council-manager form of
government. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in the City
Council, which consists of a mayor and four council members. The City Council
members are responsible for the government and general management of the City,
approve and amend all general and technical ordinances, including budgetary
appropriations and construction and zoning ordinances, approve all contracts,
and appoint the City Manager and City Attorney. Council members are elected
at large to four-year staggered terms, and the Mayor is elected to a two-year
term. The Mayor presides at all meetings of the City Council, and has the
right to vote upon all issues, but has nc additional vote in case of a tie and
no veto power.

The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and
ordinances of the Council and administering the daily operations and programs
of the City through appointed department heads and their staff members.

The City of Burlington provides a full range of services to its
citizens, including police and fire protection, construction and maintenance
of streets and other infrastructure, traffic control, recreational activities,
cultural events, and sanitation in the form of solid waste collection. The
City also owns and operates a cemetery and a golf course. In addition, the
City operates a water treatment and distribution system, a sewer treatment and
collection system, and a storm water fund.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Burlington’s
financial planning and control. The North Carolina General Statutes require
all governmental units to adopt a balanced budget by July 1 of each year for
all funds for which an annual budget is required. Activities of the General
Fund, Special Revenue Funds (except for Grant Project Funds), and Proprietary
Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. Project~length
financial plans are adopted for Grant and Capital Project Funds. The level of
budgetary control {(that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally
exceed the appropriated amount) is established by the department level within

the funds. Any increase or decrease in the original budget as adopted must be
approved by City Council. The City also malntains an encumbrance accounting
system as one technigue to accomplish budgetary control. Encumbered amounts
lapse at year end; however, outstanding encumbrances generally are re-
appropriated as part of the following year’s bDbudget. Budget~to—-actual
comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund
for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the General
Fund the budgetary comparison 1is presented in Exhibit 5, page 7, as part of
the Basic Financial Statements pertaining to the governmental funds. For

other governmental funds with annual and project-length budgets, detailed
budget to actual comparisons are presented in the supplementary information
subsection of this report, which starts on page 70.
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FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the ial statements 1s perhaps best
understood when it is considered from the b er perspective of the specific
L <

environment within which the City of Burlington, North Carolina operates.

Q.-

Local Economy

The City of Burlington’s economy has remained unchanged since the start
of the Great Recession in 2008. The City itself has continued the cost-saving
measures begun in the fall of 2008 to minimize the impact of the economy.
While there continues to be c¢losing of some small retail stores and
businesses, there have also been openings of small businesses in the recent
months. There have been no significant losses of businesses. The year ended
June 30, 2012, has seen an ever so slight decrease in the water and sewer
revenues. Unlike the prior years when there were longer periods of drought
situations offset by heavier than normal rain falls, this year did not see
such extreme weather conditions. The City’s largest employer, LabCorp,
completed and opened in January 2012, a $26 million addition to one of their
current buildings. This was done in order to consolidate services from outside
locations into Burlington. Burlington Regional Airport has completed the
first phase of a runway extension project, extending the runway to 6400 feet
that will allow larger jets to land. A second phase of adding 100 additicnal
feet to the runway length will allow the airport to accommodate practically

any size corporate alrcraft. The City is participating in this expansion
through its Economic Development Program. The airport is also the home of the
World Headquarters of Honda Aeroc. Honda BRero builds Jjet engines for Honda
aircraft as well as other aircraft. Honda Aero 1s currently building test
engines and is waiting for FAA certification for those engines. Once FARA
certification is received, phase II construction will begin. Honda 1is
investing over $65 million in the facility. Other new developments in the
area include Burlington Technologies which 1s expanding their facilities,
adding approximately 110 jobs. This company uses new patented technology such

as elastic nonwoven products as well as Nano Lab-on-a-chip technology
utilizing hand-held diagnostic devices. Glen Raven Mills, a key player in the
global economy is investing $10 million in a facility due to the high demand
for its patented Sunbrella fabrics. The reconfigured facility will be equipped
with the latest in automated yarn manufacturing systems and engineered to
support high levels of flexibility and customization. The Alamance Regional
Medical Facility has announced plans for a $60 million dollar expansion.
Included in the expansion is a state-of-the-art cancer center, an expanded
day surgery area, larger operating rooms, and an emergency department addition
that will double its current size. Tanger Outlet that 1is approximately 10
miles east outside of Burlington but in Alamance County. The Tanger Outlet is
a main contributor to the strong sales tax revenue for the City.



Shown below are the ten largest employers within the City of Burlington.

City of Burlington, North Carolina
Principal Employers
June 30, 2012

Approximate

Number of

Name of Employer Type of Business Employees
LabCorp, Inc. Medical supplies, services & facilities 3,500
Alamance-Burlington School System Public Education 3,329
Alamance Regional Medical Center Health Care 2,240
Walmart Stores, Inc. Retail Sales 1,000
City of Burlington Local Government 806
Kayser-Roth Corp Textiles 465
Kernodle Clinic, Inc. Health Care 325
American Multimedia, Inc. Wholesale media 250
ITG Textiles 250
Carolina Hosiery Mills, Inc. Textiles 240

Source: Alam Co Area Chamber of Commerce-228-1338 (www.alamancechamber.com)

Alamance County reached its peak unemployment in January 2010 as
evidenced in the following statistics. The average unemployment rate in
Alamance County for the eight months calendar-year-to-date is 9.7%, lower than
the State rate of 10.1%, bur higher than the national rate of 9.8% and 8.2%,
respectively. Despite these statistics, the City of Burlington ranked 33 in
last vyear’s Forbes magazine analysis of ideal places to live for young
professionals.

% Unemployment {(Alamance County)

"99 "00 o1 02 "03 "04 "05 "06 "07 "08 09 10 U 12
Jan 27 32 41 75 76 69 60 56 57 55 101 131 113 103
Feb 28 34 47 76 77 67 65 58 55 56 107 131 110 100
Mar 23 28 48 74 71 64 59 52 49 54 108 124 105 95
Apr 20 24 45 71 72 61 56 50 48 52 112 118 102 91
May 22 3 49 71 73 63 60 55 50 59 114 118 105 94
Jun 25 33 55 74 80 68 63 60 54 65 120 119 113 99
Jul 25 34 65 75 79 64 65 62 55 69 124 118 113 100
Aug 25 36 68 73 73 61 63 58 51 71 121 115 110 97
Sept 24 30 62 66 67 55 59 53 47 68 118 107 103
Ot 24 32 63 66 67 62 59 51 48 72 119 107 105
Nov 23 34 66 70 68 60 60 53 49 79 120 110 100
Dec 21 33 68 70 64 58 54 49 51 88 123 107 100

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics

The following is a comparison of average annual unemployment rates (%) for the
County, State and United States.



Comparison of average annual unemployment rates (%) for the County, State & US

Year County State US Year County State US
1998 29 34 45 2006 55 48 46
1999 25 32 42 2007 51 48 46
2000 35 36 40 2008 66 63 58
2001 56 56 47 2009 115 105 93
2002 72 66 58 2010 117 109 96
2003 72 65 60 2011 107 105 SO0
2004 63 55 55 2012 *97 *38 *82

2005 60 53 51

*Through Aug 2012
Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics

The City has maintained a stable financial condition in spite of the

continued lackluster in the national and local economy. Revenues from
building permits and fees for the current year are $470,433, down
approximately $20,935 from the previous fiscal year. This decrease reflects

the downturn in construction everywhere, not just the City of Burlington.

Located on the Interstate Highways 85/40, between the larger cities of
Greensboro (to the west) and Raleigh (to the east), the City of Burlington
remains in an ideal positicon for growth. In addition, the Burlington Downtown
Corporation, a component unit, has initiated a master plan for redevelopment
of the downtown area. The Company Shops Market, a cooperatively owned, full-
service grocery store and café opened in June of 2011. Last year, the Company
Shops Market was the sub-recipient of the Main Street Solutions Grant in the
amount of $298,460 to assist them with the $2.3 million renovation project.
This one store with its buffet/salad bar for lunch & dinner has created a 20-
30% increase of traffic in other downtown stores.

New residential development has slowed across the City. Burlington is
not immune to the effects of the recession that has hit the entire country as
a whole. In the past three years, as with the rest of the nation, new
development has Dbeen at a minimum. However, limited multi-family and
residential developments have continued across the western portions of the
City.

Long—-term Financial Planning
(1) Water and Sewer Resources Issues/Stormwater Issues

The City (Engineering) has continued to administer construction
contracts for the replacement of deteriorating two-inch water
lines. This 1s an ongoing process for the water and sewer
distribution systems.

Two separate series of Revenue Bonds were issued by the City of
Rurlington. The first was issued in December 2010 and the second
in October 2011. The first series primarily covered the proposed
repairs for the Stoney Creek Dam and the Lake Cammack Dam.
Engineering studies had determined that both the Lake Cammack Danm
(built in 1961) and the Stony Creek Dam (built in 1928) had the
potential to be unstable during extreme storm events and the
spillway capacity does not meet current design standards for the
Stoney Creek Dam. Repairs made to both dams involved the
installation of a series of post-tensioned anchors installed by
drilling wvertically through the dam into the bedrock below the dam.
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The multiple anchors provide the required stability during the

design storm. Additionally, the earthen embankments and abutments
were reinforced/raised. Repairs to the dams were completed by
2011.

The remainder of the first series 2010 and all of the series 2011
Revenue Bonds covered the changes necessary to both the South
Burlington Waste Water Treatment Plant and the East Burlington
Waste Water Treatment Plant to bring the in compliance with the
Jordan Lake Rules.

The B. Everett Jordan Reservoir Water Supply Nutrient Strategy
{also called the Jordan Lake Rules) is a comprehensive set of rules
enacted by the North Carolina Environmental Management Commission
and the North Carclina General Assembly in 2009. Jordan Lake Rules
are regulations to remcve excessive nutrients that result from
runoff from treatment plants, agriculture, etc. from surface waters
that feed into Jordan Lake and to minimize nutrient impact in an
effort to restore water quality at Jordan Lake.

ERP

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) 1is a financial and business
computer system that integrates all departments and functions
across the City with one single, powerful, yet easy to use,
computer system. Due to constant changes in the
computer/information technology field, as well as changes in
federal and state laws, there will always be updates to our

existing software that need to be implemented. The City has
installed three (3) more modules: TOP (Tyler Output Processor),
Content Manager, and Web access for Licensing. Two of the three
assist the City with its paper storage/retrieval issues as they
will allow near- ©paperless solutions for accounts payable,
purchasing, accounting, human resources (various personnel
records), etc. The City has also upgraded servers to enhance

security, reliability and storage space.
Annexation

The City has been working on annexation of 9 different areas for
the past couple of years. These areas are commonly referred to as
“donut holes”, and annexing them will help eliminate the confusion
caused for police and fire when responding to an emergency, going
in and out of the City limits driving along the same road. These
annexations became effective January 1, 2012. Services for police
& fire began immediately - sanitation started on. Revenues from
property taxes were not billed until August 2012. Thus, no major
revenues from this annex were received in the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011. Property tax revenues will not be recognized until
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

& fire study was completed this past fiscal year. Recommendations
from the study are for the City to build 1 to 2 fire stations and
possibly close one fire station. The City Council is currently
exploring all the options.

Capital Improvements

In keeping with the City’s goal of reducing expenditures, several
capital projects were delayed.

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds were used during the
year for several projects meeting the requirements for use of those
funds.
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Housing Projects: The Housing Rehabilitation Program provided
funds to correct Minimum Housing Code violations, to reduce lead-
based paint hazards and to improve the energy efficiency in single-
family dwellings occupied by low- and moderate-income households.
As of June 30, 2012, the City completed the rehabilitatiocn of ten
(10} owner-occupied houses. As a further strategy to create
opportunities for Thomeownership for low and moderate-income
households, the City supported the activities of non-profits to
develop affordable housing. The City assisted Alamance County
Community Services hgency (ACCSA}, its Community Housing
Development Organization (CHDO), continued endeavors to develop
homes at the Apple Tree Village subdivision on city-owned lots.
During the program vyear, ACCSA began construction of a home at the
subdivision. Construction was initiated in May 2012 along with a
ground-breaking event in June. The home 1s expected to be completed
by mid-August 2012.

Public Facilities: In the five-year strategic plan, CDBG proposed
to undertake one new public facility or infrastructure improvement
project per year to ensure new or improved avallability/access to a
suitable living environment for low- and moderate-income area
residents. During the program vyear, the City launched several
projects that 1include the installation of a new water line
connection on Gilliam Rd.; a lighting upgrade project was completed
at both Fairchild Park and North Park; a building automation
project was completed at Fairchild Park; installation of an alarm
system at Family Abuse Services; and the renovation of the
bathroom facility, replacement of existing roof, and
installation of a new HVAC system at Allied Churches. Through
a substantial amendment to the FY 2007-08 Action Plan the City
completed a sewer line improvement project in East Burlington along
Queen Anne St.

The CDBG Division also established multiple projects for the
upcoming fiscal year 2012-13.

(7 Plans For Debt Issuance

There are plans to continue the annual installment purchase
agreement that provides funding for approximately $1 million in
capital equipment in the General Fund that the City purchases each
fiscal year. This policy allows for ongoing purchases of eguipment
without causing major fluctuations in each annual budget.

{8y Fund Balance Policy

The City modified its fund balance policy to be in compliance with
the GASB 54 pronouncement, with the new designations, restricted,

committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance. The policy
gives the City Manager the authority to make assigned fund balance
designations.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOAR) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Burlington
for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011. This was the thirteenth consecutive year that the City has
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received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR. This report satisfied both generally accepted accounting
principles (GAARP) and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We
believe that our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this comprehensive annual financial report would not
have been possible without the dedication and collective efforts of the entire

staff of the Finance and Risk Management Department. We would like to take
this opportunity to express gratitude to all members of the department for
their efforts. In addition, it is also important to express appreciation to

the City Department Heads who supply information regarding the numerous
projects with which they are involved.

Finally, credit must be given to the Mayor and City Council members for
their unfailing support and for maintaining the highest standards of

professionalism and fiduciary responsibility in the management of the City of
Burlington’s finances.

Respectfully sub@ifted,
O) ﬁ )

Harcld T. Owen Peggy B. Reece, CPA
City Manager Director of Finance & Risk Management
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Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Burlington
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For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2011

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Burlington

Burlington, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Burlington, North
Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City of Burlington, North Carolina's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement.
The financial statements of Burlington Downtown Corporation were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Burlington, North Carolina as of
June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and the cash flows, where
appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison of the General Fund for the
year ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 19, 2012 on our consideration of the City of Burlington's internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in
considering the results of our audit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's
Discussion and Analysis and the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance’s and the
Other Postemployment Benefits' Schedules of Funding Progress and Schedules of Employer
Contributions on pages xiv through xx and 42 through 45 respectively, be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards general accepted in the United
State of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Burlington’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual
fund statements, budgetary schedules and other schedules are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of Federal and State awards is presented as for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, and is
also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules and the schedule of expenditures of Federal and
State awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other
schedules and the schedule of expenditures of Federal and State awards are stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Stour Suser M%Gowes € K06, LLP

October 19, 2012
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City of Burlington, North Carolina

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Burlington, we offer readers of our
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the City of Burlington for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section is designed to assist
the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of
the City’s financial activity, identify changes in the City’'s financial
condition, identify material deviations from the financial budget, and
identify individual fund issues or concerns.

We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the
transmittal letter, which can be found on pages i1-viii of this report, and the
City’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

> The assets of the City of Burlington exceeded its liabilities at the
close of the fiscal vyear ended June 30, 2012 by $270,762,694 (net
assets). Of this amount, $87,827,643 (unrestricted net assets) may be

used to meet the City’'s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

‘1

The City's total net assets increased by $3,124,131 (1.17%) compared to
fiscal year 2011. The governmental net assets increased by
$1,113,574(.97%), and the Dbusiness-type net assets increased by
$2,010,557 (1.32%}.

> During the year, the City’s governmental expenses were 548,453,302, an
increase of $536,655, while expenses in the business-type activities
were $23,768,365, an increase of $1,594,214.

» At the end of the fiscal year, the City of Burlington’s governmental
funds reported combined ending fund balances of $60,976,367, an increase
of $42,047 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately $8,055,071
(or 13.2%) 1is available for spending, with $46,807,844 designated for
specific purposes. For example, $491,785 is externally restricted by
nature of the Special Revenue Funds.

» At the end of the year unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$8,211,865, or 17.4% of total general fund expenditures of $47,127,509.

> The General Fund budget for fiscal year ending 6/30/12 was adopted with
a $.58 per $100 assessed valuation tax rate, which is one cent lower
than the prior fiscal year 2010-2011.

> The City of Burlington’s total long-term debt increased $15,759,503.
There was a decrease of $918,892 in the governmental activities and an
increase of $16,678,395 in the business-type.

The City has maintained its GO bond rating with both Standard & Poor’s
Corporation at AA and Moody’s at ARaZ2. The City has also maintained the same
ratings with the issuance of its 2011 Revenue Bonds as the prior issued 2010
Revenue Bonds. The 2010 Revenue Bonds were rated AR at Standard & Poor's
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Corporation and Ra3 at Moody's. As a side note, the City's 2004 COPS were
defeased with the issuance of the 2010 Revenue Bonds.

CVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to

the City of Burlington’s Dbasic £financial statements. The new financial
statements, implemented in fiscal year 2003, are comprised of two kinds of
statements that present different views of the City: (1) Government-Wide
Financial Statements and (2) Fund Financial Statements. Both perspectives,

however, are essential and complementary components that allow the user to
address relevant guestions, broaden a basis for comparison, and enhance the
City’'s accountability. Another important element of the basic financial
statements 1s the notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic statements
that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the
City of Burlington. {(See Figure 1 below.)

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
1 1
Management’s } Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis 1 Statements
! !

Government-wide { Fund Notes to the
Financial : Financial Financial
Statements [ Statements Statements
Summary Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial
statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide Dboth
short and long-term information about the City's financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are the Fund Financial
Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the individual parts
of the City's government. These statements provide more detail than the
government-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial
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Statements: (1 the governmental funds statements; (2) the budgetary
comparison statements; and (3) the proprietary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements 1s the notes. The
notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of the data contained
in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to
show details about the City’'s individual funds. Budgetary information
required by the NC General Statutes also can be found in this part of the
statements.

A. Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements report both short-term and
long-term information about the financial condition of the City as a
whole, focusing on the government’s operational accountability. The
accounting methods of these statements are similar to those of private
sector companies in that all governmental and business-type activities
are consolidated into columns which add to a total for the primary
government.

The statement o©f net assets reports the City’'s net assets and includes
all, both current and non-current, assets and liabilities of the City.
The difference between the two is reported as net assets. Over time,
increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are one indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's
net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in
net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods; for
example, uncollected taxes and earned, but unused vacation leave.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions
of the City of Burlington that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

The government-wide financial statements of the City of Burlington are
divided into three categories:

Governmental Activities: Most of the City’'s basic services are included
here, such as police, fire, public works, sanitation, recreation, and
general administration. Property taxes, sales taxes, and state and

federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type Activities: The City charges fees to customers to help
cover the cost of certain services 1t provides. The City’'s water and
sewer activities are included in this category.

Component Unit: The City includes one discretely presented component
unit entity in its report. Financial information for the Burlington
Downtown Corporation 1s reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1-3
(Exhibits 1 and 2) of this report.
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Fund financial statements

A “fund” is a grouping of related accounts that 1is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities
or objectives. The City of Burlington, like all other governmental
entities in North Carclina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect
compliance with finance-related legal reqguirements such as the General
Statutes of North Caroclina and the City’s budget ordinance. The fund
financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's
major funds while focusing on the fiscal accountability, and are used to
account for specific sources of funding such as those reguired by state
law, bond covenants, and spending for particular purposes. All of the
funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental
funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Most of the City's basic services are accounted
for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily
be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at
year-end that will be available for spending in the next year.
Governmental funds are reported using an ccounting method called
modified accrual accounting that provides a short-term spending focus.
As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader
a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are
more or less financial resources available to finance the City's
programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in
the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of
the fund financial statements.

The City of Burlington adopts an annual appropriated budget for its
General Fund, as reguired by the General Statutes of North Carolina.
The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from
the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and the decisions
of the City Council about which services to provide and how to pay for
them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified
sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary
statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City
complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded
in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The
budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting
and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as
the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: (1) the
original budget as adopted by the City Council; (2) the final budget as
amended by the City Council; (3) the actual resources, charges to
appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and (4) the
difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources
and charges. To account for the difference between the budgetary basis
of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing
the differences in the reported activities is shown at the end of the
budgetary statement.

> basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages

The
4-7 of this report.

Proprietary funds of two different types are maintained by the City of

Burlington. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities; that 1s, the water and sewer
operation. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to

accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City of Burlington's
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ons. The city uses internal service funds to account for
ite self-insured dental, health, and workers’ compensat benefits.

[

Because these internal se
S

rvi both gov
business-type activities, they have been a te o
res 1

2d to !

their espective percentage of personnel pols:

benefits) to total personnel Costs.

Proprietary funds provide the same Lype of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The
proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the Water
2nd Sewer Fund and the Storm Water Fund, the only two enterprise fund
operations of the City of Burlington.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can pe found on pages B-
11 of this report.

C. Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be
found on pages 12-42 of this report.

D. Other Information

Tn addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report includes certain required supplementary information
concerning the City of Burlington’s progress in funding its obligation
to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary
information can be found beginning on page 43 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator
of a government’s financial position. In the case of the City of Burlington,
assets exceeded liabilities by $270,762,694. The City’'s net assets increased
by $3,124,131 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. However, the largest
portion (48.1%) reflects the City's investment in capital assets (e.g. land,

uildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding

that was issued to acguire those items. The City of Burlington uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the City of Burlington's

investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related

debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other
sources, since the «capital assets cannot be used to liquidate those

liabilities. An additional portion of the City of Burlington’s net assets
(14.86%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. The remaining balance of $87,827,643 is labeled as

unrestricted on Exhibit 1. However, included in this unrestricted amount are
funds that the City has assigned to future purposes/projects, leaving an
unassigned balance of $8,055,071 as found on Exhibit 3.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Burlington i1s able to
report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the
government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-
type activities. The same situation held true for the prior year.
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ASSETS
Current and other assets
Capital assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current and other liabilities
Long-term liabilities:

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt

Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Several particular

Figure 2

Governmental
Activities

2012

2011

$ 80,305,102 §$ 78825482

Business-type
Activities

2012

2011

$ 74169054 $ 59,236,219

Total
2012 2011

$ 154,474,156 $ 138,061,701

59,993,431 59,868,860 134,364,203 129,064,278 194,357,634 188,933,138
140,298,533 138,694,342 208,533,257 188,300,497 348,831,790 326,994,839
7,389,603 5,960,433 7,319,935 4,975,362 14,709,538 10,935,795
16,842,795 17,781,348 46,516,763 30,639,133 63,359,558 48,420,481
24,232,398 23,741,781 53,836,698 35,614,495 78,069,096 59,356,276
44,355,341 42,802,718 85,748,070 97,111,037 130,103,411 139,913,755
17,287,399 11,376,455 35,544 241 24,282,332 52,831,640 35,658,787
54,423,395 60,773,388 33,404,248 31,292,633 87,827,643 92,066,021

$ 116,066,135 § 114,952,561

$ 154,696,559 § 152,686,002

$ 270,762,694 $ 267,638,563

aspects

of the

City’s

financial

influenced the total unrestricted governmental net assets:

operations positively

» The City Council voted to reduce the property tax rate by one cent for
the 2011-2012 fiscal year to $0.58 per $100 assessed valuation. The

property tax base also decreased slightly by 0.4%.

As a result, property

tax revenue collections decreased by 3.2% from the prior year.

> Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by maintaining a
tax collection percentage of 97.73%, which 1is slightly above the
statewide average of 97.63%.

» The interest rates continued to remain at the lowest rates seen in many
years. The rates remained at this low point for the entire fiscal year.

These low

rates
approximately $50,752
investments for governmental activities,

decrease

$17,822 in business type activities.

Sales tax

\7%

revenues,

increased by 2.6%.

which opened in November 2010 which 1is

reversing trends

purchasing traffic from outside the area,
sales traffic from one store to another within the county.

The Capital Reserve
Revenue was from two sources,
being a transfer from the General

Fund’s

Restricted Net Assets

once

income
as well as a modest increase of

again

were the primary contributing factor to the City’s
in interest

from the City’'s

from prior vyears,
This is primarily attributed to the Tanger Outlet
believed to have brought new
as opposed to just moving the

decreased by $279,540.

one being interest income earned and the second

Fund for

$1

million.

There were $1.34

million transferred out to capital projects as the only expenses for this fund
in the year ending June 30,

2012.
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Figure 3

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 6921477 $ 6,807,277 $ 21,696,845 § 21,737,804 28,618,322 $ 28,545,081
Operating grants & contributions 3,776,954 3,448,673 3,776,954 3,448,673
Capital grants & contributions 248,674 162,641 248,674 162,641
General Revenues: - -
Property taxes, levied for
general purpose 24,769,222 25,121,552 24,769,222 25,121,552
Other taxes 9,696,455 9,554,263 9,696,455 9,554,263
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs 3,597,285 3,688,785 3,597,285 3,688,785
Other 508,932 561,160 3,833,403 1,834,797 4,342,335 2,395,957
Total Revenues 49 270,325 49,181,710 25,778,922 23,735,242 75,049,247 72,916,952
Expenses:
General government 8,586,996 9,782,111 8,586,996 9,782,111
Public safety 20,992 476 20,077,388 20,992,476 20,077,388
Transportation 9,857,328 8,931,972 9,857,328 8,931,972
Economic and physical
development 1,574,410 1,367,129 1,574,410 1,367,129
Cultural and recreation 6,675,802 7,113,741 6,675,802 7,113,741
Interest on long-term debt 766,290 644,306 766,290 644,306
Water and sewer 23,768,365 22,174,151 23,768,365 22,174 151
Total Expenses 48,453,302 47,916,647 23,768,365 22,174,151 72,221,667 70,090,798
Change in Net Assets before
transfers 817,023 1,265,063 2,010,557 1,561,091 2,827,580 2,826,154
Transfers - - - - - -
Increase in net assets 817,023 1,265,063 2,010,557 1,561,091 2,827,580 2,826,154
Net assets-beginning 114,952,561 113,687,498 152,686,002 151,124,911 267,638,563 264,812,409
Prior Period Adjustments 296,551 296,551 -
Net assets-beginning (re-stated) 115,249,112 113,687,498 152,686,002 151,124,911 267,935,114 264,812,408
Net assets-ending 116,066,135 114,952,561 154,696,559 152,686,002 270,762,694 267,638,563

Governmental activities

Governmental activities
(excluding the prior period adjustment),

increased the City’s

net assets

by $817,023
thereby accounting for 35.6% of

the total growth in the net assets of the City of Burlington. The
increases came from the following funds:
» Sales tax revenues increased approximately $234,245 over the prior

year in the general fund, maintaining the strong increase in sales
from the last year, attributable to the Tanger Outlet shopping
center that opened in the prior year.
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A transfer of $1.34 million into the General Fund from the Capital
Reserve Fund was made for the capital purchase of the
communications conscles and radics needed for police and fire.
Depreciation expense decreased over $300,000 from the prior year.
Rccrued vacation decreased $99,000.

Charges for services increased by $114,200 in the General Fund.
The primary area affecting this increase is in Recreation, where
the golf course was fully operational in fiscal year ending June
30, 2012, after being closed in the prior year for 5 months to
allow for the re-seeding of the greens.

The final main contributing factor to the net increase in capital
asset is from the increase in capiltal assets (net  of
depreciation) by approximately $124,572.

Offsetting these increases are the following decreases in revenues and
increases in expenses:

\;_’

‘,’7

A7

For all of the internal service funds, which are the Dental Self
Insurance Fund, Workers Compensation Self Insurance Fund, and
Group Health Self Insurance Fund, claims were more than expected
and resulted in approximately $562,401 decrease in net assets.

The Capital Reserve Fund’s net assets decreased by approximately
$279,540. For the 2012 fiscal vyear, the budgeted transfer in,
which was performed, netted against the transfer out budgeted for
the purpose of purchasing a new communications system for police
and fire, involving new consoles, software, and radios.

One other accrual increased from the prior year as well, the OPEB
liability went up approximately $608,000.

Interest earnings saw another decline, by approximately 26.2% due
to the continued historical all-time lows in interest rates.

Figure 4

Expenses & Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

$25,000,000
$20,000,000 [
$15,000,000
QExpenses
$10,000,000 BTotal Program Revenues
$5,000,000
$-
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Figure 4 (continued)

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activites

7 7% Operating grants
& contributions

14.0% Charges for
services

7 3% Grants and
contributions not

restricted to specific 50 3% Property taxes.
programs levied for general
purpose

0.7% hliscellanecus

19 7% Other taxes

m d
& L

0 3% Unrestricted
nvestment earmings

Ad valorem taxes provided 50.3% of the revenues for governmental
activities in the General Fund, with other taxes and charges for
services providing 33.2% of revenues.

Total expenses Iincreased approximately $536,655 or 1.1%. With
revenues increasing $88,615 or 0.18%, the total net asset increase
was 0.97%. First, there was a 2% merit increase given which
affected all program areas. Second, the effect of a 2.5% merit
for police, which is part of a program, put in place four years
ago for officer retention which occurred in the General Fund as
well as six new positions in community policing grant program.
For General Government operations, planning expenses decreased
approximately $51,000 and there was a one-time expense last year
to assist with cleaning up properties that the City did not have
this year for $96,000. Operations for Public works were also up by
approximately $925,000; $887,000 for recycling rolling trash cans
(not capitalized), $100,000 increase for tipping fees, less a
decrease in recycling fees. The increases in these operations
accounts are again reflective of management’s philosophy, delaying
replacement of vehicles, using outside contractors where possible
to avoid hiring new employees, and repairing and maintaining
equipment and buildings rather than purchasing new items.

GO~
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ess-type activities

Business-type activities increased the City of Burlington’s net assets
by $2,010,557, accounting for 64.4% of the total growth in the
government’s net assets. Key elements of the increase in net assets
include some increases and decreases and are as follows:

> expense went up significantly, approximately $2 million,
he issuance of the 2011 Revenue Bonds.

r increase in expense is due tc increases in the OPEB

ity of approximately $99,016.

o et

> Anot
a

Figure 5

Revenues by Source - Business-type activities

0.96% Capital
grants &

14.87% Other_, /,-Contributions

84.17%
Chargesfor
services

> In fiscal vyear 2011-2012, business type activities revenues were
basically flat for the Water & Sewer Fund. Three factors
contributed to this relatively flat status in revenues. The first
factor was due to a decrease (8.7%) in sales of water to the City
of Greensboro due to the lower demands from the City. The second
impact to revenue was lower water and sewer consumption. The
third was due to not having any significant weather issues that
have affected revenues 1in the past, and therefore charges to
municipalities were more or less the same as in prior years.

> Offsetting the above mention decreases in revenues was the second
rate increase instituted by the City of Burlington for the 2011-
2012 fiscal year in the Water & Sewer Fund. The rate increase
amounted to approximately a 7.0% increase for water and sewer
rates for all customers, inside and outside the corporate city
limits. Even with these increases, Burlington’s rates continue to
remain below other cities with similar collection and distribution
systems.

> Expenses increased 7.2% overall. The largest hit to expenses was
from the increase in interest expense payments due to the Revenue
bonds in the amount of approximately $1.46 million. Operational
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expenditures were approximately $271,000 more than in the prior
year, utilities were $221,000 higher, chemicals were $102,000
higher and automotive expenses were $31,000 higher than in the
priocr years. Offsetting these increases in cperational expenses
was a decrease in maintenance and repair expenses of $159,000.
Expenditures for the storm water fund remained consistent with the
prior year.

> The City operates two enterprise funds, the Water & Sewer Fund
that constitutes most of the business-type activities, and the
Storm Water Fund. There 1is a small allocat:

c
aticn of the internal
service funds included in the business-type activi

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Burlington uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Burlington’s governmental funds
is to provide information on near-term 1inflows, outflows, and balances of
usable resources. Such information is wuseful in assessing the City’'s
financing reguirements. Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of
the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Burlington. At
the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General
Fund was $8,211,865, while total fund balance reached $33,593,269. As a

measure of the general fund’'s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represents 17.4% of total General Fund expenditures.

At June 30, 2012, the governmental funds of the City of Burlington reported a
combined fund balance of $60,976,367, a $42,047 increase over last year. Key
factors (increases and decreases) in the changes of the fund balances for the
governmental funds are noted below:

> The capital reserve fund decreased $279,540, due to a contribution
from the general fund and interest earnings from investments. A
transfer out of $1.3 million was for a capital project to purchase
new radios and consoles for the police and fire communications
system.

> The Home Program, the Community Development Block Grant, and the
Rental Rehabilitation Loan Programs when netted all together,
used and thus decreased fund balance by $142,991.

> The RICO fund received $269,032 in a new grant and also used
$119,918 (decreasing) fund balance which was used for purchasing 4
new digital in-car video systems in police cars, uniforms and
equipment for 6 new police officers.

> The City spent $52,621 of an Energy efficiency grant that was
received at the end of fiscal year 2009-2010. This also reduced
fund balance by the same amount, thus reducing that balance to
zero.

> The City was reimbursed $121,133 in & new grant Bureau of Justice
Assistance Community Oriented Policing, expensed $271,005 which
resulted in a use of $149,872 (decreasing) fund balance, which was
used to cover salary related expenses of 6 police officers.

> The $979,243 increase in fund balance in the general fund is once
again indicative of the management strategy employed by the City’s
top officials. Revenues did see increases in sales taxes, and

XX1v



permits. Property taxes actually decreased due to the one cent
decrease 1in the property tax rate. As mentioned before, sales
taxes increased again slightly over the prior year, maintaining
the increase achieved in prior years due to a new shopping center,

Tanger OCutlet. Building ©permits have edged wup slightly
representative of the slow turning around of the construction
industry. Increases in capital expenditures of approximately

$124,572 were due to netting of the purchase of new police cars
and disposal of old police cars; increases in wages were a result
of a 2% merit increase for most employees, the first in 3% years.
Department heads kept operational costs in line with prior years
as well. The major savings from expenses came from $567,510 1in
unspent personnel costs due primarily to unfilled positions that
were frozen for the current year, another $500,000 budgeted for
positions to staff a new fire station that is in the planning
stages to be built, and $199,734 in lower operational expenses,

rimarily utilities ($40,000), departmental supplies (546,000),
and professional/contracted services ($113,000).

General Fund Budgetary Highlights. During the fiscal year, the City revised
the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one
of three categories: {1} amendments made to adjust the estimates that are
used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is
available; (2) amendments to recognize new funding amounts from external
sources, such as Federal and State grants; and (3) increases in appropriations
that become necessary to maintain services.

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were
approximately a $6.2 million increase in appropriations, and the main items
can be briefly summarized as follows:

> $1,267,473 capital eguipment financing consisting of a refuse side
loader truck ($255,000), 8 police vehicles ($250,700), a dump
truck ($78,000), computers city wide ($181,000), a SCBA upgrade
for the Fire Department ($139,395), a 24 passenger mini bus
({850,000}, and various other purchased eqguipment ($313,378)

> $368,618 for proijects carried forward from the prior year (a GIS
pavement conditioning rating for $21,626, and 8 police vehicles in
the amount of $346,992, are two of the main projects carried
forward)

> $2,000,000 for a new communications system for fire, pclice, and
public works which involves replacing the radios and consoles for
911 emergency communications

> $1,096,979 in year-end adjustments, fuel purchases for resale to
Alamance County ($500,000), transfer to Workers’ Comp ($100,000},
personnel services for police special operations ($200,000),

police buildings/equipment ($119,000), fire automotive expense
($75,000), recreation equipment maintenance and repair ($30,000)
and other miscellaneous items (372,979).

Differences between the final amended budget and actual amounts can be briefly
summarized as follows:

> Ad Valorem tax revenues were greater than final amended budgeted
amounts due to a conservative estimate of a 95% collection rate
rather than the actual 97.73% rate.

> Other taxes and licenses were up by $704,792, primarily due to the
increase in sales tax.
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» Unrestricted intergovernmental fees were up by $361,142 (3.0%),
partly due to the beer and wine taxes. The budget amounts were
conservative because the State had withheld a portion of those
taxes in the prior year, and it was unclear if the State would do
the same in the 2012 fiscal year.

> Sales and services were $54,300 (1.4%) over final amended budget
primarily due to the sanitation fees bringing in more than
expected.

> Investment interest actual earnings were $219,262 (58.1%) below
final amended budgeted revenues due tc the continuance of record
low interest rates.

» General government actual expenditures were $3,685,065 (7.2%)
under final amended budgeted expenditures due to budgeted expenses
that were not incurred. Personnel costs ($1,179,527) were lower

than expected due to vacant positions that were frozen as well as
new hires being hired at a lower salary than the persons who
retired from those positions. Department heads were charged with
reducing actual expenditures. As a result, the following are the
major items that were under budget: maintenance /repair contracts
($113,328) utilities ($40,162), economic development ($85,357),
and ($500,000) that was put in place for the expansion of fire
services. Also, «capital costs ($1,245,686) were lower than
expected due to items not being able to be purchased before year
end, but were carried forward.

Public works actual expenditures were $238,117(2.4%) under final
amended budgeted expenditures primarily due to two iltems. First,
a radio communication system for public works that was not
purchased before vyear end (approximately $119,484). Second,
sidewalk construction additions that were budgeted were not
undertaken, (approximately $100,000). Other savings were offset
by overages 1in repalr & maintenance and automotive expenses in
public works.

v

Proprietary funds. The City of Burlington’s proprietary funds provide the
same type of information found in the government-wide statements, but in more
detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund and Storm Water
Fund combined at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $33,507,866. The
total growth in net assets was $2,010,557. Other factors concerning the
finances of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the
City of Burlington’s business-type activities.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. The City of Burlington’s investment in capital assets for its
governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2012, totals
$194,357,634 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include
buildings, roads and bridges, land, machinery and equipment, park facilities,
and wvehicles, among other types of assets. This investment represents an
increase of $5,424,498 or 2.9% over the prior year.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following
additions (there were no significant demolitions or disposals):

Governmental activities:

> Streets and sidewalks increased $3,511,779. The majority of this
increase, $2.8 million, 1is due to the completion of the Recovery
Zone Economic Development (RZED} Bond project, which covered
paving streets downtown primarily. The remainder represents
completion of routine maintenance and repaving of streets,
sidewalks, and culverts.
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Construction in progress decreased $2.5 million due to the City
finishing the paving of streets financed through Recovery Zone
Economic Development bonds.

Buildings increased $325,722. This represents the maintenance and
repairs to all the City buildings with the four primary repairs
and replacements, the police firing range building that burned for
approximately $93,000, police training classroom for approximately
$72,000, a replacement boiler system for the city municipal
building for approximately $58,000, and a traffic department
storage facility for approximately $24,000.

Equipment increased $852,101. The increases are due to
expenditures for various computer hardware and software for
approximately $87,251, a security system for our City Parks for
348,000, public safety fire equipment $366,000, public safety
police eqguipment 195,970, various equipment for public works
$67,472 and other miscellaneous items for the remaining $87,408.
Vehicles increased $1,052,955. The increase in vehicles is due to
the purchase of 23 vehicles purchased for police as part of the
normal replacement rotation for approximately $613,459(half of
these vehicles were ordered in the prior year but did not come in
until this year), a side loading refuse truck for $231,000, and a
bus and a wvan for recreation for $71,858. The remaining
increases/ decreases in eqguipment and vehicles represent the
typlcal activity of acqguisitions of new equipment to replace old
discarded equipment.

Business-type activities:

» The 3$1.7 million increase in water and sewer lines 1is attributed
to the completion of several water and sewer lines. These items
include water and sewer lines ($1,257,799), water and sewer taps
(8202,322), and an outfall (3$9%1,177}. Lines donated to the City
from developers of housing/commercial projects for the 2011-2012
fiscal year were valued at $226,617.

» The increase 1in bulildings is approximately $4.7 million which
mainly represents the completion of two dam rehabilitations.

> The remaining 1increases/ decreases in eguipment and wvehicles
represent the typical activity of acquisitions of new equipment to
replace old discarded equipment.

> No major demolitions were recorded this year.

Figure 6

City of Burlington Capital Assets
{net of depreciation)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Land $ 8400841 $§ 8400841 $§ 6945444 § 6945444 § 15346285 $§ 15346,285
Buildings and system 25,984,324 26,654,721 55,767,770 53,180,986 81,752,094 79,835,707
Improvements other than buildings 64,657,758 64,858,126 64,657,758 64,858,126
Machinery and equipment 2,258,821 2,003,460 1,369,804 781,414 3,628,625 2,784 874
Infrastructure 18,693,774 15,871,926 - - 18,693,774 15,871,926
Vehicles and motorized equipment 4,347 918 4,067,270 607,511 557,378 4,955 429 4,624,648
Construction in progress 307,753 2,870,641 5,015,916 2,740,930 5,323,669 5,611,571
Total $ 59993431 § 59868859 § 134,364,203 $ 129,064,278 §$ 194,357,634 § 188,933,137
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idditional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note
IIT.A.4 of the Basic Financial Statements on pages 23-25.

Long~term debt. As of June 30, 2012, the City of Burlington had total bonded
debt ocutstanding of $61,751,431. This includes $2.531 million of Recovery Zone
Economic Development Bonds that 1s not shown in the table below. Cf this

amount, all is backed by the full faith and credit of the City.

Figure 7
City of Burlington's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

General obligation bonds  $ 10,604,081 $ 11724945 $§ 7594520 $ 8817338 $ 18198601 $ 20,542283

Revenue bonds*™* - - 41,021,613 23,135,863 41,021,613 23,135,863

Total $ 10604081 $ 11,724945 $ 48616133 $ 31953201 § 59220214 $ 43678146

**Please note that the 2010 Revenue Bonds issued included the refunding of the 2004 COPS in the amount of $10,700,000.

The City of Burlington’s total debt showed a net increase of
$15,542,068(35.6%) during the past fiscal year. The City issued an additional
$18,370,000 in Revenue Bonds (Series 2011)to pay for Jordan Lake mandates to
retro fit the two waste water treatment plants, The City issued $1,267,473 in
installment financings, bearing an interest rate of 1.47%, to acguire certain
vehicles and other equipment for general government uses, to be paid back over
a 3 year period. The decrease in debt for the governmental activities
represents the normal shrinkage in debt due to payments made throughout the
year.

As mentioned in the financial highlights of this document, the City of
Burlington has maintained its bond ratings of AA for Standard & Poor's
Corporation, and an Ba2, by Mcody’s Investor Services.

North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt
that a unit of government can issue to 8% of the total assessed value of
taxable property located within that government’s boundaries. The legal debt
margin for the City of Burlington is $324,484,110. The City has no bonds
authorized but un-issued at June 30, 2012.

Additional information regarding the City of Burlington’s long-term debt can
be found in note III.BR.6, beginning on page 33 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The following key economic indicators reflect the challenges facing the City
during these recessiocnary times.

» Consistently high unemployment rate. From last year’s average at 10.9%,
the average rate has fallen to 10.1% for Alamance County, in which the
City of Burlington is located. The area compares with the State average
of 10.1% and US average at 8.6%.

» Interest rates are at approximately 0.50%, a 30% decrease over last
fiscal year. The City's average yield has decreased by .21% over last
year, or 44%. Since no appropriated fund balance was used in 2011, the
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City's portfolico has remained stable. With the national economy
maintaining its current snail’s pace growth pattern, it is projected for
the portfolio to produce a comparable amount of investment income in
2013 as it did in 2012. There are mixed signals from the economy almost
daily. Due to the opening of Tanger Outlet in the prior year, retail
sales are up 2.6% over 2011 in Alamance County. This is on top of the
13.5% increase 1in sales tax the City saw last year.

» Both residential and commercial developments have shown an increase fro
the prior year, from 437 permits issued in the prior year to 670 permit
issued for the fiscal year ending 6/30/2012. Even though this reflects
a 53% increase, the actual number of permits is still relatively low.
Commercial development had a 62% increase, with 201 permits issued in
the prior vyear, and 325 permits issued for the fiscal vyear nding
6/30/2012. Both of these are signs that the economy is turning, albeit
slowly, in the area.

» The City’s largest taxpayer Laboratory Corporation opened its expansion

of one of its lab testing facilities located within the City. The

estimated cost of the expansion is about $26 million.

A cooperative grocery/health foods store working with local farmers in

the area has opened downtown. ther retail stores in the downtown area

state that traffic in their stores has almost doubled since the opening
of the co-op.

» It remains unknown at this time what actions the Federal Government may
take to solve the nation’s debt crisis. Therefore, it is unclear the
impact of the federal government’s looming “fiscal cliff” coming at the
end of 2012 may have on the City.

=
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s
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BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012

Governmental activities. Total revenues budgeted for the year ending 2012
will increase by $1,896,602. Property taxes are projected at a $1,625,000
increase {85.7% of total revenue increase)jdue to the City annexing nine
different areas in an effort to reduce the “donut holes” which has caused
confusion for police and fire on who 1s supposed to be servicing certain
areas. Sales tax has been projected to increase by another $200,000 or 2.3%.
The amount of sales tax budgeted, even though increased, 1s still 4.3% below
actual sales tax received in the prior year. Interest earnings are projected
to remain low, especially since the Federal Reserve Board has maintained the
federal funds rate to 0.25%. No new programs were instituted in the 2012
budget. The City has begun to participate in performance measurement analysis.
Specifically looking at indirect costs, performance measures validate that the
dollar amount the general fund charges to the water and sewer fund for
administrative charges 1s very reasonable.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are projected to increase by 3.9%,
or $1,896,602. The large portion of the increase ($688,438), 1is for two
reasons, the City Council passed a 2% cost of living increase for employees to
be implemented July 1, 2012 as well as the police merit based pay plan for
continuity in the police department. Other increases in the budget are as
follows: §$270,450 increase in maintenance and repair/contracted services,
including $83,500 for a contract with a new veterinarian, $147,833 increase in
utilities, $212,511 increase in fuel for vehicles, $125,000 more for
intersection improvements, and a $61,580 increase in annexation payments to
fire departments for loss of revenues due to the City’s annexation.

Business—type activities. Total revenue increased approximately $1,879,400
over the previous fiscal year. Practically all of the increase is due to a
third and final 7% increase in both the water and sewer rates that will be
used to cover the projected debt payments from the issuance of the 2010 and
2011 Revenue Bonds in fiscal years 2011 and 2012. Both water and sewer rates
are double the inside rate for customers outside the corporate limits of the
City. In addition, the “municipal service rate” remains the same such that the
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rate is now 110% of the inside sewer rate, thereby assuring that inside City
customers would be paying the lesser rate for their sewer service.

Operating expenses are also budgeted to increase by $1,879,400, or 7.6%. The
increases are primarily due to the following: increase in capital
expenditures, $872,000 for water lines, $587,000 for sewer lines, as well as
increases in chemicals ($92,000), utilities ($58,000), and fuel for vehicles

($76,9507).
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the
City of Burlington’s finances for all those with an interest in the City’'s
finances and it’s accountability for the money 1t receives. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests Ifor
additional financial information should be addressed to the City of Burlington
Finance & Risk Management Department, P. 0. Box 1358, Burlington, North
Carolina 27216-1358.
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City of Burlington, North Carolina
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Exhibit 1

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivables (net)
Accrued interest receivable on taxes
Accounts receivable (net)
Internal balances
Inventories
Bond premium and fees
Prepaid iterns
Prepaid pension obligations
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents
Accounts receivable

Totat current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets (Note 1):
Land, non-depreciable
improvements, and construction in
progress
Other capital assets, net of
depreciation

Total capital assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposit
Payable from restricted assets
Current portion of long-term liabilities

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent fiabiities:
Other postemployment benefits
Due in more than one year

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related
debt
Restricted for:

Capital projects

Public works

Public safety

Economic development

Stabiiization by State Statute
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Primary Government

Component Unit

Burlington
Governmental Business-type Downtown
Activities Activities Total Corporation
$ 62,600,934 § 32,775276 § 95,376,210 3 196,679
1,210,297 - 1,210,297 -
455704 - 455,704 -
15,332,153 3,359,177 18,691,330 2,195
103,618 (103,618} - -
- 730,331 730,331 -
8,781 800,841 809,622 -
- 11,597 11,597 -
593,615 - 593,615
- 36,581,027 36,581,027 -
- 14,423 14,423 -
80,305,102 74,169,054 154,474,158 198,874
8,708,592 11,961,360 20,669,852 -
51,284,839 122,402 843 173,687,682 -
58,093,431 134,364,203 194,357,634 -
$ 140,298533 $ 208533257 3 348831790 § 198,874
3 3402463 3 638,688 § 4,041,151 $ 3,518
716,305 - 716,305 -
157,250 2,254,527 2411777 -
- 538,580 539,580 -
- 1,051,209 1,051,209 -
3,113,585 2,835931 5,949,518 -
7,389,603 7,319,035 14,709,538 3,518
2,109,882 343,469 2,453,351
14,732,913 46,173,294 60,906,207 -
16,842,795 46,516,763 63,359,558 -
24,232,398 53,836,698 78,069,096 3518
44 355,341 85,748,070 130,103,411 -
g77.891 35,544,241 36,622,132 -
306,396 - 306,396 -
9,888,660 - 9,889,660 -
8,113,452 - 6,113,452 -
54 423,395 33,404,248 87,827,643 196,356
$ 116,086,135 § 154,696,559 § 270762694 $ 195,356

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Exhibit 2

City of Burlington, North Carolina
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Operating Grants Capital Grants

Charges for and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
General government $ 8,586,996 $ 2,661,120 $ 16,136 $ -
Public safety 20,992,476 261,105 640,233 -
Public works 9,857,328 1,289,117 1,860,153 -
Economic and physical development 1,574,410 - 1,139,569 -
Cultural and recreation 6,675,802 2,710,135 120,863 -
Interest on long-term debt 766,280 - - -
Total governmental activities (See Note 1) 48,453,302 6,921,477 3,776,954 -
Business-type activities:
Storm water 305,939 450,521 - -
Water and sewer 23,462,426 21,246,324 - 248,674
Total business-type activities 23,768,365 21,696,845 - 248,674
Total primary government 3 72221667 $ 28,618,322 & 3,776,954 $ 248,674

Component unit:
Burlington Downtown Corporation

Total component units

$ 229,862 % 126,220 § 101,487

$ 229862 % 126,220 § 101,487 § -

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Local options sales tax
Other taxes and licenses

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Transfers
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets-beginning
Prior Period Adjustments
Net assets-beginning (restated)

Net assets-ending

The notes to the financial statements are an inte¢ The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statements.



Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Exhibit 2

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Component Unit
$ (5,909,740) $ (5,909,740) $ -
(20.091,138) (20,091,138) -
(6,708,058) (6,708,058) -
(434,841) (434,841) -
(3,844,804) (3,844,804) -
(766.290) (766,290)
(37,754,871) - (37,754,871) -
- 144,582 144,582
- (1,967,428) (1,967.428)
- (1,822,846) (1,822,846)
$ (37,754,871) $ (1,822,846) $  (38,577,717) $ -
(2,155)
3 - - $ - (2,155)
24,769,222 - 24,769,222 -
9,189,185 9,189,185
507,270 - 507,270 -
3,697,285 - 3,597,285 -
142,306 147,210 289,516 4
366,626 3,686,193 4,052,819 -
- - - (16,089)
38,571,894 3,833,403 42,405,297 (16,085)
817,023 2,010,557 2,827,580 (18,240)
114,952,561 152,686,002 267,638,563 213,596
296,551 - 296,551 -
115,249,112 152,686,002 267,935,114 213,596
$ 116,066,135 § 154696559 $ 270762694 $ 195,356

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.






Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012

MAJOR FUND
Total Non-Major | Totai Governmentai
General Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 30,648,128 § 2446252 § 33,097.381
Restricted cash 18,299,404 - 8 18,299,404
Receivables, net:
Taxes 1,148,488 51,808 1,210,297
Accounts 6,055,782 263,756 8,316,538
Housing rehabilitation loans - 2,370,226 2,370,226
Home incentive loans - 6,278,045 6,278,045
Total assets $ 56,151803 & 11423088 $ 67,574 891
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities $ 2,452,006 § 248,141 8§ 2,701,147
Deferred revenue 1,066,376 2,114,686 3,181,072
Uneamed revenue 716,305 - 718.305
Total fiabilities 4,234 687 2,363,837 5,598,524
Fund balances:
Restricted:
Stabilization by State Statute 6,113,452 - 6,113,452
Historic Books 1,418 - 1418
Animal Shelter 562 - 562
Economic Development - 7,400,720 7,400,720
Public Safety - 345649 345,649
Committed:
Capital improvements - 877,881 977 891
Capital Reserve Fund 18,323,847 - 18,323,847
Assigned
Subsequent Years Expenditure: 2,053,818 491,785 2,545 601
General Government 4,316,000 - 4,316,000
Parks and Recreation 1,321,156 - 1,321,156
Public Safety 5,450,000 - 5,450,000
Economic Development 3,000,000 3,000,000
Public Works 3,125,000 - 3,125,000
Unassigned 8.211.865 {156,794} 8055071
Total fund balances 51,917,118 9,058,251 60,976,367
Total liabifities and fund balances $ 56,151.803 § 11,423,088

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the staterment of net assets
{Exhibit 1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmentat

activities are not financial resources and

therefore are not reported in the funds.

Gross capital assets at historical costs -

$105,118,591 accumulated depreciation -

($45,126,160.) 59,993,431
Other long-term assets (accrued interest

receivable from taxes) are not available to

pay for current-period expenditures and

therefore are deferred in the funds. 455,704
The pension assets resulting from

contributions in excess of annual required

contributions are not financial resources and

therfore are not reported in the funds 593615
Miscellaneous adjustments to net assets

include investment income receivable and

interest subsidy receivable 118,865
Other long-term debt (post employment

benefits) are not due and therefore are not

reported in the funds. (2,109,882)

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of
internal service fund activities related to
enterprise funds. 103,618

Liabifities for eamned but deferred revenues

in fund statements. 3,181,072
internal service funds are used by

management to charge the costs of certain

activities, such as insurance to individual

funds. The assets and liabiiities of certain

internal service funds are included in

governmental activities in the statement of

net assets. 10,748,212
Some fiabifities, including bonds payable and

accrued interest, are not due and payable in

the current period and therefore are not

reported in the funds. General obligation

bonds-510,604,081 installment purchases-

$2,502,728, recovery zone economic

development bonds-$2,531.217,

compensated absences-

$2.208,471, accrued interest-3157 250 ang

bond issuance cost $(8,781). (17,994 967)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 116,086,135

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

City of Burlington

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit 4

Major Fund |
Total
Total Non-Major Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes 24594691 $ 126,220 $ 24,720,911
Other taxes and licenses 10,261,128 - 10,261,128
Unrestricted intergovernmental 4,294,357 214,929 4,509,286
Restricted intergovernmental 2,447,210 1,676,167 4,023,377
Permits and fees 1,025,476 - 1,025,476
Sales and services 3,909,654 38,303 3,947,957
Investment earnings 243,449 6,282 249,731
Miscellaneous 189,212 163,794 353,006
Total revenues 46,965,177 2,125,695 49,090,872
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 7,713,558 - 7,713,558
Public safety 18,776,222 747,745 19,523,967
Public works 8,644,203 - 8,644,203
Economic and physical development - 1,574,410 1,574,410
Culture and recreation 5,658,586 154,166 5,812,752
Debt service:
Principal 2,691,898 - 2,691,898
Interest and other charges 723,597 - 723,597
Capital outlay 2,919,445 229,507 3,148,952
Total expenditures 47,127,509 2,705,828 49,833,337
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (162,332) {580,133) (742,465)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 2,529,704 149,682 2,679,386
Transfers to other funds (2,865,036) (227,205} (3,092,241)
iIssuance of installment purchase 1,267,473 - 1,267,473
Total other financing sources (uses) 932,141 (77,523) 854,618
Net change in fund balance 769,809 (657,656) 112,153
Fund balances-beginning 51,217,413 9,716,907 60,934,320
Prior Period Adjustment (70,1086) - (70,108)
Fund balances-beginning restated 51,147,307 9,716,907 60,864,214
Fund balances-ending 51,917,116 $ 9,059,251 §$ 60,976,367

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(continued)




Exhibit 4
(continued)
City of Burlington
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 112,183

Governmental funds report capital outlays as

expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the

cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This

is the amount by which capital outlay- ($3,148,952)

exceeded depreciation-($3,024,380). 124,572

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in the funds.

Change in deferred revenue for economic

development loans receivable 103,569
Change in deferred revenue for street assessments 134,998
Change in accrued interest receivable (107,425)
Change in pension asset 38,989
Change in deferred revenue for tax revenues 48,310

The issuance of long-term debt provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction has any effect on net assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is
the net effect of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items. (Issuance of debt-
($1,267,473),principal expenditures- $2,691,863 change
in accrued interest payable- $6,702 and net change
ammortization $3,725 and change in bond issuance cost
($1,273)) 1,433,544

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Compensated absences 99,019
Other post employement benefits (608,242)
Net revenue of internal service funds determined to be
governmental-type. (562,464)
Total changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 817,023

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.



City of Burlington
General Fund

Exhibit 5

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Cultural and recreation

Principal retirement
Interest and other charges

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds
Installment Financing

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) Expendituress and other financing uses

Fund balances appropriated
Fund balances, beginning of year
Prior Period Adjustment

Fund balances beginning of year restated

Fund balances, end of year

A legally budgeted Capital Reserve Fund is
consolidated into the General Fund for

reporting purposes:
Interest Income
Transfer from General Fund
Transfer to other Funds
Fund balance beginning

Fund Balance Ending (Exhibit 4)

General Fund

Variance with

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 23,391,759 $23.391,758 $ 24584691 § 1202932
9,556,336 9,556,336 10,261,128 704,792
4,028,000 4,028,000 4,294,357 266,357
2,259,250 2,305,189 2,447 210 142,021
878,400 878,400 1,025,476 147,076
3,585,961 3,855,354 3,909,654 54,300
377,251 377,251 157,989 (219,262)
380,888 171,000 188,212 18,212
44 457, 845 44,563,289 46,879,717 2,316,428
7,110,625 9,484,812 8,030,918 1,453,894
18,764,768 22,094,033 20,122,743 1,971,290
10,001,545 9,968,723 9,730,606 238,117
5,517,831 5,834,507 5,827,747 6,760
2,613,228 2,706,901 2,691,898 15,003
723,598 723,588 723,597 1
44,731,586 50,812,574 47,127,509 3,685,065
(273,751)  (8.249,285) (247.792) 6,001,493
- 1,530,000 1,529,704 (298)
(1.363,235)  (1,500.214) (1,500,038) 178
- 1,267,473 1,267,473 -
(1,363,235) 1,297,259 1,297,141 (118)
(1,636,986)  (4,952,026) 1,049,349 § 6001375
1,636,986 4,952,026
- - 32,614,026
(70,108)
32,543,920
$ - 3 - $ 33,593,269
$ 85,460
1,000,000
(1,365,000)
18,603,387
$ 51917116



City of Burlington
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2012

Exhibit 6

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (net) - billed
Accounts receivable (net) - unbilled
Due from other funds
Prepaid assets
inventories
Bond issuance costs
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable
assets
Other capital assets, net of
depreciation

Capital assets (net}

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Due to other funds
Compensated absences -
current
Customer deposits
Other postemployment benefits
General obligation bonds payable-
current
Revenue bonds payable
Liabilities payable from restricted
assets:

Accounts payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Other noncurrent liabilities:
Other postemployment benefits
Compensated absences
General obligation bonds payable-
noncurrent (net)
Revenue bonds payable
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets, net of related

debt
Restricted for Capital projects

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of
internal service fund activities related to
enterprise funds.

Net assets of business-type activities

Enterprise Funds

Non-Major
Water and Storm Water
Sewer Fund Fund

Total

Governmental
Activities-

Internal Service
Funds

$ 31,461,137

$ 1,314,138

$ 32,775,276

$ 11,204,148

1,749,354 26,648 1,776,002 -
1,563,984 19,191 1,583,175 -
11,587 - 11,597 245,379
730,331 - 730,331 -
800,841 - 800,841 -
36,581,027 - 36,581,027 -
14,423 - 14,423 -
72,812,694 1,359,978 74,272.672 11,448,528
11,861,360 - 11,961,360 -
122,192,822 210.021 122,402,843 -
134,154,182 210,021 134,364,203 -
134,154,182 210.021 134,364,203

$ 2070066876

$ 1,569.999

$ 208636.875

3 11,449,528

$ 2,882,921 $ 10,294 $ 2,893,215 $ 701,232
131,156 6,426 137,582 -
538,580 - 539,580 -
1,209,775 - 1,209,775 -
1,495,000 - 1,495,000 -
1,051,209 - 1,051,209 -
7,309,641 16,720 7,326,361 701,232
343,469 - 343,469
247,331 8,179 255,510 -
6,384,745 - 6,384,745
39,526,613 - 39,526,613
46,502,158 8,179 46,510,337 -
53,811,799 24,899 53,836,698 701,232
85,538,049 210,021 85,748,070
35,544,241 - 35,544,241
32,172,787 1,335.079 33,507,866 10,748,298
$ 153255077 3 1,545,100 154,800,177 $ 10748296
(103.818)
$ 154,896,559

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Burlington

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit 7

Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities-
Non-Major
Water and Storm Water Internal Service
Sewer Fund Fund Total Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 21,187,572 3 450,521 21,638,003 $ 4,930,234
Water and sewer taps 202,322 - 202,322 -
Total operating revenues 21,389 894 450,521 21,840 415 4 930,234
OPERATING EXPENSES
Building and administrative 2,291,941 - 2,291,941 -
Customer services 1,276,484 289,687 1,666,181 -
Supervision - lines 281,510 - 281,510 -
Line maintenance and repairs 959,001 - 959,001 -
Line services and construction 615,474 - 615,474 -
Supervision - treatment 572,240 - 572,240 -
Water source of supply 42,113 - 42,113 -
Water plant operations 2,806,836 - 2,806,836 -
Sewage treatment plant operations 3,923,898 - 3,923,898 -
Laboratories 675,465 - 675,465 -
Plants maintenance 583,864 - 583,864 -
Lakes and marinas 356,714 - 356,714 -
Depreciation 4,310,657 16,252 4,326,908 -
Claims paid, excess loss coverage and
claims administration - - - 6,324 561
Total operating expenses 18,696,207 305,939 19,002,146 6,324,561
Operating income (loss) 2,693,687 144,582 2,838,269 (1,394,327)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 141,130 6,080 147.210 51,813
Interest and other charges (2,700,307) - (2,700,307) -
Other revenues 3,686,193 - 3,686,193 -
Miscellaneous nonoperating expense (1,545,562) - (1,545,562)
Total nonoperating revenue
(expenses) (418,546) 6,080 (412 ,466) 51,813
income (loss) before contributions
and transfers 2,275,141 150,662 2,425,803 (1,342,514)
Capital contributions 248,674 - 248,674 -
Transfers to other funds (143,570) - (143,570) -
Transfers from other funds - - - 626,426
Change in net assets 2,380,245 150,662 2,530,907 (716,088)
Total net assets - beginning 150,874,832 1,394,438 11,464,384
Total net assets - ending $ 153,255,077 $ 1,545,100 3 10,748,296
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of
internal service fund activities related to
enterprise funds. (520,350)
Change in net assets - business-type
activities 2.010,557

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 8
City of Burlington
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
Enterprise Funds
Water and Non-Major Internal
Sewer Storm Water Service
Fund Fund Total Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers 3$ 20,786,568 3 446,304 3 21,232,872 $ 4685403
Cash paid for goods and services (7,104,396) (91,723) (7,196,119) (5,879,035)
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services (5,721,488) (226,590) (5,948,078) (361,764)
Net change in customer deposits 24,866 - 24,8686 -
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,985,550 127,991 8,113,541 (1,555,396)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
(increase) decrease in interfund payables - - - 191
Transfers from other funds - - - 626,426
Transfers to other funds (143,570) - (143,570) -
Total cash flows used by noncapital financing activities (143.570) - (143,570) 626,617
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (9,210,197) (87,142) (9,297,339) -
Proceeds of revenue bonds 18,939,708 - 18,939,708 -
Principal paid on bond maturities (2,188,586) - (2,188,586) -
Interest and fees paid on debt maturities (1,876,620) - (1,876,620) -
Other capital revenues 861.869 - 861,869 -
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 6,528,174 (87,142) 6,439,032 -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments 141,130 6,080 147 210 51,812
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 14,509,284 46,929 14,556,213 (876,967)
Balances-beginning of the year 53,532,880 1,267,210 54,800,090 12,081,116
Balances-end of the year $ 68,042,164 3 1,314,139 $ 69,356,303 $ 11,204,148
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Current 3 31,461,137 3 1,314,139 $ 32,775,276 $ 11,204,149
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 36,581,027 - 36,581,027 -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30, 2012 $ 68,042,164 $ 1,314,139 $ 69,356,303 $ 11,204,149

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(continued)
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Exhibit 8
(continued)

Water and Non-Major internal
Sewer Storm Water Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Operating income $ 2,693,687 $ 144,582 3 2,838,269 3 (1,394.332)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 4,310,657 16,252 4,326,809 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in accounts receivable (617,749) (1,324) (619,073) (244,832)
Decrease in inventory 64,601 - 64,601 -
Increase in prepaid asset (7,997) - (7,997) 9,433
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 1,487,561 (27,058) 1,470,503 74,328
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation pay (79,092) (4,461) (83,553) -
Increase in accrued OPEB libility 98,016 - 99,016
Increase in customer deposits 24,866 - 24,866 -
Total adjustments 5,281,863 (16,591) 5275272 (161,071)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 7,985,550 $ 127,991 3 8,113,541 $ (1,555,403)
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Donated water and sewer lines $ 226,617 3 - 3 226,617 $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The accounting policies of the City of Burlington and its discretely presented component unit conform to
generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of
the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Burlington is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected mayor and a four-
member council. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements
present the City and its component unit, a legally separate entity for which the City is financially
accountable. The discretely presented component unit presented below is reported in a separate
column in the City’s financial statements in order to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.

Burlington Downtown Corporation

The Burlington Downtown Corporation exists to promote economic and physical development in the
downtown area. The Corporation is financed primarily by proceeds of property taxes levied on the
Downtown Special Tax District by the City Council of the City of Burlington. The Corporation has a
separate board that governs its operations. The City approves the annual budget of the Burlington
Downtown Corporation. The Corporation, which has a June 30 year-end, is presented as if it were a
governmental fund. Complete financial statements for this component unit may be obtained from the
Burlington Downtown Corporation, P.O. Box 761, Burlington, NC 27216.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government and its component unit. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and
business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange fransactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a)
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented
as general revenues.
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I.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds.
Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary — are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed
in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported
as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies
result from non-exchange transactions. Other non-operating revenues are ancillary activities such as
investment earnings.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. The General Fund
accounts for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another
fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, State grants, and various other taxes and
licenses. The primary expenditures are for public safety, public works, recreation, and general
government services.

The City reports the following non-major governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds. The Special Revenue funds account for specific revenue sources (other
than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. The City has fifteen Special Revenue Funds: the Community Development Fund,
the Rehabilitation Loan Program Fund, the Rental Rehabilitation Loan Program Fund, the Downtown
Special Tax District Fund, the Home Program Project Fund, the RICO Fund, the Controlled
Substance Tax Fund, the MPO Planning Transportation Fund, the Energy Efficiency Conservative
Fund, the Guilford Mackintosh Fund, the Medicare Part D Grant Project Fund, the Edward Byrne
Justice Assistance Grant Fund, Governor Crime Commission Project Safe Neighborhood Grant
Fund, All Hazard Preparedness Grant — Lake Cammack and the Bureau of Justice Assistance
Community Oriented Policing Grant Fund.

Capital Projects. The Capital Project Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition and/or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed in the
enterprise fund) and infrastructure. The city has 7 projects at this time.

Capital Reserve Capital Project Fund. This fund is used to account for funds reserved for future
capital projects.

The City reports the following major enterprise fund:

Water and Sewer Fund. This fund is used to account for operations and maintenance of the water
and sewer system, which includes operation of 2 waste water treatment facilities and 2 water
treatment plants. This fund also covers acquisition and/or construction of major utility capital facilities
and infrastructure projects, sewer projects and utility capital reserve.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

The City reports the following non-major enterprise fund:

Storm Water Fund. This fund is used to account for the federally mandated program of storm water
system management, which is supported by a city-wide storm water fee.

The City reports the following fund type:

Internal Service Fund. The Internal Service Funds account for the general insurance program of the
City. The City of Burlington has three Internal Service Funds: the Dental Self-insurance Fund, the
Workers Compensation Self-Insurance Fund, and the Group Health Benefits Self-Insurance Fund.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the
year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in
which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange,
include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the City enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The City also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the water and sewer system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims
and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent
they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as
other financing sources.

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except
for property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is
not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not
considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of
January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property
taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

D.

Effective with this change in the law, Alamance County is responsible for billing and collecting the
property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in
the County, including the City of Burlington. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered
system, property taxes are due on the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered.
The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore, the City’s
vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in Alamance County from March 2011 through February 2012
apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this period
are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities franchise tax, collected and
held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental
revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not
measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues which are unearned at year-end are recorded as
unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues.
Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets
available to finance the program. It is the City's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant
resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the City has elected to apply only
applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not
contradict GASB pronouncements in its accounting and reporting practices for its proprietary
operations.

Certain items in the 2012 report have been reclassified to conform to current year classifications.
Such reclassifications had no effect on previously reported increase/decrease in net assets.

Budgetary Data

The City's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual
budget is adopted for the General Fund and the Enterprise Funds. An annual budget is also adopted
for the following Special Revenue and Capital Project Funds: Rehabilitation Loan Program Fund,
Rental Rehabilitation Loan Program Fund, Downtown Special Tax District Fund, Rico Fund, Guilford
Mackintosh Fund, Controlled Substance Tax Fund, MPO Planning Transportation Fund, Capital
Reserve Fund, and Drainage Improvement Fund. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year
end. Project ordinances are adopted for all other Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds. The
City's Dental Self Insurance Fund, Workers Compensation Self insurance Fund and Group Health
Benefits Self Insurance Fund, intragovernmental service funds, operate under financial plans that
were adopted by the governing board at the time the City’s budget ordinance was approved, as is
required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for all
annually budgeted funds and at the object level for the multi-year funds. Amendments are required
for any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund or that change functional appropriations by
more than $2,500. All amendments must be approved by the Council. The budget ordinance must be
adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers
that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

1.

Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the City and the Burlington Downtown Corporation are made in board-designated
official depositories and are secured as required by State law [G.S. 159-31]. The City and the
Burlington Downtown Corporation may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City and the Burlington
Downtown Corporation may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts,
money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the City and the Burlington Downtown Corporation to invest in
obligations of the United States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the
United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local
government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high
quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances and the North Carolina Capital
Management Trust (NCCMT). The City’s and the Burlington Downtown Corporation’s investments
are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the NCCMT —
Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is
the NCCMT’s share price. The NCCMT — Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value.

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable and which provide
for periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are

reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents. The Burlington Downtown Corporation considers all highly
liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.

Restricted Assets

Customer deposits held by the City before any services are supplied are restricted to the service for
which the deposit was collected.

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)}, the City levies ad valorem taxes on
property other than motor vehicles on July 1%, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on
September 1% (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6. These
taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2010. As allowed by State law, the City
has established a schedule of discounts that apply to taxes paid prior to the due date. In the City's
General Fund and Downtown Special Tax District Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of
such discounts.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were
written off in prior years.

Inventory

The inventories of the City are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), which approximates market. The
City's General Fund inventory consists of expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures
when used rather than when purchased.

The inventories of the City’s enterprise funds consist of materials and supplies held for subsequent
use. The cost of these inventories is expensed when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items in both government wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the items
are used.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a
certain cost and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Minimum capitalization costs are as
follows: land, $10,000; buildings, improvements, substations, lines and other plant and distribution
systems, $15,000; infrastructure, $20,000; furniture and equipment, $5,000; vehicles and motorized
equipment, $10,000; and computer equipment, $500. Purchased or constructed capital assets are
reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated
fair value at the date of donation. General infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2003, consist
of the road network and water and sewer system assets that were acquired or that received
substantial improvements subsequent to July 1, 1980, and are reported at estimated historical cost
using deflated replacement cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 50
Buildings 40
Improvements 40
Vehicles 7
Furniture and equipment 10

Computer equipment 5
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[.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

8.

10.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the City and the Burlington Downtown Corporation provide for the
accumulation of up to forty-eight (48) days earned but unused annual leave, which would be paid to
employees upon separation from the City. For the City's government-wide and proprietary funds, an
expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary related payments are recorded as
the leave is earned. The City has assumed a first in, first out method of using accumulated
compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has
been designated as a current liability in the government-wide financial statements.

Both the City and the Burlington Downtown Corporation’s sick leave policies provide for an unlimited
accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated
at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit
purposes. Since neither the City nor the Burlington Downtown Corporation has any obligation for the
accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made.

Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net Assets

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statue.

Fund Balances
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:
Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification include amounts that cannot be spent because

they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

Restricted Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization by State statute — portion of fund balance that is restricted by State
Statute [G.S. 159-8(a)].

Restricted for Economic Development-portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue
source for use for economic development purposes.

Restricted for Public Safety-portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for use
for public safety purposes.

Restricted for Historic Books-portion of fund balance that is restricted by donor’s for from the sale
of a historical book on the architecture of Burlington and is restricted toward the restoration of the
City.

Restricted for Animal Shelter-portion of fund balance that is restricted by donor’s for the animal
shelter.

Committed Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes
imposed by majority vote by quorum of City of Burlington’s governing body (highest level of decision-
making authority). Any changes or removal of specific purpose requires majority action by the
governing body.

Committed for Capital Improvements— portion of fund balance assigned by the Board for capital
improvement projects.

Committed for Capital Reserve Fund-portion of fund balance assigned by the Board for capital
Improvement projects.

Assigned fund balance — portion of fund balance that City of Burlington intends to use for specific
purposes.

Subsequent year’s expenditures — portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next year's
budget that is not already in restricted or committed. The governing body approves the appropriation;
however the budget ordinance authorizes the manager to modify the appropriations by resource or
appropriation within funds.

Public Works- portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the board for equipment in public
works.

Recreation and Parks-portion of the fund balance that has been budgeted by the board for the
carousel, community centers, swim complex, and camp green leaves projects in the recreation
department.

Public Safety- portion of the fund balance that has been budgeted by the board for the animal
shelter.

Unassigned fund balance — the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or
assigned to specific purposes or other funds.
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The City of Burlington has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with
multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy; bond
proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-city funds, city funds. For purposes of fund balance
classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the City.

The City of Burlington has also adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general fund which
instructs management to conduct the business of the City in such a manner that available fund
balance is at least equal to or greater than 4 months of expenditures which equals 33% of budgeted
expenditures. Any portion of the general fund in excess of 33% of budgeted expenditures may be
appropriated for one-time expenditures and may not be used for any purpose that would obligate the
City in a future budget.

II. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Deficit in Fund Balance pr Net Assets of Individual Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the Bureau of Justice Assistance Community Oriented Policing Grant
Fund had a deficit of $149,872 in fund balance. The grant is a multi-year grant and the City’s
expenditures for the project exceeded the grant money received for the year. The City will closely
monitor this fund to assure that money is drawn from the grant to cover all expenditures.

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the All Hazard Preparedness Grant — Lake Cammack Fund had a
deficit of $6,922 in fund balance. The grant is a multi-year grant and the City’s expenditures for the
project exceeded the grant money received for the year. The City will closely monitor this fund to assure
that money is drawn from the grant to cover all expenditures.

ili. Detail Notes on All Funds:

A. Assets
1. Deposits

All the deposits of the City and the Burlington Downtown Corporation are either insured or collateralized
by using one of two methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the federal
depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the City's and Burlington
Downtown Corporation’s agents in these units’ names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral
pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the
name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the City and
the Burlington Downtown Corporation, these deposits are considered to be held by the City's and the
Burlington Downtown Corporation’s agents in their names. The amount of the pledged collateral is based
on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for
interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the
adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm
this information with the City, the Burlington Downtown Corporation, or the escrow agent. Because of the
inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City and the Burlington Downtown
Corporation under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may
increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict
standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling
Method. The City has no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State
Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and
to monitor them for compliance. The City complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating
official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured. The Burlington Downtown
Corporation’s deposits are all insured.
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At June 30, 2012, the City's deposits had a carrying amount of $53,706,949 and a bank balance of
$54,082.556. Of the bank balance, $1,000,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the
remainder was covered by collateral held under the pooling method. The carrying amount of
deposits for the Burlington Downtown Corporation was $196,679 and the bank balance was
$196.679. All of the bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance. At June 30, 2012,
the City's petty cash fund totaled $5,130.

2. Investments

At June 30, 2012, the City’s investments were as follows:

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity Rating
Commercial Paper — Barclays 22,005,789 various A-1
Commercial Paper ~ FCAR Trust || 4,513,064 various A-1+
Commercial Paper — FCAR Trust 6,864,126 various A-1+
Ser |
Commercial Paper — Toyota 4,317,118 various A-1+
Commercial Paper - GE 10,602,052 various A-1+
NC Capital Management Trust — 19,105,719 N/A AAAM
Cash Portfolio
NC Capital Management Trust — 0.11 years Unrated
Term Portfolio 10,837,290

Total: $ 78,245,158

Interest Rate Risk. The City has no formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk. As a means
of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the City's internal
investment policy limits at least half of the City’s investment portfolio to maturities of less than 12
months. Also, the City’s internal management policy requires purchases of securities to be laddered
with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities to a final maturity of no more than two years.

Credit Risk. The City has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal management
procedures that limits the City’s investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the
purchase of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are
rated. The investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio is rated AAAmM by
Standard and Poor’s as of June 30, 2012. The City’s investment in the NC Capital Management
Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The Term Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S.
government and agencies, and in high grade money market instruments as permitted under North
Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as amended. Investments in commercial paper purchased by the
City are rated either A1/P1 by Standard and Poor’s or Moody’s Investors Service.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, the custodial risk is the risk that in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City has no formal policy on custodial
credit risk, but management procedures are that the City shall utilize a third party custodial agent for
book entry transactions, all of which shall be held in the City’s name.

Concentration of Credit Risk The City’s Board places no limit on the amount that the City may invest
in any one issuer. More than 5 percent of the City’s investments are in Commercial Paper Barclays-
28%, Commercial Paper FCAR Trust II- 6%,Commercial Paper FCAR Ser I-9%, Commercial Paper
Toyota-6%, Commercial Paper GE-14%.



ill. Detail Notes on All Funds: (continued)

3. Receivables

The amount of taxes receivable presented in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets
includes penalties levied and outstanding in the amount of $21,969.

The amounts presented in Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets are net of the following
allowances for doubtful accounts:

Fund 6/30/12

General Fund:
Taxes receivable $ 925,464
Solid Waste receivables 511,576

Special Revenue Funds:
Rehabilitation Loan Program Fund:
Rehabilitation Loans 120,295
Home Incentive Loans 4,527

Rental Rehabilitation Loan Program
Fund:
Rehabilitation Loans 31,341

Downtown Special Tax District Fund:
Taxes Receivable 36,297

Home Program Fund:
Home Incentive Loans 268,906

Enterprise Fund:
Water and Sewer Fund:
Utility Receivables 64,503

Total $ 1962909



lll. Detail Notes on All Funds: (continued)

4. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 8,400,841 § - $ - § 8,400,841
Construction in progress 2,870,641 344,428 2.907.316 307.753
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 11,271,482 344,428 2,907,316 8,708,594
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 42,209,206 325,722 30,780 42,504,148
Streets and sidewalks 28,370,288 3,511,779 - 31,882,067
Equipment 6,982,981 852,101 17,902 7.817,180
Vehicles 13,405,711 1,052,955 251,127 14,207,539
Total capital assets being
depreciated 90,968,186 5742557 299,809 96,410,934
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 15,554,485 971,680 6,341 16,519,824
Streets and sidewalks 12,498,362 689,931 - 13,188,293
Equipment 4,979,521 596,740 17,902 5,558,359
Vehicles 9,338,441 772,307 251,127 9,859,621
Total accumulated depreciation 42,370,809 3.030,658 275,370 45,126,097
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 48,597,377 51,284,837
Governmental activity capital
assets, net 59,868,859 59,993,431

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government $ 572,997
Public safety 713,089
Public works 1,070,102
Cultural and recreational 674,470
Total depreciation expense $ 3.030.658
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Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Business-type activities:
Storm Water Fund
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building $ - $ 68182 § - 3% 68,182
General equipment 142,919 28,237 - 171,156
Vehicle 21.957 - - 21.957
Total capital assets being
depreciated 164.876 96.419 - 261,295
Less accumulated depreciation for:
General equipment 35,022 16,252 - 51,274
Total accumulated depreciation 35022 $ 16252 § - 51,274
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 129,854 210,021
Storm water fund capital assets, net 129,854 210,021
Water and Sewer Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 6,945,444 - - 6,945,444
Construction in progress 2,740,930 7.711.480 5436494 5,015,916
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 9,686,374 7,711,480 5.436.494 11,961,360
Capital assets being depreciated:
Water and sewer lines 99,096,263 1,661,129 - 100,757,392
Buildings, plant, and pumping
equipment 112,281,465 4,726,994 - 117,008,459
General equipment 2,957,879 716,227 - 3,674,106
Vehicles 2,460,083 139,948 - 2,600,031
Total capital assets being
depreciated 216,795,690 7.244.298 - 224 039,988
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water and sewer lines 34,238,137 1,861,497 - 36,099,634
Buildings, plant, and pumping
equipment 59,100,479 2,208,392 - 61,308,871
General equipment 2,284,362 139,822 - 2,424,184
Vehicles 1,924,662 89,815 - 2.014.477
Total accumulated depreciation 97,547.640 $.4.299.526 3 - 101,847,166

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 119,248,050
Water and Sewer fund capital assets, net __128,934,424
Business-type activity
capital assets, net $129.064.278

122,192,822
134,154,182

$ 134,364,203
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IIl. Detail Notes on All Funds: (continued)

5. Construction Commitments

The government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2012. At year-end, the government’s commitments
with contractors are as follows:

Remaining

Project Spent-to-date  Commitment
Street Resurfacing $ 599276 $ 29,959
Queen Ann Sewer Line Upgrade 150,039 28,448
Franchise Work 10,075 9,925
Gilliam Road Water Line 58,508 41,492
Caswell/Grimes 85,704 1,646
Fairview/Westover 55451 238,428

Total 3 959,053 $ 349,898

B. Liabilities

1. Pension Plan Obligations

a. Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System

Plan Description. The City of Burlington contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’
Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to
plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the
State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919)
981-5454.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary.
The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the City, the current rate for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 6.88% and 7.35%,
respectively, of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of members and of the City of
Burlington are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The
City’s contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $1,725,219,
$1,644,642, and $1,199,300, respectively. The contributions made by the City equaled the required
contributions for each year.

b. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance

1. Plan Description.

The City of Burlington administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation Allowance”),
a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the City’s qualified
sworn law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to 0.85 percent of the annual
equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of
creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement
allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly.



Hi.

Detail Notes on All Funds: (continued)

All full-time law enforcement officers of the City are covered by the Separation Allowance. At
December 31, 2011, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 25
Terminated plan members entitled
to but not yet receiving benefits
Active plan members

Total

-
N
©

NN
o
55N

H

A separate report was not issued for the plan.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Basis of Accounting. The City has chosen to fund the Separation Aliowance on a pay as you go
basis. Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting.

Method Used to Value Investments. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs.
These expenditures are paid as they come due.

3. Contributions.

The City is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has
chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations made in the
General Fund operating budget. The City’s obligation to contribute to this plan is established and
may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. There were no contributions made by
employees.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The City’s annual pension cost and net pension
obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 382,004
interest on net pension obligation (27,731)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 33.086
Annual pension cost 387,359
Contributions made 426,348
(Decrease) in net pension obligation (38,989)
Net pension obligation beginning

of year (554 ,626)

Net pension obligation end of year $ (693.615)

26
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3-Year Trend Information

Annual Percentage
Fiscal Pension of APC Net Pension
Year Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/10 313,873 131.15% (536,821)
6/30/11 387,593 104.59% (554,6286)
6/30/12 387,359 110.07% (593,615)

4. Funded Status and Funding Progress.

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was
$4,075,535. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$6,400,341, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 63.68%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability
for benefits.

5. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The annual required contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is calculated as of
December 31, 2011. In the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 5% investment rate of return, projected
salary increases at 4.25-7.85% and a 3.00% inflation component. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using a market valuation. The UAAL is being amortized on a level percent of pay closed.
The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2011 was 19 years.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

Plan Description. The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement income Plan (Plan), a defined
contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of
Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the City.
Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement
Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North
Carolina. The State’'s CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal
Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law
Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller,
1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410 or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an
amount equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested
immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan.
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2012 were $458,803, which consisted of $305,187 from
the City and $153,616 from the law enforcement officers. The City has elected to contribute to the
Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for general employees as well as for law enforcement officers.
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2012 for general employees were $1,388,244, which
consisted of $923,426 from the City and $464,818 from the general employees.
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Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund

Plan Description. The State of North Carolina contributes, on behaif of the City of Burlington, to the
Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund (Fund), a cost-sharing muitiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation administered by the State of North
Carolina. The Fund provides pension benefits for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have
elected to become members of the fund. Article 86 of G.S. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Firemen’s and
Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund. That report
may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh,
North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The State, a
non-employer contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The City does not contribute to the
Fund. Contribution requirements of plan members and the State of North Carolina are established
and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012, the City has recognized on-behalf of payments for pension contributions made by the State as
revenue and an expenditure of $60,550.

QOther Post-employment Benefits

Healthcare Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 1, the City provides post-employment health
care benefits to retirees who were hired prior to July 1, 2012 and City Council members of the City,
provided they participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(System) and have at least five years of creditable service with the City. The City pays the full cost of
coverage for employees who retire with 25 years of creditable service; 75% of the cost of coverage
for retirees with 20 years of creditable service; 50% of the cost of coverage for retirees with 15 years
of creditable service; and 25% of the cost of coverage for retirees with 10 years of creditable service.
The City pays the full cost of coverage for City Council members with 16 years of service; 75% of the
cost for City Council members with 12 years of service; 50% of the cost of coverage for City Council
members with 8 years of service; and 25% of the cost of coverage for City Council members with 4
years of service. The City's contribution will cease when the retiree reaches age 65. At this point in
time, some City retirees are eligible for Medicare supplement reimbursement. The retiree must have
been covered under the City’s health plan immediately before reaching age 65. The Medicare
supplement reimbursement is also based on years of service. The City pays $159 per month of the
Medicare supplement for employees who retire with 25 years of creditable service; 75% of this
amount of Medicare supplement for employees who retire with 20 years of creditable service, 50% of
this amount of the Medicare supplement for employees who retire with 15 years of creditable service;
and 25% of this amount of the Medicare supplement for employees who retire with 10 years of
creditable service. Also, the City’s retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the City’s
group rates. Currently, 129 retirees are eligible for post-employment health benefits. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2012, the city made payments for post-employment healith benefit premiums of
$830,669. The City obtains healthcare coverage through private insurers.

The City also provides dental coverage to retirees of the City. The City will pay 100% of the dental
premium for employees who retire with 25 years of service, 75% for employees who retire with 20
years of service, 50% for employees who retire with 15 years of service, and 25% for employees with
10 years of service. When a retired employee reaches age 65, the employee is responsible for 100%
of the cost of the premium for dental coverage. The dental coverage ceases at age 70. The plan has
no deductible and will pay a maximum of $1,500 per year for any service provided by a local dentist.
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Membership of the Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2011, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Law
General Enforcement
Employees Officers
Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 161 -
Active plan members 430 129
Total 591 129

Funding Policy. The City pays a portion of or up to the full cost of coverage for the healthcare
benefits paid to qualified retirees under a City resolution that can be amended by the City Council.
The City's members pay 100% for dependent coverage. The City has chosen to fund the healthcare
benefits on a pay as you go basis.

The current ARC rate is 8.98% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the City contributed
$906,777 or 3.77% of annual covered payroll toward actual benefit payments. The City obtains health
care and dental coverage through a self-funded program and through a private insurer for life
insurance benefits. The City’s obligation to contribute to the plan is established and may be amended
by the City Council during the budget process.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Postemployment expenditures are made from the
Internal Service Fund, which is maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. Internal changes are
made to various other City funds for the respective active employees, based upon the pre-determined
City Contribution rate. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These
expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined
in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation for the healthcare

benefits:

Annual required contribution $ 2025128
interest on net OPEB obligation 69,844
Adjustment to annual required contribution 66,722
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 2,028,250
Contributions made 1,320,992
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligations 707,258
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 1,746,093
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 2453351

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for 2012 were as follows:

For Year Ended Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB
June 30 OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2010 $ 1,243,110 68.80% $ 899,948
2011 $ 1,642,420 48.50% $ 1,746,093

2012 $ 2,028,250 65.10% $ 2,453,351
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Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $22,526,021. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $24,050,629, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payrol
was 93.70% percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets , consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return (net of
administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term investment returns on the employer's own
investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual
medical cost trend increase of 9.50 to 5.00 percent annually. The investment rate included a 3.00
percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was determined using a market
valuation. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis.
The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2011 was 30 years.

2. Other Employment Benefit

The City has also elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for
members of the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-
employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The
beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership
in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least
one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death
benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest
months’ salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee's death, but the benefit may not
exceed $50,000 or be less than $25,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death
Benefit Plan. The City has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions
are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates established annually by the
State. Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law
enforcement officers. Because the benefit payments are made by the Death Benefit Plan and not by
the City, the City does not determine the number of eligible participants. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012, the City made contributions to the State for death benefits of $12,044. The City's
required contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement
officers represented 0.09% and 0.14% of covered payroll, respectively. The contributions to the
Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other
benefit amount. The City considers these contributions to be immaterial.
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The Local Government Employees Retirement System provides group-term life insurance to City
employees ranging from $25,000 up to $50,000 depending on their salary. The City also provides
group-term life insurance equal to one and a half times the employee’s salary up to a maximum of
$150,000. Any amount of the two coverages combined that exceeds $50,000 is taxed as an
employee fringe benefit and included on the employee’s annual W-2.

Deferred Revenues/Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred/unearned revenues at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Unearned
Revenue Revenue
Prepaid taxes not yet earned $ $ 235299
Taxes receivable (net) — general fund 1,148,488
Taxes receivable (net) — Downtown Special Tax 61,809
Home loan interest receivable 1,970,775
Prepaid licenses and fees 481,006
Total $3181072 § 716,305

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City partially self-
insures workers compensation coverage, with commercial insurance providing coverage for workers
compensation claims in excess of $200,000 per claim ($225,000 if a vehicle claim). The commercial
insurance provides $1,000,000 in coverage for claims in excess of the City's assumed aggregate risk
of $1,000,000 annually. The City also retains the risk for Employers' Liability Coverage of $500,000 in
aggregate annually. At June 30, 2011 the Workers Compensation Self Insurance Fund had recorded
a liability of $130,000 for estimated unpaid claims.

The City provides its employees with dental coverage through a choice of self-insurance plans.
Covered claims are limited to a maximum of $550 per employee annually. At June 30, 2012, the
Dental Self Insurance Fund had recorded a liability of $64,772 for estimated unpaid claims.

On July 1, 1999, the City began to partially self-insure group health benefits, with commercial
insurance providing coverage for health benefit claims in excess of $75,000 per claim. The
commercial coverage provides $925,000 in coverage for claims in excess of the City’'s assumed
claim risk of $75,000. The City also has commercial coverage for claims exceeding approximately
$1,809,000 in aggregate annually. At June 30, 2012 the Group Health Benefits Fund had a recorded
liability of $499,677 for estimated unpaid claims.
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2012

2011

A summary of changes in the liability recorded for estimated unpaid claims follows:

Estimated
Balance Claims Claims Balance
July 1. 2011 Incurred Paid June 30,2012
Workers Compensation
Self Insurance Fund $ 130,000 $ 725,730 $ 725730 $ 130,000
Dental Self Insurance Fund 63,779 457,315 456,322 64,772
Group Health Benefits Fund 426,835 4,329,859 4,257,017 499,677
$ 620614 $ 5512.904 $ 5,439,069 $ 694449
Estimated
Balance Claims Claims Balance
July 1, 2010 Incurred Paid June 30,2011
Workers Compensation
Self Insurance Fund $ 130,000 $ 246,192 $ 246,192 $ 130,000
Dental Self Insurance Fund 66,120 426,186 428,527 63,779
Group Health Benefits Fund 442 496 3,786,773 3.802.434 426.835
$ 638616 $ 4,459,151 $ 4477153 $ 620614

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in
any of the past three fiscal years. The City has obtained flood insurance coverage through
Millennium Insurance Group; the City has purchased coverage of $1,000,000 per occurrence.

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the City's employees that have access to $100 or more at any given
time of the City’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The finance
officer is individually bonded for $100,000 and the tax collector is bonded for $25,000. The remaining
employees that have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $50,000.

The Burlington Downtown Corporation is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Burlington
Downtown Corporation has property, general liability, workers’ compensation, and employee health
coverages. Claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years and there has
been no significant reduction in insurance coverage in the prior year.

Claims, Judgments, and Contingent Liabilities

At June 30, 2012, the City was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the City's
management and the City attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the City's financial position.
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6. Long-Term Obligations

a. Installment Purchase

On October 11, 1995, the City entered into an installment purchase contract to finance recreational
facility improvements. The financing contract requires thirty semi-annual payments of $161,471
beginning April 11, 1996 with interest at 4.91% per annum. On September 2, 2003, the City amended
its original financing contract to finance the recreational facility improvements. The financing contract
now requires fifteen semi-annual payments of $146,562 beginning October 11, 2003 with interest at
2.6% per annum. On May 13, 2002 the City entered into a second instaliment purchase contract to
finance the construction of the Springwood Recreation Park. The financing contract requires thirty
semi-annual payments of $133,333 beginning November 13, 2002 with interest at 4.78% per annum.
On August 15, 2003, the City amended its second instaliment purchase contract to finance the
construction of the Springwood Recreation Park. The financing contract now requires twenty-eight
semi-annual payments of $133,333 beginning November 13, 2003 with interest at 3.840% per
annum. On November 30, 2008, the City entered into an installment purchase contract to purchase
various pieces of equipment. The financing contract requires three annual payments of $455,041
beginning November 30, 2008 with interest at 3.01% per annum. The installment was paid in full at
June 30, 2010. On April 22, 2010 the City entered into an installment purchase contract to purchase
various pieces of equipment. The financing contract requires three annual payments of $366,492
beginning April 22, 2010 with interest at 2.05% per annum. On September 28, 2010 the City entered
into an installment purchase contract to purchase various pieces of equipment. The financing
contract requires three annual payments of $335,717 beginning September 28, 2010 with interest at
1.550% per annum. On September 13, 2011 the City entered into an instaliment purchase to
purchase various pieces of equipment. The financing contract requires three annual payments of
$428,671 beginning September 13, 2011 with interest at 1.47% per annum.

Annual debt service payments of the installment purchase as of June 30, 2012, including $164,465
of interest, are as follows:
Governmental Activities

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest

2013 $ 1,013,600 $ 66,094
2014 689,128 44,610
2015 266,667 28,160
2016 266,667 17,920
2017 266,667 7.680
Present value of the minimum lease payments $ 2502729

Total interest payments $ 164,464

b. General Obligation Indebtedness

The City's general obligation bonds serviced by the governmental funds were issued for the acquisition of
public safety equipment. Those general obligation bonds issued to finance the construction of facilities
utilized in the operations of the water and sewer system and which are being retired by its resources are
reported as long-term debt in the Water and Sewer Fund. All general obligation bonds are collateralized
by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the City. Principal and interest requirements are appropriated
when due.
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Bonds payable at June 30, 2012 are comprised of the following individual issues:

General Obligation Bonds

Serviced by the General Fund:

$5,521,801 of 2005 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual
installments of $31,305 to $662,616 through February 1, 2019; interest at
rates ranging from 3.75% to 5.00% per annum. 4,050,480

$9,300,000 of 2006 General Obligation Street Bonds due in annual

instaliments of $465,000 through June 1, 2026; interest at rates ranging

from 3.60% to 4.20% per annum. The amount shown includes the

unamortized bond premium of $43,597. 6,553,601

Serviced by the Water and Sewer Fund:

$10,353,198 of 2005 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual

installments of $58,695 to $1,242,384 through February 1, 2019; interest

at rates ranging from 3.75% to 5.00% per annum. 7,594,520
18,198,601

At June 30, 2012 the City of Burlington had a legal debt margin of $324,484,110.

General Obligation Bonds

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term obligations are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 1,110,225 $ 441943 $ 1,209,775 $ 326,656
2014 1,105,007 397,534 1,199,993 278,266
2015 1,103,268 346,934 1,196,732 218,266
2016 1,103,268 296,421 1,196,732 158,429
2017 1,096,315 248,802 1,183,689 110,559
2018-2022 3,182,401 711,936 1,607,599 79,598
2023-2026 1,860,000 193,789 - -
Total $ 10,560,484 $ 2637359 $ 7,594,520 $ 1171774

Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds

$2,899,000 of Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds (Direct Payment)

with 1 payment of $173,074 and 14 instaliments of $194,709 due on February 1

maturing on February 1, 2025; plus interest at 5.89% due on August 1 and February 1.

The city receives a subsidiary of 45% of interest cost from the Federal

Government reducing the effective interest rate to 2.65%. $ 2531217
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Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds

Net
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Subsidy Interest
2013 $ 194,709 $ 149,088 $ 67,090 $ 81,998
2014 194,709 137,620 61,930 75,690
2015 194,708 126,152 56,768 69,384
2016 194,709 114,684 51,608 63,076
2017 194,709 103,215 46,447 56,768
2018-2022 973,545 344,050 154,823 189,227
2023-2025 584,127 68,810 30,965 37.845
Total $ 2531217 $ 1043619 $ 469,631 $ 573,988

d. Revenue Bonds

$11,825,000 of Combined Enterprise System Revenue bonds, Series 2010A
Interest is payable semiannually on February 1% and August 1™ at a fixed rate
ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. Principal amounts will be due on February 1%

beginning in 2012 and maturing in 2024. $ 10,865.000
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest
2013 $ 1,045,000 $ 464,525
2014 1,060,000 412,275
2015 1,085,000 359,275
2016 1,080,000 329,438
2017 1,085,000 286,238
2017-2022 4,205,000 781,190
2023-2024 1,305,000 86,338

$ _10.,865.000 $  2719.279

$10,700,000 of Combined Enterprise System Revenue bonds, Series 20108

Build America Bonds (Direct Payment). Interest is payable semiannually on

February 1% and August 1! at a fixed rate of 5.412% to 6.975%. The City will

receive a subsidy of 35 percent of interest cost from the Federal Government. $ 10,700,000

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest
2013 $ - $ 702,820
2014 - 702,820
2015 - 702,820
2016 - 702,820
2017 - 702,820
2018-2022 1,400,000 3,440,226
2023-2027 2,705,000 2,815,634
2028-2032 3,340,000 1,844,940
2033-2036 3,255,000 580,320

$ 10,700,000 $ 12,195.220
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Revenue bonds (continued)

$18,370,000 of Combined Enterprise System Revenue bonds, Series 2011
Interest is payable semiannually on February 1% and August 1% at a fixed rate
ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. Principal amounts will be due on February 1%

beginning in 2012 and maturing in 2037. $ 18,370.000
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest

2013 $ 450,000 $ 760,525
2014 465,000 747,025
2015 475,000 733,075
2016 495,000 714,075
2017 515,000 694,275
2018-2022 2,900,000 3,145,575
2023-2027 3,480,000 2,567,952
2028-2032 4,260,000 1,785,865
2033-2037 5,330,000 722477

$_18,370.000 $ 11.870.844

The City has been in compliance with the covenants as to rates, fees, rentals and charges in Section 704
of the Bond Order, authorizing the issuance of the Water and Sewer Bonds, Series 2010A, 2010 B and
2011 since its adoption. The City has pledged future water and sewer customer revenues, net of
specified operating expenses, for repayment of $75,009,946 in water and sewer system revenue bonds
issue 2010A and 2010 B and 2011. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for various upgrades
and repairs to the city’s dams, water and sewer plants. The bonds are payable solely from water and
sewer customer net revenues and are payable through 2037. The total principal and interest remaining to
be paid on all outstanding series of revenue bonds was $75,009,946 as of June 30, 2012. Certain
financial covenants are combined in the revenue bond order, including a covenant to budget and collect
revenues in the combined enterprise system sufficient enough to pay the principal and interest
requirements and maintain unrestricted net assets at a level that provides that 15% of unrestricted net
assets on the last day of the fiscal year is not less than 120% of the long-term debt service requirement
for parity indebtedness for such fiscal year. Pledged unrestricted net assets at June 30, 2012 were

$ 5,026,180 to provide a coverage ratio of 336%. The long-term debt service coverage ratio calculations
for the year ended June 30, 2012, is as follows:

Operating revenues 21,389,894
Operating expenses™ 14,385,550
Operating income 7,004,344
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)™ 1,082,502
income available for debt service 8,086,846
Debt service, principal and interest paid

(Revenue bond only) 2,461,048
Debt service coverage ratio 329%

*Per rate covenants, this does not include the depreciation expense of $ 4,310,657

** Par rate covenants, this does not include revenue bond interest paid of $1,501,048

The City also has $10,364,741 of System GO Indebtedness outstanding that is associated with the bonds.
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Advance Refunding

On September 1, 2005, the City issued $15,875,000 in general obligation Refunding Bonds with
interest at rates ranging from 3.50% to 5.00% to advance refund $15,700,000 of outstanding 2000
General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds with interest rates ranging from 5.00% to 5.20%. The
total of the bonds advance refunded by the City was $15,875,000. The net proceeds of the
$15,875,000 refunding bonds were used to purchase U.S. government securities. These securities
were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments on the Refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered defeased and the
liability for the refunded bonds has been removed from the General Fund and Water and Sewer
Fund. At June 30, 2006, there was no principal balance outstanding on the refunded bonds.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $175,000. This difference related to water and sewer bonds, net of current
year's amortization of $114,130, is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction
from bonds payable and is being charged to operations through the year 2010, the life of the
refunded debt which is shorter than the life of the new debt, using the effective-interest method. The
bond issuance costs associated with the advance refunding were capitalized and are being amortized
over the life of the refunded debt. The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total future
debt service payments by $1,955,663.

Detail Notes on All Funds: (continued)

On December 31, 2010 the City issued $11,825,000 in Combined System Revenue Bonds with
interest ranging from 2.75% to 5% with a final maturity in 2024. These bonds were issued to defease
the 2004 Certificates of Participation and for the water and sewer project. The amount defeased was
$9,940,000. The net proceeds of $8,963,078 along with the City’s payment of $2,100,391 were used
to purchase U.S. government t securities. These securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with
an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the Certificates. As a result, the
liabilities for the 2004 Certificates of Participation have been removed from the Water & Sewer Fund.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $153,460. This difference related to water and sewer certificates is reported
in the accompanying financial statements as an addition to bonds payable and is being amortized
over the life of the new debt. The bond issuance costs associated with the advance refunding were
capitalized and are being amortized over the life of the refunded debt. The City completed the
advance refunding to reduce its total future debt service payments by $1,614,608.
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f. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Governmental activities:
General Obligation bonds
Add: Bond premium

Total General Obligation bonds
RZED Bonds

installment purchase
Compensated absences
OPERB liability

Governmental activity long-term
liabilities

Business-type activities:
General obligation bonds

Revenue Bonds
Add: deferred amount for gain
on defeasance
Add: Bond premium

Total revenue bonds
Compensated absences
OPEB liability

Business-type activity
long-term liabilities
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Balance Balance Portion

July 1, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30, 2012 of Balance
$11,677623 §$ - $1,117,139 $ 10,560,484 $ 1,110,225
47 322 - 3.725 43,597 -
$11.724945 % - $1,120.864 $ 10604081 $ 1,110,225
$ 2,725,926 $ - $ 194709 $ 2531217 $ 194,709
$ 2615271 $ 1,267,473 $ 1,380,015 $ 2,502,729 $ 1,013,601
2,307,490 1,356,477 1,455,496 2,208,471 795,050
1,501,640 608,242 - 2.109.882 -
$20.875272 $ 3232192 $4.151,084 $ 19956380 $ 3,113,585
$8,817,338 % - $1222818 $ 7594520 $1,209,775
$22.,525.,000 $ 18,370,000 $ 960,000 $ 39,935,000 $1,495,000
147,558 - 51,155 96,403 -
463,305 569,708 42,803 990,210 -
$23,135.863 $18,939.708 $ 1.053,958 $ 41.021613 $ 1,495.000
$ 476645 $ 314,455 $ 398,008 % 393,092 $ 131,156
244 453 99.016 - 343469 -
$32.674,299 $19.353.179 $ 2,674,784 $ 49352694 § 2,835931

Compensated absences for governmental activities has typically been liquidated in the General Fund.
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C. Interfund Balances and Activity

Due to/Due From between the Governmental and Proprietary funds is due to the internal service fund being blended into
the Governmental fund of $103,618.

Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2012 consist of the following:

Transfers
In Out
Transfers To/From Other Funds:
General Fund
Capital Reserve Fund 1,340,000 1,000,000
Group Health Benefits - 35,002
MPO Planning Transportation - 50,379
Workmen's Compensation - 377,854
Mebane St. /Grandoaks Sidewalks 189,704 -
Renovation Existing Recreation Park Facility - 34,895
ARRA Piedmont Widening - 1,905
Total General Fund 1,529,704 1,500,035
Capital Reserve Fund
General Fund 1,000,000 1,340,000
Drainage Improvements 25,000
Total Capital Reserve 1,000,000 1,365,000
Special Revenue Funds
MPO Planning Transportation
General Fund 50,379
Home Program Project Fund
Rental Rehabilitation Loan Program Fund 21,412
Rental Rehabilitation Loan Program Fund
Home Program Project Fund 21,412
Downtown Special Tax District
Energy Efficiency Conservative Fund 16,089
Total Special Revenue Fund 71,791 37,501
internal Service Funds
Group Health Benefits
General Fund 35,002
Water & Sewer Fund 70,000
Workmen's Compensation Fund
General Fund 377,854
Water & Sewer Fund 143,570

Total Internal Service Fund 626,426
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Transfers
In Out
Water Fund
Water Capital Reserve 872,973
Sewer Capital Reserve 872,973
Workmen's Compensation 143,570
Group Health Insurance 70,000
Elevated Storage Tank 27,771
Total Water Fund 27,771 1,959,516
Water Capital Projects
Water Capital Reserve
Water & Sewer Fund 872,973
Sewer Capital Reserve
Water & Sewer Fund 872,973
Jordan Lake Rules Project 1,400,000
Jordan Lake Rules Project
Sewer Capital Reserve 1,400,000
Elevated Storage Tank
Water & Sewer Fund 27,771
Total Water Capital Projects 3,145,946 1,427,771
Capital Projects
Mebane St./ Grand Oaks Sidewalk
General Fund - 189,704
Renovation of Existing Rec. & Park Facilities
General Fund 34,895
Drainage Improvement Project
Capital Reserve Fund 25,000
ARRA Piedmont Way Widening
General Fund 1,905
Energy Efficiency Upgrade Main Street 2
Downtown Special Tax District 16,089
Total Capital Projects 77.889 189,704
Total Operating Transfers $ 6,479,527 6.479.527

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs that the government must
account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts providing
matching funds for various grant programs.
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D. Prior Period Adiustment

The City recorded a prior period adjustment which increased Beginning Net Assets of the
Governmental Activities by $296,551. This adjustment resulted from an increase of $366,657 to
adjust the cumulative number for the blending of the internal service funds into the governmental
financials. The adjustment also resulted from a decrease of $70,106 as a result of a receivable being
booked for additional funds from a lease agreement that had actually been received in the year the
agreement was signed.

E. On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City of Burlington has recognized on-behalf payments
for pension contributions made by the State as a revenue and an expenditure of $30,572 for the 88
employed fireman who perform firefighting duties for the City’s fire department. The employees
elected to be members of the Firemen and Rescue Worker's Pension Fund, a cost-sharing, multiple
employer public employee retirement system established and administered by the State of North
Carolina. The Plan is funded by a $10 monthly contribution paid by each member, investment
income, and a State appropriation.

Also, the City has recognized as a revenue and an expenditure on-behalf payments for fringe benefits
and salaries of $29,978 for the salary supplement and stipend benefits paid to eligible firemen by the
local board of trustees of the Firemen’s Relief Fund during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Under
State law the local board of trustees for the Fund receives an amount each year, which the board may
use at its own discretion for eligible firemen or their departments.

F. Fund Balance

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General
fund balance that is available for appropriation:

Total fund balance — General Fund $33,593,269
Less:

Stabilization by State Statute 6,113,452
Historic Books 1,418
Animal Shelter 562
Appropriated Fund Balance in 2012 budget 2,053,816
General Government 4,316,000
Public Works 3,125,000
Parks and Recreation 1,321,156
Public Safety 5,450,000
Working Capital/Fund Balance Policy 11,211,865

Remaining Fund Balance -

IV. Jointly Governed Organization

The City, in conjunction with six counties and thirty-two other municipalities, established the Piedmont
Triad Council of Governments (Council). The participating governments established the Council to
coordinate various funding received from federal and State agencies. Each participating government
appoints one member to the Council's governing board. The City paid membership fees of $15,035 to
the Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.



V. Joint Ventures

The City, in conjunction with the City of Graham, participates in the Burlington-Graham Board of
Alcoholic Control. Each participating government appoints two members to the five-member board.
The two governments jointly appoint one member to the Board. The ABC Board is a joint venture
established to facilitate control over alcoholic beverages within the two cities. The City of Burlington
and the City of Graham are legally obligated under the intergovernmental agreement that created the
ABC Board to honor any deficiencies in the event that proceeds from other default remedies are
insufficient. The two cities were not required to contribute to the ABC Board during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012. The participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint
venture, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2012.
Complete financial statements for the ABC Board can be obtained from the administrative offices at
603 W. Harden Street, City of Graham, NC 27253.

VI. Related Organization

The members of the governing board of the Burlington Housing Authority are appointed by the City
but the City has no authority in selecting the management of the Authority. The City is not
responsible for financing any deficits of the Authority nor is it entitled to any surpluses. The Authority
does operate within the geographical boundaries of the City and is for the benefit of the residents of
the City. The City exercises no financial or budgetary control over the Authority.

VII. Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The City has received proceeds from federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant
agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies.
Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in
the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys.

See independent auditor’s report.
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REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted accounting
principles.

- Schedule of Funding Progress for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation
Allowance.

- Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance.

- Notes to the Required Schedules for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation
Allowance.

- Schedule of Funding Progress for the Other Postemployment Benefits.
- Schedule of Employer Contributions for the the Other Postemployment Benefits.

- Notes to the Required Schedules for the Other Postemployment Benefits.
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LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS’ SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
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Actuarial
Actuarial Value of
Valuation Assets **

Date * (a)

12/31/06
12/31/07
12/31/08
12/31/09
12/31/10

12/31/11

*

Information is based on the

** At Cost.

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)
Projected
Unit Unfunded Funded
Credit AAL (UAAL) Ratio
(b) (b-a) (a/b)
- 2,888,027 2,888,027 -%
- 3,305,028 3,305,028 -%
- 3,440,042 3,440,042 -%
- 4,198,917 4,198,917 -%
- 4,027,810 4,027,810 %
4,075,535 4,075,535 %

UAAL as
a % of
Covered Covered
Payroll Payroll
(c) ({(b-a)(c)
4,821,106 59.90%
5,104,180 64.75%
5,660,065 60.78%
6,192,080 67.81%
6,454,034 62.41%
6,400,341 63.68%

actuarial studies performed as of December 31, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008,
2007, and 2006 respectively. No actuarial studies were performed for the City prior to 1996.
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LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS’ SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
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SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Annual

Year Ended Required Percentage

June 30 Contribution Contributed
2007 $ 253,886 127.16%
2008 257,507 151.40%
2009 288,703 144.91%
2010 313,873 131.15%
2011 387,593 104.59%
2012 387,359 110.07%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date 12/31/2011
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closed
Remaining amortization period 19 Years
Asset Valuation Method Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return” 5.00%

Projected salary increases” 4.25% - 7.85%

* Includes inflation at 3.00%

Cost of living adjustments N/A
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
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Actuarial
Valuation
Date *

12/31/09
12/31/10
12/31/11

Actuarial
Value of
Assets **

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) UAAL as
Projected a % of
Unit Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Credit AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
(b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) {{(b-a)/c)
- $22,509,884 22,509,884 % $ 23,783,806 94.60%
- 25,648,600 25,648,600 -% 24,696,478 103.90%
- 22,526,021 22,526,021 -% 24,050,629 93.70%
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed
2010 1,243,110 68.80%
2011 1,642,420 48.50%
2012 2,028,250 65.10%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation foliows:

Valuation date 12/31/2011

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level Dollar Amount, Closed
Remaining amortization period 30 Years

Asset Valuation Method Market Value of Assets

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return® 4.00%
Projected salary increases” 9.50%-5.00%
Year of Ultimate trend rate 2018

* Includes inflation at 3.00%
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GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net):
Taxes

Accounts

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenues

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES:

Restricted :
Stabilization for Stabilization by State Statute
Historic Books
Animal Shelter

Assigned
Subsequent Years Expenditures
General Government
Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Public Safety

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

$

June 30,

2012

30,648,128

1,148,489
6,031,339

37,827,956

2,452,006
1,782,681

4,234,687

6,113,452
1,418
562

2,053,816
4,316,000
3,125,000
1,321,156
5,450,000
11.211.865

33,593,269

37,827,956
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48

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE —

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Current year
Prior year
Penalties and interest
Tax discounts

Total

Other Taxes and Licenses:
Payment in lieu of taxes
Privilege licenses
Cable TV franchise tax
Local option sales tax

Total

Unrestricted Intergovernmental
Revenues:
Utility franchise tax
Beer and wine tax
Alamance County fuel
purchase
ABC revenue
Alamance Jr. Tennis
Foundation

Total

Restricted intergovernmental
Revenues:
ABC police contract
Powell Bill allocation
N. C. Department of
Transportation
On-behalf of Payments-
Fire and rescue
Camp Green Leaves
PTCOG Grants
Alamance-Burlington
Schools — Afterschool
Program
Alamance-Burlington
Schools — School Guards
Recycling Grant
Fire grants
Animal Shelter
Spay/Neuter Clinic
Teen to Teen Theatre

Budget Actual

$ 23,839,958
824,005
214,563
(283.835)

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

23.391.759 24,594,691

1,202,932

122,476
564,673
384,794
9.189,185

9,556,336 10,261,128

704,792

3,272,612
218,694

676,294
105,979

20,778

4.028.000 4,294,357

266,357

19,597
1,381,697

477,753

60,550
12,848
16,754

133,739

80,080
21,156
1,000
5,224
1,600
2,893

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE —
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues: (continued)
Restricted Intergovernmental
Revenues: (continued)
Junior Police Academy 5,006
Recreation 70,449
Senior Programs 45,867
Reimbursed Cost 110,997
Total 2,305,189 2.447.210 142,021
Permits and Fees:
Building permits and
inspection fees 480,567
Fees and permits — other 544 909
Total 878,400 1,025.476 147,076
Sales and Services:
Animal Control — Alamance
County 317,722
Miscellaneous 209,892
Recreation department
revenues 1,968,598
Cemetery lots and fees 124,325
Sanitation fees 1,289,117
Total 3,855,354 3.909.654 54.300
Investment Earnings:
Investment earnings 39,135
Interest Subsidy 72,251
Interest earned —street
assessments 7,391
Vacant Lot/ Demo
Interest 39,212
Total 377,251 157,989 (219.262)
Miscellaneous:
Sale of properties and
materials 70,222
Miscellaneous 118,990
Total 171,000 189.212 18.212
Total Revenues 44 563,289 46,879,717 2,316,428

Continued on next page.
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GENERAL FUND
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE —

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures:
General Government:
City Council:
Salaries and employee
benefits 75,340
Operating
expenditures 67,965
Total 143,305
Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer Fund (29,325)
Total City Council 124,877 113,980 10,897
Public Administration:
Salaries and employee
benefits 292 515
Operating expenditures 16.678
Total 309,193
Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer Fund (86,259)
Total Public Administration 223,448 222,934 514
Public Information:
Salaries and employee
benefits 69,490
Operating expenditures 65,812
Total 135,302
Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer Fund (43,988)
Total Public Information 118.917 91,314 27.603
Finance:
Supervision:
Salaries and employee
benefits 391,756
Operating
expenditures 17,486
Total 409,242
Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer
Fund (200,047)
Net 209,195

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
General Government: (continued)
Finance(continued):
Collections:
Salaries and employee
benefits 272,935
Operating expenditures 65,410
Total 338,345
Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer Fund (142,222)
Net 196,123
Purchasing:
Salaries and employee
benefits 229,894
Operating expenditures 11.779
Total Purchasing 241,673
Total Finance 858,371 646,991 211,380
Information Technologies:
Salaries and employee
benefits 505,069
Operating expenditures 425177
Capital outlay 56,899
Total 987,145
Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer Fund (249.,634)
Total Information
Technologies 783,034 737.511 45523
Legal:
Salaries and employee
benefits 105,148
Operating expenditures 119,834
Total 224,982
Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer Fund (129.956)
Total Legal 558,009 95,026 462,983

Continued on next page.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Expenditures: (continued)
General Government: (continued)
Human Resources:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures

Total

Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer Fund

Total Human Resources
Planning GIS Division:
Salaries and employee
Benefits
Operating expenditures
Total

Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer Fund

Total Planning GIS Division
Planning:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures
Total

Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer Fund

Total Planning

Inspections:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Total

Reimbursement from
Water and Sewer Fund

Total Inspections

Budget Actual

229,542
373.796

603,338

(114.,348)

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

490,810 488,990

1,820

156,861
38.027

194,888

(116,953)

147,370 77.935

69,435

549,170
53,892

603,062

(116.,953)

513.298 486,109

27.189

246,857
66,625
15.865

329,347

(116.953)

281,386 212.394

68,992

Continued on next page.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
General Government: (continued)

Engineering:

Salaries and employee

benefits 526,075

Operating expenditures 47,400

Capital Outlay 12.695

Total 586,170

Reimbursement from

Water and Sewer Fund (253,358)
Total Engineering 377,362 332,812 44,550
Traffic Control Supervisor:

Salaries and employee

benefits 417,157

Operating expenditures 280,535

Capital Outlay 24,216
Total Traffic Control 794,489 721,908 72,581
Transportation Tech Services:

Salaries and employee

benefits 571,004

Operating expenditures 45,017

Capital Outlay 20,903
Total Transportation Tech
Services 705,394 636,924 68,470
Street lighting 555,000 555,747 (747)
General Administration and
Building:

Salaries and employee

benefits 1,456,711

Insurance 447,740

Operating expenditures 386,247

Special projects 319,645
Total General Administration

and Building 2,953,047 2,610,343 342.704
Total General Government 9,484,812 8,030,918 1,453,894

Continued on next page.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE —

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Public Safety:
Police:

Administration:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Total

Records:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating
expenditures

Total

Training and Personnel
Services:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures
Capital Outlay

Total

Criminal Investigations:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures

Total
Field Operations Division:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures
Total
Retirees:
Salaries and employee
benefits

Total

Actual

745,237
764,452
630,233

2,139,922

135,212

150,766

285,978

173,903
156,474
80,329

410,706

1,344,956
72,523

1,417,479

5,189,566
14,169

5,203,735

455,184

455,184

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

Continued on next page.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Expenditures: (continued)
Public Safety: (continued)
Police: (continued)

Community Policing:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures

Total

Animal Services-Field:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating
expenditures

Total

Identification:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures

Total

Communications:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures
Capital Outlay

Total

Animal Services Shelter:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures
Capital Outlay

Total

informational Services:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating
expenditures

Total

Actual

188,140
38.352

226,492

109,019

526

109.545

170,478
18,391

188.869

657,823
289,914
176.316

124,053

480,268
208,528
20427

709,223

73,645

498

74.143

Continued on next page.
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
Public Safety: (continued)
Police: (continued)
Spay/Neuter:
Salaries and employee
benefits 26,226
Operating
expenditures 56,205
Total 82.431
Special Operations:
Salaries and employee
benefits 1,161,590
Operating expenditures 72,185
Total 1,233,775
Emergency Management:
Salaries and employee
benefits 38,073
Operating expenditures 2.007
Total 40.080
Total Police 15,138,522 13,701,615 1,436,907
Fire:
Supervision:
Salaries and employee
benefits 565,061
Operating expenditures 18,913
Total 583,974
Training:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenditures 152,702
Capital outlay 12,779
Total 165,481
Industrial Inspection
and Prevention:
Salaries and employee
Benefits 379,620
Operating
expenditures 15,278
Total 394,898

Continued on next page.



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

57

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
Public Safety: (continued)
Fire: (continued)
Fire Fighting:
Salaries and employee
benefits 4,311,054
Operating expenditures 227,022
Capital Outlay 365,973
Total 4.904.049
Fire Station and Buildings:
Operating expenditures 144,198
Total 144,198
Training Center:
Operating
expenditures 51,208
Total 51,208
Emergency Response
Equipment:
Operating expenditures 177,320
Total 177.320
Total Fire 6,955,511 6,421,128 534,383
Total Public Safety 22,094,033 20,122,743 1,971,290
Public Works:
Public Works Department:
Public Works Supervision:
Salaries and employee
benefits 234,703
Operating
expenditures 15,447
Total 250,150

Continued on next page.
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures (continued):
Public Works Department (continued):
Public Works Supervision (continued):
Building Maintenance:
Salaries and employee
benefits 518,963
Operating expenditures 51,974
Total 570,937
Engineering:
Salaries and employee
Benefits 91,871
Operating expenditures 39,868
Capital Outlay 35,175
Total 166,914
Equipment Maintenance:
Salaries and employee 648,030
benefits
Operating expenditures 687,596
Total 1,335,626
Street Signs - Marking:
Salaries and employee
benefits 144,194
Operating expenditures 51,513
Capital Outlay 11,745
Total 207,452
Municipal Building:
Operating expenditures 203,615
Capital outlay 11,013
Total 214,628
May Memorial Library:
Operating
expenditures 132,027
Total 132,027
Total Public Works
Department 2,951,868 2.877.734 74,134
Street Department:
Supervision:
Salaries and employee
benefits 158,176
Operating
expenditures 23,230
Total 181,406

Continued on next page.
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures (continued):
Public Works Department (continued):
Street Department (continued):
Maintenance-Paved Streets:
Salaries and employee
benefits 723,015
Operating 1,245,244
expenditures
Capital Outlay 105.649
Total 2,073,908
Total Street Department 2410,169 2,255.314 154,855
Sanitation Department:
Supervision:
Salaries and employee
benefits 134,406
Operating
expenditures 29.217
Total 163,623
Garbage and Waste
Collection:
Salaries and employee
benefits 663,625
Operating expenditures 2,110,986
Recycling collection
fee 549,912
Capital Outlay 230,908
Total 3,555,431
Total Sanitation 3,656,448 3,719.054 (62.606)
Cemetery Department:
Maintenance:
Supervision:
Salaries and
employee
benefits 152,207
Operating
expenditures 6,263
Total 158,470

Continued on next page.
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Public Works Department (continued):
Cemetery (continued):
Interment and
Maintenance:
Salaries and employee
benefits 492,738
Operating
expenditures 161,030
Capital Outlay 36,831
Total 690,599
Total Cemetery 908,902 849,069 59,833
Street Tree Program:
Operating expenditures 29,435
Total Street Program 41,336 29,435 11,901
Total Public Works 9,968,723 9,730,606 238.117
Cultural and Recreation:
Recreation:
Supervision:
Salaries and employee
benefits 528,240
Operating
expenditures 33,836
Total 562.076
Day Camps and Afterschools:
Salaries and employee
benefits 493,033
Operating
expenditures 112,039
Capital Outlay 49,394
Total 654,466

Continued on next page.
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Expenditures: (continued)
Cultural and Recreation:
Recreation: (continued)

Athletics:
Salaries and employee
benefits 638,915
Operating expenditures 505,877
Total 1,144,792

Special Events:
Salaries and employee

benefits 26,744

Operating

expenditures 173,632
Total 200,376

Fairchild Stadium:

Operating

expenditures 53,269
Total 53,269

Recreation Buildings:
Salaries and employee

benefits 1,009,243
Operating expenditures 553,935
Special projects 37,712
Capital outlay 22,464

Total 1,623,354
Aquatics:
Salaries and employee

benefits 237,047

Operating expenditures 150,137
Total 387,184

Continued on next page.
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
Cultural and Recreation:
Recreation: (continued)
Camp Green Leaves:
Salaries and employee
benefits 34,483
Operating expenditures 21,319
Total 55,802
Amusement Park:
Salaries and employee
benefits 134,443
Operating
expenditures 125,739
Total 260,182
Golf Course:
Salaries and employee
benefits 395,862
Operating expenditures 274,437
Capital outlay 26.801
Total 697,100
Paramount Theater:
Salaries and employee
benefits 138,724
Operating
expenditures 50,422
Total 189,146
Total Cultural and
Recreation 5,834,507 5827747 6.760

Continued on next page.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
Debt Service:
Principal - bond 1,117,176 1,117,174 2
Interest and other 486,629 486,628 1
charges - bond
Principal - capital lease 1,589,725 1,574,724 15,001
Interest and other
charges - capital lease 236,969 236,969 -
Total Debt Service 3,430,499 3,415,495 15,004
Total Expenditures 50,812,574 47,127,509 3,685,065
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (6,249.285) (247.792) 6,001,493
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from (to) other funds:
Mebane St./Grand oaks
Sidewalk 190,000 189,704 (296)
Worker's Compensation
Self Insurance Fund (377,854) (377,854) -
Issuance from installment
financing 1,267,473 1,267,473 -
Group Health Benefits (35,002) (35,002) -
MPO Transportation (50,556) (50,379) 177
Capital Reserve Fund (1,000,000) (1,000,000) -
ARRA Widening
Piedmont (1,906) (1,905) 1
Renovation Parks &
Recreation Facilities (34,896) (34,896) -
Capital Outlay 1,340,000 1,340,000 -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 1,297.259 1,297,141 (118)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Uses (4,952,026) 1,049,349 § 6,001,375
Fund Balance Appropriated 4,952,022
s -
Fund Balances beginning 32,614,026
Prior Period Adjustment (70,106)
Fund Balance beginning, restated 32,543,920
Fund Balances, ending 33,593,269
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Revenues:
Investment Earnings

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Professional services

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from (to) other funds
General Fund
Drainage Improvement
Project
General Fund

Total Other Financing
Sources

Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund balance, appropriated
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ - $ 85,460 $ 85,460
- 85,460 85,460
975,000 - 975.000
975,000 - 975,000
3 (975.000) 85,460 $ 1,060,460
1,000,000 1,000,000 -
(25,000) (25,000) -
(1,340,000) (1,340,000) -
(365,000) (365,000) -
$  (1,340,000) (279,540) $ 1,060,460
1,340,000
s -
18,603,387
$ 18.323.847
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net:
Taxes
Accounts
Housing rehabilitation loans
Home incentive loans

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund balances:

Restricted:

Stabilization by State
Statute

Economic Development

Public Safety

Committed for Capital
Development

Assigned for Subsequent
Expenditures

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Total Nonmajor

Special Revenue Capital Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds

$ 1,471,361 977,891 § 2,449,252
61,809 - 61,809

263,756 - 263,756

2,370,226 - 2,370,226
6,278,045 - 6,278,045

$ 10,445,197 977891 % 11,423,088
$ 249,141 - % 249,141
2,114,696 - 2,114,696
2,363,837 - 2,363,837
7,400,720 - 7,400,720

345,649 - 345,649

- 977,891 977,891

491,785 - 491,785
(156,794) - (156,794)
8,081,360 977,891 9,059,251

$ 10,445,197 § 977,891 § 11,423,088




CiTY OF BURLINGTON
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Total Nonmajor

Special Revenue Capital Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes 5 126,220 % - % 126,220
Unrestricted intergovernmental 214,929 - 214,929
Restricted intergovernmental 1,441,305 134,862 1,576,167
Sales and services 38,303 - 38,303
Investment earnings 806 5,476 6,282
Miscellaneous 163,794 - 163,794
Total revenues 1,985,357 140,338 2,125,695
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety 747,745 - 747,745
Economic and physical development 1,574,410 - 1,574,410
Culture and recreation 154,166 - 154,166
Capital Outlay - 229,507 229,507
Total expenditures 2,476,321 229,507 2,705,828
Revenues over (under) expenditures (490,964) (89,169) (580,133)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 71,791 77,891 149,682
Transfers to other funds (37,501) (189,704) (227,205)
Total other financing sources 34,290 (111,813) (77,523)
Revenue and other sources over
expenditures and other uses (456,674) (200,982) (657,656)
Fund balances:
Fund balances - beginning 8,538,034 1,178,873 9,716,907

Fund balances - ending 3 8,081,360 $ 977,891 9,059,251




SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedules
and
Individual Fund Schedules






CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2012
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Rental Downtown HOME All
Community Rehabili- Rehabili- Special Tax Program Hazard
Development tation Loan  tation Loan District Project RICO Preparedness
Fund Program Fund Program Fund  Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33182 $ 323618 § 361563 § - 8 - $ 341669 % -
Receivables (net):
Taxes - - - 61,809 - - -
Accounts 3,575 33,213 148,645 2,195 - - -
Housing Rehabilitation loans - 1,922,534 447 692 - - - -
Home Incentive loans - 81,493 - - 6,196,552 - -
Due from other funds - - - - - - -
Total assets $ 36757 $ 2,360,858 $ 957900 $ 64,004 $ 6196552 § 341669 $ -
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities $ 4812 & 2679 § - % 2195 § 42743 $ 4284 $§ 6922
Due to other funds - - - - - - -
Deferred revenue - - - 61,809 2,052,887 - -
Total liabilities 4,812 2,679 - 64,004 2,095,630 4,284 6,922
Fund Balances:
Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute - - - - - - -
Economic Development 31,945 2,207,229 930,788 3,904,740
Public Safety 243,312
Assigned
Subsequent Years Expenditures - 150,950 27,112 - 196,182 94,073 -
Unassigned - - - - - - (6,922)
Total fund balances 31,945 2,358,179 957,900 - 4,100,922 337,385 (6,922)
Total liabilities and fund
balances $ 236757 $ 2,360,858 $ 957900 $ 64004 $ 6196552 § 341669 § -
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Edward Governor Bureau of Justice
Byrne Crime Controlied MPO Energy Medicare Assistance
Justice Commission Guilford Substance Planning Efficiency Part D Community
Assistance Project Safe  Mackintosh Tax Transportation Conservative Grant Project Oriented
Grant Fund Neighborhood Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Policing Grant Totals
$ 65053 $ 10,000 $ - $ 57752 $ 285217 § - 3 13,307 % - § 1471361
- - - - - - - - 61,809
- - 28,634 - 47,494 - - - 263,756
- - - - - - - - 2,370,226
- - - - - - - - 6,278,045
$ 65053 § 10,000 $ 28634 $ 57,752 & 312711 § - $ 13,307 $ - $10,445197
3 7,000 § - § 28634 $ - % - 3% - § - $ 149,872 249,141
- - - - - - - - 2,114,696
7,000 - 28,634 - - - - 149,872 2,363,837
- 312,711 - 13,307 - 7,400,720
58,053 10,000 34,284 - - - 345,649
- - - 23,468 - - - - 491,785
- - - - - - - (149,872) (156,794)
58,053 10,000 - 57,752 312,711 - 13,307 (149,872) 8,081,360
$ 65053 § 10,000 $ 28634 $ 57,752 § 312711 § - % 13,307 3§ - $10445197
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Rehabiliation Rental Downtown HOME All
Community Loan Rehabili- Special Tax  Program Hazard
Development Program tation Loan District Project RICO  Preparedness
Fund Fund Program Fund  Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues:
Ad Valorem taxes $ - 8 - 8 - $126,220 % - 8 - % -
Unrestricted
intergovernmental - - - - - - 74,589
Restricted intergovernmental 488,837 - - - 206,657 269,032 -
Sales and services - - - - - - -
Investment earnings - 545 - - - 220 -
Miscellaneous - 16,883 17,808 - 129,103 - -
Total Revenues 488,837 17,428 17,808 126,220 335,760 269,252 74,589
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety - - - - 389,170 -
Cultural and recreation - - - - - - -
Economic and physical
development 484,035 119,967 - 110,131 398,822 - 79,641
Total Expenditures 484,035 119,967 - 110,131 398,822 389,170 79,641
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 4,802 {102,539) 17,808 16,089 (63,062) (119,818) (5,052)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from
other funds - - - - 21,412 - -
Transfers to
other funds - - (21,412) (16,089) - - -
Transfer to component unit - - - - - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - (21,412) (16,089) 21,412 - -
Net change in fund balances 4,802 (102,539) (3,604) - (41,650) (119,818) (5,052)
Fund balance, beginning 27,143 2,460,718 961,504 - 4,142,572 457,303 (1,870)

1

Fund balance, ending $ 31945 $2358179 § 957,900 § $4,100,922 $337385 $ (6,922)
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Edward Governor Bureau of Justice
Byrne Crime Controlled MPO Energy Medicare Assistance
Justice Commission Guilford Substance Planning Efficiency Part D Community
Assistance Project Safe Mackintosh Tax Transportation Conservative Grant Project  Oriented
Grant Fund  Neighborhood Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Policing Grant Totals
$ - % - 3§ - 8 - 5 - 3% - % - 8§ - % 126,220
- - 115,863 24 477 - - - - 214,928
89,729 - - - 265,917 - - 121,133 1,441,305
- - 38,303 - - - - - 38,303
- - - - 41 - - - 806
- - - - - - - - 163,794
89,729 - 154,166 24 477 265,958 - - 121,133 1,985,357
69,293 - - 18,277 - - - 271,005 747,745
- - 154,166 - - - - - 154,166
- - - - 326,946 52,621 2,247 - 1,574,410
69,293 - 154,166 18,277 326,946 52,621 2,247 271,005 2,476,321
20,436 - - 6,200 (60,988) (52,621) (2,247) (149,872) (490,964)
- - - - 50,379 - - - 71,791
- - - - - - - - (37,501)
- - - - 50,379 - - - 34,290
20,436 - - 6,200 (10,609) (52,621) (2,247) (149,872) (456,674)
37,8617 10,000 - 51,552 323,320 52,621 15,554 - 8,538,034

$ 58083 3 10,000 & - $ 57,752 $ 312711 § - $ 13,307 $ (149,872) $ 8,081,360
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Revenues Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted
Intergovernmental:
Federal Grants -
Program Year:
2011 $ 398,713 $ - 3 - § - $ (398,713)
2011 477,189 - 461,035 461,035 (16,154)
2010 439,247 411,445 27,802 439,247 -
2009 432,444 432,444 - 432,444 -
2008 447 676 447 676 - 447 676 -
2007 440,794 440,794 - 440,794 -
2006 490,388 490,388 - 490,388 -
2005 518,000 : 518,000 - 518,000 -
2004 531,000 531,000 - 531,000 -
Federal Recovery
Grant - 117.446 - 117,446 117.446
Total Restricted
Intergovernmental 4,175,451 3,389,193 488,837 3,878,030 (297 421)
Miscellaneous
Revenues:
Urban renewal land
sales and related
income - 145,641 - 145,641 145,641
Sale of property:
2007 - 200 - 200 200
2004 - 200 - 200 200
1997 - 14,083 - 14,083 14,083
Program income -
1995 - 522 - 522 522
Total Miscellaneous
Revenues - 160,646 - 160,646 160,646
Total Revenues 4175451 3,549,839 488,837 4,038,676 (136,775)

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND —~ COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Expenditures (continued):
Economic and Physical
Development (continued):
Program Year 2004:
Public Works
Facilities, Site
Improvements:
Durham Street/
Morgan Hill Trail 82,084 82,084 - 82,084 -
Glen Raven Project 155,467 155,467 - 155,467 -
Hunt Street Project 3,249 3,249 - 3,249 -
Ross Street
Subdivision 50,000 50,000 - 50,000 -
FAS Plumbing
Repairs 4,900 4,900 - 4,900 -
Provision of
Public Services:
North Park
Library 12,000 12,000 - 12,000 -
Fairchild Comfort
Station 4,800 4,800 - 4,800 -
Construction
Training
Program 65,000 65,000 - 65,000 -
Recreation Facilities
Improvements 3,200 3,200 - 3,200 -
FAS Security System 3,500 3,495 - 3,495 5
Administration 110,000 101,975 - 101,975 8,025
Contingency 36.800 62 - 62 36,738
Total Program
Year 2004 531.000 486,232 - 486,232 44768
Program Year 2005:
Public Works
Facilities, Site
Improvements:
Glen Raven Project 340,000 340,000 - 340,000 -
Provision of
Public Services:
North Park
Library 12,000 12,000 - 12,000 -
Construction
Training
Program 65,000 65,000 - 65,000 -
Administration 89.908 86.648 - 86,648 3,260

Continued on next page.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Total Positive
Costs Years To Date (Negative)
Expenditures (continued):
Economic and Physical
Development (continued):
Program Year
2005 (continued):
Total Program
Year 2005 506,908 503.648 503,648 3,260
Program Year 2006:
Public Works
Facilities, Site
Improvements:
Glen Raven
Infrastructure 317,388 317,388 317,388 -
Provision of
Public Services:
North Park
Library 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Construction
Training Program 65,000 65,000 65,000 -
Administration 67,281 66,027 66,027 1,254
Total Program
Year 2006 459,669 458,415 458,415 1.254
Program Year 2007:
Public Works
Facilities, Site
Improvements:
Glen Raven
Project 47,594 47,594 47,594 -
Church Street
Sidewalk 48,038 48,038 48,038 -
Street Improvements
(Jackson/Peace) 9,241 9,241 9,241 -
Storm Sewer
Replacement 30,469 30,469 30,469 -
Provision of
Public Services:
Hall Avenue
Facility Improvements 69,899 69,899 69,899 -
North Park
Library 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
North Park
Pool Upgrades 5,200 5,200 5,200 -
Fairchild Comfort
Station 39,578 39,578 39,578 -
Construction
Training Program 65,000 65,000 65,000 -
Administration 49,642 47,986 47,986 1.656
Total Program
Year 2007 374.661 373.005 373,005 1.656

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Expenditures (continued):
Economic and Physical
Development (continued):
Program Year 2008:
Public Works
Facilities, Site
Improvements:
Sidewalk
Improvements 90,160 90,160 - 90,160 -
Provision of
Public Services:
North Park
Library 12,000 12,000 - 12,000 -
Recreation Facility
Improvements 82,676 82,676 - 82,676 -
Hall Avenue Facility
Improvements 97,286 97,286 - 97,286 -
Construction
Training Program 65,000 65,000 - 65,000 -
Administration 55,484 48,665 2.464 51129 4,355
Total Program
Year 2008 402,606 395,787 2,464 398,251 4,355
Program Year 2009:
Public Works
Facilities, Site
Improvements:
Sidewalk
Improvements 125,747 125,748 - 125,748 )
Provision of
Public Services:
North Park
Library 12,000 12,000 - 12,000 -
Fairchild Park
Improvements 127 444 127 444 - 127 444 -
Construction
Training Program 65,000 65,000 - 65,000 -
Administration 98,000 56,186 4,289 60.475 37.525
Total Program
Year 2009 428 191 386,378 4,289 390,667 37,524

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actuat
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)

Expenditures (continued):
Economic and Physical
Development (continued):

Program Year 2010:
Public Works
Facilities, Site
Improvements:
Maple Avenue
Sidewalk 112,699 112,699 - 112,699 -
Provision of
Public Services:
North Park
Library 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 -
Residential
Treatment
Services
Mebane
Street Facility
Repairs 9,175 9,175 - 9,175 -
North Park
Improvements 100,000 100,000 - 100,000 -
Family Abuse
Services
Transitional
Housing
Upgrade 3,500 3,500 - 3,500 -
Construction
Training Program 65,000 65,000 - 65,000 -
Administration 98,000 55,835 - 55,835 42,165

Total Program
Year 2010 398,374 356,209 - 356,209 42,165

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Expenditures (continued):
Economic and Physical
Development (continued):
Program Year 2011:
Public Works
Facilities, Site
Improvements:
Water & Sewer
Lines-Hunt St. 45,437 45,437 - 45,437 -
Queen Anne St.
Sewer Line Upgrade 150,039 - - - 150,039
Provision of
Public Services:
North Park
Library 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 -
Fairchiid Park
Upgrade 230,474 223,521 6,953 230,474 -
FAS Transitional
Housing Upgrade 4,566 4,566 - 4,566 -
North Park
Improvements 12,882 10,314 767 11,081 1,801
Picnic Site
improvements 12,343 12,343 - 12,343 -
Playground
Equipment
Upgrades 30,000 30,000 - 30,000 -
Relocation 10,000 3,068 2,875 5,943 4,057
Construction
Training Program 65,000 65,000 - 65,000 -
Administration 98.000 35494 22,160 57,654 40,346
Total Program
Year 2011 668,741 439,743 32,755 472,498 196,243

Continued on next page.



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND —~ COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Expenditures (continued):
Economic and Physical
Development (continued):
Program Year 2012:
Public Works
Facilities, Site
Improvements:
Gilliam Road
Water Line Project 100,000 - 58,508 58,508 41,492
Queen Anne St.
Sewer Line Upgrade - - 122,360 122,360 (122,360)
Provision of
Public Services:
North Park
Library 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 -
Fairchild Park
Energy
Improvements 40,700 - 40,700 40,700 -
North Park
Lighting Upgrade 21,500 - 21,130 21,130 370
Family Abuse
Service Upgrade 7,812 - 7.776 7,776 36
Allied Churches
Facility Upgrades 98,289 - 98,289 98,289 -
Construction
Training Program 65,000 - 65,000 65,000 -
Administration 62,000 - 20,764 20,764 41,236
Total Program
Year 2012 405,301 - 444 527 444 527 (39,226)
Total Expenditures 4,175,451 3,399.417 484,035 3,883,452 291,999
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures - 150,422 4,802 155,224 155,224

Continued on next page.



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Expenditures (continued):
Economic and Physical
Development (continued):
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from (to) other funds:
Mebane St./
St. John Culvert - (117,446) - (117,446) (117 ,446)
Rehabilitation 199,600 - - - (199,600)
Loan Program
Fund:
Program Year:
1996 - - - - -
Total Other Financing (Uses) 199,600 (117.446) - (117.446) (317.,046)
Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
And Other Uses $ 199,600 $ 32,976 4802 % 37,778 $ (161,822)

Fund balance, appropriated (199.600)
Net change in fund balance S -
Fund balance, beginning 27,143

Fund balance, ending 31,94



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — REHABILITATION LOAN PROGRAM FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Revenues:
Investment earnings

Misceilaneous:
Interest on loans

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical
Development:
Operating expenditures
Provision for bad debts

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Fund balance, appropriated
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Neqgative)
3 545
16.883
16,000 17,428 1.428
111,233
8,734
166,950 119,967 46,983
(150,950) (102,539) % 48,411
150,950
s -
2,460,718
2,358,179




CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — RENTAL REHABILITATION LOAN PROGRAM FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Investment earnings $ $ - $
Miscellaneous:
interest on loans 17.808
Total Revenues 2,000 17.808 15,808
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical
Development:
Provision for bad debts -
Total Expenditures 10,000 - 10,000
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (8,000) 17,808 25,808
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers to other fund:
Home Program Project (21412) (21,412) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (21.412) (21.412) -
Revenues (Under) Expenditures
and Other Uses (29,412) (3,604) § 25,808
Fund balance, appropriated 29412
Net change in fund balance $ -
Fund balance, beginning 961,504

Fund balance, ending $ 957,900



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — DOWNTOWN SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Taxes $ $ 128510 $
Tax discounts (2,290)

Total 130,000 126,220 (3.780)

Sales and Services:
Parade Holiday Events -
Farmers market -
Promotional sales -

Total 97.700 - (97.700)

Total Revenues 227,700 126,220 (101.480)

Expenditures:
Economic and Physical
Development:
Salaries and employee
benefits -
Operating expenditures 110,131
Equipment -

Total Expenditures 280,007 110,131 169.876

Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (52,307) 16,089 % 68,396

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers to other fund:
Energy Efficiency Upgrade
Main Street 2 (16,089) (16,089) -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (16,089) (16.089) -

Revenues (Under) Expenditures
and Other Uses (68,396) - 3 68,396

Fund balance, appropriated 68,396
Net change in fund balance -

Fund balance, beginning -

Fund balance, ending -
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - HOME PROGRAM PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted
Intergovernmental:

Federal Grant $ 4,089,657 3,382,896 $ 206657 $ 3,589,553 $ (500,104)

Federal Grant - County 1,712,419 1,331,771 54,848 1,386,619 (325,800)

State Grant - 2,667 - 2,667 2,667

Local Funds 36,465 6.481 - 6,481 (29,984)

Total 5,838,541 4,723,815 261,505 4,985,320 (853,221)
Miscellaneous:

Program income 178,679 295220 74,255 369,475 190.796
Total Revenues 6,017,220 5.019.035 335,760 5,354,795 (662.425)
Expenditures:

Economic and Physical
Development:

Administrative 392,117 280,819 41,854 322,673 69,444

Homebuyer

assistance 161,167 51,353 - 51,353 109,814

CHDO project

assistance 827,833 658,765 38,247 697,012 130,821

Rehabilitation —

owner 5,012,686 779,850 304,750 1,084,600 3,928,086

Rehabilitation

rental 313,250 115,442 - 115,442 197,808

Lead based

paint reduction 37,500 37,500 - 37,500 -

Relocation 64,781 64,781 - 64,781 -

CTP Housing Activities 585,000 133,552 - 133,552 451,448

Provision for

bad debts - 251,977 13,971 265,948 (265,948)

Total Expenditures 7,394,334 2,374,039 398.822 2,772,861 4621473
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - HOME PROGRAM PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (1,.377,114) 2.644.996 (63,062) 2,581,934 3,959,048
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers from other
funds:
HOME Investment
Partnership Project
Fund - 450,726 - 450,726 450,726
Rental
Rehabilitation Loan
Program 657,926 670,498 21,412 691,910 33,984
Rehabilitation Loan
Program Fund - 232,688 - 232,688 232,688
Single Family
Housing Project
Fund - 143,664 - 143.664 143.664
Total Other Financing
Sources 657,926 1,497,576 21412 1,518,988 861,062

Revenues and Other Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures (719,188) $ 4,142,572 (41650) $§ 4,100,922 $ 4820110

Fund balance, beginning 719,188 4,142,572
5 -
Fund balance, ending $ 4100922



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — RICO FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted Intergovernmental:
Rico funds $ $ 253542  $
Dept. of Treasury 15,490
Investment earnings 220
Total Revenues - 269.252 269,252
Expenditures:
Public Safety:
Rico funds 389.170
Total Expenditures 423,318 389,170 34,148
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (423.318) (119,918) 303.400
$ 303,400
Fund balance, appropriated 423,318
Net change in fund balance $ -
Fund balance, beginning 457,303

Fund balance, ending $ 337,385
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - GUILFORD MACKINTOSH FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Unrestricted Intergovernmentat:
Guilford County
Reimbursement $ 3 115,863 $
Total 164.028 115,863 (48,165)
Sales and Service:
Boat rentals 18,419
Fishing fees 5778
Boat launch fees 3,812
Concession sales 3,544
Shelter rentals 3,750
House rentals 3,000
Total 23.250 38,303 15,053
Total Revenues 187.278 154.166 (33,112)
Expenditures:
Cultural and Recreation:
Salaries and employee
benefits 128,041
Operating expenditures 26,125
Total Expenditures 187,278 154,166 33.112
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures h - - $ -

Fund balance, beginning -

Fund balance, ending s -
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE TAX FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues:
Unrestricted Intergovernmental:
Controlled substance funds
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Public Safety:
Salaries and Employee
Benefits
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Fund balance, appropriated
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 3 24,477 $
24 477 24 477
18,277
37,775 18,277 19,498
(37,775) 6,200 $ 43,975
37.775
s -
51,652
$ 57,752
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - MPO PLANNING TRANSPORTATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted Intergovernmental:
State Grant $ $ 265917  §
Interest 41
Total Revenues 265917 265,958 41
Expenditures:
Economic and Physical
Development:
Operating expenditures 176,186
Special projects 150,760
Total Expenditures 349,271 326,946 22,325
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (83,354) (60,988) 22.366
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers from other funds:
General Fund 63.354 50,379 (12.975)
Total Other Financing
Sources 63,354 50,379 (12.975)
Revenues and Other Sources
(Under) Expenditures (20,000) (10,609) $ 9,391
Fund balance, appropriated 20,000
Net change in fund balance 3 -
Fund balance, beginning 323,320

Fund balance, ending $ 312,711
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — ENERGY EFFICIENCY & CONSERVATION BLOCK GRANT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted
intergovernmental:
ARRA Grant $ 223900 § 223900 § - 3 223,900 $ -
Total Revenues 223,900 223,900 - 223,900 -
Expenditures:
Economic and physical
development:
Professional
services 33,350 35,576 - 35,576 (2,226)
Projects 149,016 101,540 47,138 148,678 338
Operating
expenditures 41,534 34,163 5,483 39,646 1.888
Total Expenditures 223.900 171,279 52,621 223,900 -
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures $ - $ 52621 $ (52.621) $ - 8 -
Fund balance, beginning 52.621

Fund balance, ending s -
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — MEDICARE PART D GRANT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Reported Variance
Project in Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:

State Grant $ 48,100 & 48,100 3 - 3 48,100 $ -
Total Revenues 48,100 48,100 - 48,100 -
Expenditures:

Operating expenditures 48,100 32,546 2,247 34,793 13,307
Total Expenditures 48,100 32,548 2,247 34,793 13.307
Revenues Over
Expenditures 3 -3 15,554 (2,247) $ 13,307 % 13,307
Fund balance, beginning 15,554

Fund Balance, ending $ 13,307
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROCLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND —~ EDWARD BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted
Intergovernmental:
State Grant % 730,362 3 568,199 §$ 89.729 § 657,928 $ (72.434)
Total Revenues 730,362 568,199 89,729 657,928 (72,434)
Expenditures:
Public Safety:
Equipment 487,879 369,625 53,755 423,380 64,499
Operating
expenditures 301,440 219,914 15,538 235452 65.988
Total Expenditures 789.319 589,539 69,293 658,832 130,487
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (58.957) (21.340) 20.436 (904) 58,053
Other Financing
Sources:
Transfers from other
funds:
Rico Fund 58,957 58,957 - 58,957 -
Total Other Financing
Sources 58,957 58,957 - 58957 -
Revenues and Other
Sources Over
Expenditures and Other
Uses 3 - $ 37.617 20436 § 58.053 $ 58,053
Fund balance, beginning 37,617

Fund balance, ending $ 58,053
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — GOVERNOR CRIME COMMISSION PROJECT SAFE NEIGHBORHOOD
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted
Intergovernmental:
State Grant $ 140,126 3 74689 § - $ 74,689 $ (65,437)
Total Revenues 140,126 74,689 - 74,689 (65,437)
Expenditures:
Public Safety:
Salaries and
Employee benefits 77,175 38,837 - 38,837 38,338
Operating
Expenditures 72,951 35,852 - 35,852 37,099
Total Expenditures 150,126 74,689 - 74.689 75,437
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures {10,000) (=) - - 10,000
Other Financing
Sources:
Transfers from other
funds:
General Fund 10.000 10.000 - 10.000 -
Total Other Financing
Sources 10.000 10,000 - 10,000 -
Revenues and Other
Sources Over
Expenditures and Other
Uses $ - 3 10.000 - 8 10,000 $ 10.000
Fund balance, beginning 10,000

Fund balance, ending $ 10,000
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - ALL HAZARD PREPAREDNESS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Emergency

Management Grant $ 181,717 $ 100,062 $ 74589 § 174,651 $ (7.066)
Total Revenues 181,717 100,062 74,589 174.651 (7.066)
Expenditures:

Equipment 181,717 101,932 79.641 181,573 144
Total Expenditures 181,717 101,932 79,641 181,573 144
Revenues Over
Expenditures $ - 3 (1,870) (5,052) $ (6,922) $ (6,922)
Fund balance, beginning (1.870)

Fund balance, ending 3 (6,922)



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND — BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASST COMM ORIENT POLICING GRANT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Actual
Total Reported Variance
Authorized In Prior Current Total Positive
Costs Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted
Intergovernmental:
State Grant $ 271,005 3 121,133 % 121,133 $ (149,872)
Total Revenues 271,005 121,133 121,133 (149.872)
Expenditures:
Public Safety:
Salaries and
Employee Benefits 271.005 271,005 271,005 -
Total Expenditures 271,005 271,005 271,005 -
Revenues Over
Expenditures $ - (149,872) § (149.872) $ (149.872)
Fund balance, beginning -
Fund balance, ending $  (149.872)



CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Combining Schedules
and
Individual Fund Schedules






CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Accounts
Due from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities
Deferred Revenue
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Commiitted for Capital
Improvements
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund
Balances

Renovation of Mebane St./

Drainage Existing Grand Oaks Piedmont Way

Improvement Recreation & Sidewalk Widening &
Project Park Project Sidewalk
Fund Facilities Fund Project

$ 343455 % - § $ -
3 343455 § - § $ -
$ - % - 3 $ -
343,455 - -
343,455 - -
3 343455 & - 3% $ -
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ERP Energy

System Street Efficiency
Project Resurfacing Upgrade
Fund Project Main St 2 Totals
$ 631567 § - % 2,868 $ 977,891
$ 631567 § - $ 2,869 § 977,891
$ -3 - $ - % -
631,567 - 2,869 977,891
631,567 - 2,869 977,891

$ 631567 § -3 2,869 $ 977,891




CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Renovation of Mebane St./
Drainage Existing Grand Oaks Piedmont Way
Improvement Recreation & Sidewalk Widening &
Project Park Project Sidewalk
Fund Facilities Fund Project
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental $ - 0% - 8 - (1,9086)
Investment earnings 155 - - -
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total Revenues 155 - - (1,906)
Expenditures:
Capital outlay - 9,263 - -
Total Expenditures - 9,263 - -
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 155 (9,263) - (1,906)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Proceeds from Instaliment Financing - - - 1,906
Transfers from other funds 25,000 34,896 - -
Transfers (to) other funds - - (189,704) -

Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses) 25,000 34,896 (189,704) 1,906
Net change in fund balances 25,155 25,633 (189,704) -
Fund balance, beginning 318,300 (25,633) 189,704 -
Fund balance, ending $ 343455 §$ - $ - % -




ERP Energy
System Street Efficiency
Project Resurfacing Upgrade
Fund Project Main St 2 Totals
- - 8 136,768  $ 134,862
367 4,954 - 5,476
367 4,954 136,768 140,338
21,358 48,898 149,988 228,507
21,358 48,898 149,988 229,507
(20,991) (43,944) (13,220) (89,169)
- - - 1,906
- - 16,089 75,985
. - - (189,704)
- - 16,089 (111,813)
(20,991) (43,944) 2,869 (200,982)
652,558 43,944 - 1,178,873
631,567 -3 2,869 977,891
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:

Investment Earnings 3 - 3 155 § 155
Total Revenues - 155 155
Expenditures:

Supplies $ - $ - $ -

Construction - - -
Total Expenditures 25,000 - 25,000
Revenues (Under)

Expenditures $ (25,000) 155  § 25,155
Other Financing Sources:

Transfer from other fund:

Capital Reserve 25,000 25.000 -
Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures 3 - 25155 § 25,155

Fund balance, beginning 318.300

Fund balance, ending S 343455
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND — PIEDMONT WAY WIDENING & SIDEWALK PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:
ARRA Grant $ 50,000 % 27517 % (1,906) $ 25,611 $ (24,389)
NCDOT Grant 96,088 - - - (96.088)
Total Revenues 146,088 27517 (1,906) 25611 (120,477
Expenditures:
Capital other
improvements 146,088 27.517 - 27 .517 118,571
Total Expenditures 146,088 27,517 - 27 517 118,571
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures - - (1,906) (1,.906) (1,906)
Other Financing Sources:
Transfer from other fund:
General Fund 1,979 - 1,906 1.906 (73)
Total Other Financing
Sources 1,979 - 1.906 1.906 (73)

Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures 3 1,979 § - - 9 - $ 1,979

Fund balance, appropriated (1.879)
Net change in fund balance 3 -
Fund balance, beginning -

Fund balance, ending s -
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND — ERP SYSTEM PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Investment earnings $ - 3 3488 % 367 % 3.855 % 3.855
Total Revenues - 3,488 367 3.855 3.855
Expenditures:

Professional Services $ 50,000 §$ 152,875 § - % 152,875 $ (102,875)

Travel — Consultants - 18,522 - 18,522 (18,522)

Software 1,895,750 863,556 17,658 881,214 1,014,536

Misc—Contractor Fees-1yr - - - - -

Equipment - Hardware 107,000 382,362 - 382,362 (275,362)

Other Equipment 201,500 151,840 3,700 155,540 45,960

Supplies - 36,025 - 36,025 (36.025)

Total Expenditures 2,254,250 1,605,180 21,358 1,626,538 627,712

Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures (2.254,250) (1,601.692) (20,991) (1,622,683) 631,567

Other Financing Sources:

Transfers from other

funds:
Capital Reserve 612,650 612,650 - 612,650 -
Water & Sewer 398,100 398,100 - 398,100 -
General Fund 1,243,500 1,243,500 - 1,243,500 -

Total Other Financing

Sources 2,254,250 2.254.250 - 2,254,250 -

Revenues and Other Sources

Over (Under)

Expenditures $ - 8 652,558 (20,991) § 631,567 $ 631,567

Fund balance, beginning 652,558

Fund balance, ending 631,567



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND ~ STREET RESURFACING

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Fund balance, ending

s -

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Investment earnings $ - -9 4954 % 4,954 $ 4,954
Total Revenues - - 4954 4.954 4,954
Expenditures:

Professional Services 50,000 15,250 26,954 42,204 7,796
Loan fees 5,000 500 7,500 8,000 (3,000)
Wi-fi project - 87,095 - 87,095 (87,095)
Contingency 290,000 - - - 290,000
Street resurfacing/

repair 2,554,000 2,752,211 14 444 2,766,655 (212,655)

Total Expenditures 2,899,000 2,855,056 48,898 2,903,954 (4,954)

Revenues (Under)

Expenditures (2,899.000) (2,855,056) (43,944) (2,899.000) -

Other Financing Sources:

Proceeds from RZED
installment financing 2.899.000 2,899,000 - 2,899,000 -
Total Other Financing
Sources 2,899,000 2,899,000 - 2,899,000 -

Revenues and Other Sources

Over (Under)

Expenditures $ - 43,944 (43,944) $ - % -

Fund balance, beginning 43,944



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND — MEBANE ST./GRAND OAKS SIDEWALK PROJECT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)

Revenues:

nvestment earnings  § - 3% 1219 $ - % 1.219 $ 1.219
Total Revenues - 1.219 - 1,219 1.219
Expenditures:

Mebane St. Sidewalk 170,402 - - - 170,402

Grand Oaks Building

Sidewalk 18.083 - - - 18,083
Total Expenditures 188,485 - - - 188,485
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (188.485) 1.219 - 1.219 189,704
Other Financing Sources:

Transfers from other

funds: General Fund 188,485 188,485 - 188,485 -

Transfers to other

funds: General Fund (190,000) - (189,704) (189.704) 296
Total Other Financing

Sources (1,515) 188,485 (189.704) (1,219) 296

Revenues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures $ (190,000) $§ 189.704 (189,704) 3 - $ 190,000
Fund balance, appropriated 190,000
Net change in fund balance $ -
Fund balance, beginning 189,704

Fund balance, ending s -
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND — RENOVATION OF EXISTING RECREATION & PARK FACILITIES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
Expenditures:
Buildings 3 30,200 % 18,700 § - $ 18,700 $ 11,500
Maintenance repair
Building and Ground 100,834 91,652 9,263 100,915 (81)
Capital Other
Improvements 94,406 94,400 - 94,400 6
Capital greens
Improvements 377.000 376,858 - 376,858 142
Total Expenditures 602.440 581,610 9,263 590.873 11,567
Revenues (Under)
Expenditures (602,440) (581.610) (9,263) (590,873) 11,567
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers from other
funds
Capital Reserve 482,440 435,977 - 435,977 (46,463)
General Fund 120,000 120,000 34,896 154,896 34 896
Total Other Financing
Sources 602,440 555.977 34,896 590,873 (11,567)
Revenues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures $ - $ (25,633) 25633 § - 8 -
Fund balance, beginning (25,663)

Fund balance, ending S -



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - ENERGY EFFICIENCY UPGRADE MAINSTREET 2
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Project

Authorization

Revenues:

Restricted Intergovernmental:

State Grant 3
Match - Sub-grantees

Actual
Prior Current Total
Years Year

Variance
Positive

To Date (Negative)

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Capital Improvements

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers from other
funds: General Fund

Total Other Financing
Sources

Revenues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures $

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

84,038 $ 81686 § 81,686 $ (2,352)

52,110 55,082 55,082 2,972

136,148 136.768 136,768 620
152,237 149,988 149.988 2,249
152,237 149.988 149,988 2,249
(16.089) (13.220) (13,220) 2.869
16.089 16.089 16,089 -

16,089 16,089 16.089 -

- 2869 $ 2.869 3 2.869

$ 2.869



ENTERPRISE FUND
Individual Fund Schedules
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
STORM WATER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues:

Operating Revenues:

Stormwater Fees $ - 3 450,521 $ -

Total Operating
Revenues 3 440000 $ 450,521 3 10,521

Nonoperating Revenues:

Other fees and charges - 6,080 6.080

Total Nonoperating
Revenues - 6,080 -
Total Revenues 440,000 456,601 16.601
Expenditures:

Salaries and

Employee Benefits 226,590

Operating Expenditures 39,456

Capital Improvements 38,180

Engineering/professional fees 34,390

Equipment 42,671
Total Expenditures 579,317 381.287 198,030
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (139,317) 75314 § 214,631
Fund Equity Appropriated 139,317

$ -

Reconciliation from budgetary
basis (modified accrual) to
full accruatl:

Revenues Over

Expenditures $ 75,314
Reconciling items:

Depreciation (16,252)

Capital Outlay 106,205

Increase in Vacation Payable (14,605)

Net Income $ 150,662
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Operating Revenues:
Water sales 9,701,306
Sewer charges 11,486,266
Water taps 152,862
Sewer taps 49,460
Total Operating
Revenues 21,085,963 21,389,894 303,931
Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest on investments 141,130
interest on assessments 12,551
Miscellaneous 429,841
Water and sewer assessments -
Water line assessments -
Sewer line assessments 82,032
Water connection fees 13,000
Sewer connection fees -
Other fees and charges 3,148,769
Total Nonoperating
Revenues 3,402,173 3,827,323 425,150
Total Revenues 24.488.136 25217217 729,081
Expenditures:
Building and Administrative -
Water:
Salaries and employee
benefits 266,108
Operating expenditures 425,832
Reimbursement to General
Fund 1,600,000
Total 2,482,767 2.291.941 190,826
Customer Services:
Salaries and employee
benefits 630,806
Operating expenditures 645,689
Total 1,347,461 1,276,495 70,966

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
Supervision:
Salaries and employee
benefits 202,824
Operating expenditures 78,686
Total 311,133 281,510 29,623
Water Line - Maintenance and
Repairs:
Salaries and employee
benefits 306,380
Operating expenditures 405,292
Total 942,350 711,672 230,678
Sewer Line - Maintenance and
Repairs:
Salaries and employee
benefits 247,806
Operating expenditures 202,598
Total 504,021 450,404 53.617
Water Line Service and
Construction:
Salaries and employee
benefits 192,613
Operating expenditures 147,629
Materials - taps 83,603
Materials — lines 41,437
Total 557.499 465,282 92,217
Sewer Line Service and
Construction:
Salaries and employee
benefits 44 320
Operating expenditures 42,085
Materials - taps 37,012
Materials - lines 26,236
Total 281,360 149,653 131,707
Supervision:
Salaries and employee
benefits 481,575
Operating expenditures 90,665
Total 586,091 572.240 13,851

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
Water Sources - Protection:
Utilities 91,732
Operating expenditures 57,304
Total 211,702 149,036 62,666
Ed Thomas Water Plant:
Salaries and employee
benefits 396,571
Chemicals 327,593
Utilities 199,263
Operating expenditures 106,968
Total 1,047,028 1.030,395 16.633
Lake Mackintosh Water Plant:
Salaries and employee
benefits 484,872
Utilities 341,835
Chemicals 597,592
Operating expenditures 350,316
Total 1,848,482 1,774,615 73,867
South Burlington Waste
Treatment Plant:
Salaries and employee
benefits 559,998
Utilities 596,771
Chemicals 147,641
Operating expenditures 609,294
Total 1,997.126 1,913,704 83,422
East Burlington Waste
Treatment Plant:
Salaries and employee
benefits 701,466
Utilities 606,752
Chemicals 119,087
Operating expenditures 542,347
Sludge disposal 111.036
Total 2,122,180 2,080,688 41,492
Laboratories:
Salaries and employee
benefits 356,884
Operating expenditures 118,970
Total 501,758 475,854 25904

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
Plants Maintenance:
Salaries and employee
benefits 590,716
Operating expenditures 192,254
Total 914,266 782,970 131,296
Lakes and Marinas:
Salaries and related
benefits 258,548
Utilities 23,700
Operating expenditures 74,466
Total 380,637 356,714 23,923
Debt Service:
Principal Water bonds 460,080 459,840 240
Interest - water bonds 685,068 684,841 227
Principal - sewer bonds 1,728,744 1,728,746 (2)
Interest - sewer bonds 1,191,971 1,191,779 192
Total 4,065,863 4,065,206 657
Capital Outlay;
Water lines 275,020 214,755 60,265
Miscellaneous water 781,484 682,210 99,274
Sewer lines 261,514 179,881 81,633
Miscellaneous sewer 505,867 421.871 83,996
Total Capital Cutlay 1,823,885 1,498,717 325,168
Total Expenditures 21,925,609 20,327.096 1,598,513
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 2,562,527 4,890,121 2,327,594

Continued on next page.
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other
Funds:
Elevated Storage Tank 27,771 27,771 -
Transfers to other
funds:
Senior Center ARRA
Cistern Project (70,000) (70,000) -
Jordan Lake Project Fund (916,700) - 916,700
Group Health Insurance Fund
Stoney Creek and Lake Cammack
Dams Project Fund (366,300) - 366,300
Workmen’'s Compensation
Self Insurance Fund (143,570) (143,570) -
Water Capital Reserve (872,973) (872,973) -
Sewer Capital Reserve (872.973) (872.973) -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (3,214,745) (1,931,745) 1.283.000
Revenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other
Uses (652,218) § 2,958,376 § 3,610,594

Fund Equity Appropriated 652,218

s -



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Recongciliation From Budgetary Basis (Modified Accrual)
to Full Accrual:

Revenues and other sources over expenditures

and other uses $ 2,958,376

Reconciling ltems:
Bond closing costs 334,503
Bond principal payments 2,188,586
Amortization of gain on defeasance 51,153
Amortization of bond issuance costs 5,369
Amortization of bond premium 42,803
Capital outlay 1,498,717
Operating transfers (in) out 1,788,175
Decrease in inventories (64,601)
Increase in accrued interest payable (766,157)
Decrease accrued vacation pay 90,706
Increase in accrued OPEB liability (99,016)
Capital project revenues 94,265
Capital project net expenses (1,431,977)
Depreciation (4,310,657)

Net Income $ 2380245



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS - WATER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues:

Investment Earnings $ $ 33212 % 33,212

Total Revenues 33.212 33,212

Expenditures:

Capital Outlay 872,973 - 872,973

Total Expenditures 872,973 872,973
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (872,973) 33,212 906.185
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers from other funds:

Water and Sewer Fund 872.973 872.973 -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 872,973 872,973 -
Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under} Expenditures and
Other Uses - 906,185 $ 906.185
Fund balance, appropriated -
Net change in fund balance $ -
Fund Balance, beginning 6,936,331
Fund Balance, ending $ 7.842.516



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS - SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Investment Earnings 3 - 3 35079 % 35,079
Total Revenues - 35,079 35,079
Expenditures:
Capital Outlay 872,973 - 872,973
Total Expenditures 872,973 - 872,973
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (872.973) 35,079 908,052
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds:
Water and Sewer Fund 872,973 872,973 -
Jordan Lake Rules (1.400.000) (1.400,000) -
Second Phase Fund
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (527.027) (527.,027) -
Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and
Other Uses (1,400,000) (491,948) § 908.052
Fund balance appropriated 1,400.000
Net change in fund balance $ -
Fund Balance, beginning 6,955,315

Fund Balance, ending 3 6,463,367
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS - TANK REMOVAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted
Intergovernmental:
usT
reimbursement $ 335,000 $ 502,754 $ - % 502,754 3 167,754
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings - 2,529 124 2,653 2,653
Sales tax refunds - 520 - 520 520
Total Revenues 335,000 505,803 124 505,927 170,927
Expenditures:
Tank Removal 835,000 866,696 - 866,696 (31,696)
Utilities - 9,521 - 9,521 (9,521)
Remediation 120,600 - - - 120,600
Total Expenditures 955,600 876,217 - 876.217 79,383
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (620,600) (370,414) 124 (370,290) 250,310
Cther Financing Sources:
Transfers from
other funds:
Water Capital
Reserve Fund 500,000 500,000 - 500,000 -
Capital Reserve
Fund 120,600 120,600 - 120,600 -
Total Other Financing
Sources 620,600 620,600 - 620,600 -

Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures $ - 3 250186 $ 124 § 250,310 3 250,310




CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS — ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANKS SOLAR POWERED

FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-

115

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
Expenditures:
Professional services $ 42,500 17,500 § - 9 17,500 $ 25,000
Construction 115,200 112,896 2,304 115,200 -
Loan fee 2,826 - 2,826 2,826 -
Contingency 5,760 - - - 5,760
Total Expenditures 166,286 130,396 5,130 135,526 30,760
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (166,286) (130.396) (5.130) (135,526) 30,760
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers from (to) other
funds:
Water and Sewer
Fund 33,586 33,586 - 33,586 -
Water and Sewer
Fund (27,771) - (27,771) (27,771) -
Revolving loan
proceeds 132,700 118,191 11,520 129,711 (2,989)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 138,515 151.777 (16.251) 135,526 (2,989)
Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures $ (27,771) 21381 § (21,381) $ - $ 27,771




CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
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WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS —~ STONEY CREEK AND LAKE CAMMACK DAMS PROJECT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Neqative)
Revenues:
nvestment earnings  $ - 5191 § 5,620 10.811 3 10.811
Total Revenues - 5,191 5,620 10.811 10,811
Expenditures:
Professional Services -
Stoney Creek 1,049,000 507,452 259,353 766,805 282,195
Professional Services -
Lake Cammack 695,000 478,698 145,683 624,381 70,619
Construction-Lake
Cammack 1,161,408 624,126 498,011 1,122,137 39,271
Issuance Costs-
Lake Cammack 40,336 83,043 - 83,043 (42,707)
Contingency-Lake
Cammack 92,820 - - - 92,820
Construction-Stoney
Creek 3,202,614 852,729 2,303,944 3,156,673 45,941
Issuance Costs-
Stoney Creek 92,377 - - - 92,377
Contingency-Stoney
Creek 212,582 - - - 212,582
Total Expenditures 6,546,137 2.546.048 3,206,991 5,753,039 793,098
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (6,546,137) (2,540,857) (3,201.371) (5,742,228) 803,909
Other Financing Sources:
Bond proceeds 6,546,137 8,969,761 - 8,969,761 2,423,624
Transfers from other
funds:
Water and Sewer
Fund 419,000 419,000 - 419,000 -
Water Capital
Reserve Fund 419,000 419,000 - 419,000 -
Transfers to other
funds:
Water and Sewer
Fund (419,000) (542,352) - (542,352) (123,352)
Water Capital
Reserve Fund (419.000) (419,000} - (419,000) -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 6,546,137 8,846,409 - 8.846.409 2,300,272
Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures 3 - 6,305,552 $ (3,201.371) 3.104.181 $ 3104181
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS — MEBANE ST./GRAND OAKS WATER LINE PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Interest 3 - 3 13,176 $ 411 3 13,587 3 13,587
Total Revenues - 13,176 411 13,587 13,587
Expenditures:

Construction 1,507,425 779,463 208,572 988,035 519,390
Total Expenditures 1.507.425 779,463 208,572 988,035 519,390
Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures (1,507 425) (766,287) (208,161) (974.448) 532,977
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers from other
funds:
Water and
Sewer Fund 1,257,425 1,257,425 - 1,257,425 -
Storm Water
Fund 250,000 250,000 - 250,000 -
Total Other Financing
Sources 1,607.425 1,507,425 - 1,507.425 -

Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures 3 - % 741,138 § (208.161) $ 532,977 $ 532.977
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS — JORDAN LAKE RULES PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date - (Negative)
Revenues:

Investment Earnings  $ - 9 - % 5737 § 5737 % 5,737
Total Revenues - - 5,737 5,737 5,737
Expenditures:

Engineering fees $ 1,097,000 1,124,230 305,395 1,429,625 (332,625)

Construction costs 5,708,000 239,070 3,167,137 3,406,207 2,301,793

Contingency 340,250 - - - 340,250

Issuance costs 148,057 92,519 - 92,519 55,538
Total Expenditures 7,293,307 1,455,819 3,472,532 4,928,351 2.364,956
Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures (7.293,307) (1,455,819) (3,466.795) (4,922.614) 2.370.693
Other Financing Sources:

Bond proceeds 7,293,307 4,935,629 - 4,935,629 (2,357,678)

Transfers from other

funds:

Water and Sewer
Fund 206,100 206,100 - 206,100 -
Water Capital
Reserve Fund 125,000 125,000 - 125,000 -
Sewer Capital
Reserve Fund 125,000 125,000 - 125,000 -
Transfers to other
funds:
Water and Sewer
Fund (206,100) (206,100) - (206,100) -
Water Capital
Reserve Fund (125,000) (125,000) - (125,000) -
Sewer Capital
Reserve Fund (125.000) (125,000) - (125.000) -
Total Other Financing
Sources 7,293,307 4,935,629 - 4935629 (2,357,678)

Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures $ - $ 3479810 $ (3466795 13,015 $ 13.015
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WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS —JORDAN LAKE RULES SECOND PHASE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception And For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues:
Investment Earnings

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Professional services -
S. Burlington WWTP
Buildings —

S. Burlington WWTP
Construction —

S. Burlington WWTP
Issuance Cost —

S. Burlington WWTP
Contingency —

S. Burlington WWTP
Professional services-
E. Burlington WWTP
Construction -

E. Burlington WWTP
Issuance Cost —

E. Burlington WWTP
Contingency —

E. Burlington WWTP

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Bond proceeds

Transfer from other funds:
Sewer Capital Reserve
Fund

Total Other Financing
Sources

Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)

- - 8,182 8,182 $ 8,182

- - 8,182 8,182 8,182
1,118,000 170,013 395,549 565,562 552,438
1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000
8,498,000 - 1,076,999 1,076,999 7.421,001
186,279 - 109,708 109,708 76,571
480,800 - - - 480,800
1,195,000 237,368 343,398 580,766 614,234
6,872,000 - 495,914 495,914 6,376,086
186,279 - 115,958 115,958 70,321
403,350 - - - 403,350
20.339.708 407.381 2.537.526 2.944 907 17.394.801
(20,339.708) (407.,381) (2.529.344) (2.936.725) (17.402.983)
18,939,708 - 18,845,282 18,845,282 (94,426)
1,400,000 - 1,400,000 1,400,000 -
20,339,708 - 20,245,282 20,245 282 (94.426)
- (407.381) $ 17715938 $_17.308.557 $ 17.308,557
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Workers Group Health Total
Dental Self Compensation Benefits Internal
Insurance Self Insurance  Self insurance Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 1,706,730 $ 1,400,389 $ 8,097,030 $ 11,204,149
Accounts receivable 552 233,208 11,619 245,379
Due from other funds - - - -
Prepaid Insurance - - - -
Total Assets $ 1707282 $ 1633597 $ 8108649 $ 11449528
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 3 64,772 3 130,661 3 505,799 $ 701,232
Total Current
Liabilities 64,772 130,661 505,799 701,232
NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted 1,642,510 1,502,936 7.602.850 10,748,296
Total Net Assets  $ 1,642,510 $ 1502936 $ 7.602850 $ 10,748,296




COMBINING SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Operating Revenues:
Charges for services  $

Total Operating
Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and employee
benefits
Operating expenses
Claims paid, excess
loss coverage and
claims administration

Total Operating
Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest earned on
investments

Total Non-Operating
Revenues

Income (Loss) before
transfers

Transfers from other
funds

Change in net assets

Total net assets —
beginning

Net Assets, End of
Year $

Workers Group Health Total
Dental Self Compensation Benefits Internal
Insurance Self insurance  Self Insurance Service
__Fund Fund Fund Fund
493,251 $ 20569 § 4416415 4,930,234
493,251 20,569 4416,415 4,930,234
- 217,031 144,733 361,764
32,388 138,542 31,452 202,382
456,322 725,730 4,578,363 5760415
488,710 1,081,303 4,754,548 6,324,561
4,541 {1.060,734) (338,133) (1.394,327)
5,302 9.440 37,070 51,813
5,302 9,440 37.070 51,813
9,843 (1,051,294) (301,063) (1,342,514)
- 521424 105.002 626,426
9,843 (529,870) (196,061) (716,088)
1,632,667 2,032,806 7,798,911 11,464,384
1642510 $ 1502936 $ 7602850 $ 10748296
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Workers Group Health Total
Dental Self Compensation Benefits Internal
Insurance Self Insurance Self Insurance Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from
customers $ 492752 % (212,639) $ 4405290 §& 4,685403
Cash paid for goods
and services (487,717) (864,064) (4,527,254) (5,879,035)
Cash paid to
employees - (217.,031) (144,733) (361.764)
Net cash provided
by operating activities 5,035 (1,293,734) (266.,697) (1,555,396)

CASH FLOWS FROM
NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
(Increase) Decrease in
due from other funds 19 - 172 191

Net cash provided (used)
by noncapital financing
activities 19 - 172 191

CASH FLOWS FROM

CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer from other

funds:

General Fund - 377,854 35,002 412,856

Water and Sewer - 143,570 70.000 213,570
Net cash provided by
capital and related
financing activities - 521,424 105,002 626,426
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest on investments 5,302 9,440 37.070 51,812
Net cash provided by
investing activities 5,302 9,440 37.070 51.812
Net Increase (Decrease)
in Cash and Cash
Equivalents 10,356 (762,870) (124,453) (876,967)
Balances — Beginning of

Year 1.696.374 2,163.259 8,221,483 12,081,116

Balances — End of Year $ 1,706,730 $ 1.400,389 $ 8097030 § 11,204,149

Continued on next page.
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ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Workers Group Health Total
Dental Self Compensation Benefits Internal
Insurance Self Insurance Self Insurance Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Reconciliation of Operating
Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating
Activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 4541 $ (1,060,734) $  (338,133) $ (1,394,326)
Adjustments to reconcile
operating income to
net cash provided by
operating activities:
(Increase) Decrease in
accounts receivable (499) (233,208) (11,124) (244,831)
(Increase) Decrease in
prepaid insurance - - 9,433 9,433
Increase (Decrease)
in accounts payable 993 208 73127 74,328

Net cash provided
by operating activities $ 5035 § (1.293734) $  (266,697) $ (1.555.396)
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
DENTAL SELF INSURANCE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Financial Positive
Plan Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Operating Revenues:
City of Burlington $ - 8 384,166 $ -
Employee Premium 109.085
Total Operating
Revenues 399,158 493,251 94,093
Non-Operating Revenues:
Investment Earnings - 5,302 5,302
Total Revenues 399.158 498,553 99.395
Expenditures:
City of Burlington Claims 456,322
Operating expenditures 31.395
Total Expenditures 474,163 487,717 (13,554)
Revenues Over Expenditures $ (75,005) $ 10,836 % 85,841
Fund balance appropriated 75,005

Net change in fund balance S

Reconciliation From Financial Plan Basis (Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:

Revenues Over Expenditures $ 10,836
Reconciling Items:
Increase in allowance for unfiled claims (893)

Net Income $ 9.843



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
WORKERS COMPENSATION SELF INSURANCE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-
FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Variance
Financial Positive
Plan Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Operating Revenues:
City of Burlington $ - 3 20569 % -
Total Operating
Revenues - 20,569 20,569
Non-Operating Revenues:
Investment Earnings 18,000 9.440 (8.560)
Totals Revenues 18,000 30,009 12,009
Expenditures:
Salaries and employee
benefits 217,031
Operating expenses 57,736
Contractual services 79,183
Workers compensation 725,730
Safety training 1.623
Total Expenditures 1,224 277 1,081,303 142,974
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (1,206.277) (1,051.294) 154,983
Other Financing Sources
Transfers from other funds:
General Fund 377,854 377,854 -
Water and Sewer Fund 143,570 143,570 -
Total Other Financing
Sources 521424 521,424 -
Revenues and Other Sources
(Under) Expenditures $ (684,853) § (529.870) $ 154.983

Fund balance appropriated 684,853

Net change in fund balance —-— =

Reconciliation From Financial Plan (Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:

Revenues Over Expenditures $ (529,870)
Reconciling ltems:

Decrease in allowance for

unfiled claims -

Net Income $ (529.870)




CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA

GROUP HEALTH BENEFITS SELF INSURANCE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES-

FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Variance
Financial Positive
Plan Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Operating Revenues:
City of Burlington $ $ 3,739,978 &
City of Burlington
Employee Premium 676.437
Total Operating
Revenues 4,315,902 4,416,415 100,513
Non-Operating Revenues: - 37.070 37,070
Total Revenues 4,315,902 4,453 485 137.583
Expenditures:
Salaries and employee benefits 144,733
Operating expenditures 31,452
Third party administration 321,346
City of Burlington Claims 4,184,175
Total Expenditures 4,588,942 4,681,706 (92,764)
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures $ (273.040) $ (228.221) $ 44,819
Other Financing Sources
Transfers from other funds:
General Fund 35,002 35,002 -
Water and Sewer Fund 70,000 70,000 -
Total Other Financing
Sources 105.002 105,002 -
Revenues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures $ (168,038) $ (123.219) § 44,819
Fund balance, appropriated 168.038
Net change in fund balance $ -

Reconciliation From Financial Plan Basis (Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual Basis:

Revenues and Other Sources Over $ (123,219)
Reconciling ltems:

Increase in allowance for

unfiled claims (72.,842)

Net Income $ (196.061)







OTHER SCHEDULES



OTHER SCHEDULES

This section includes additional information on property taxes and interfund transfers.

- Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

- Analysis of Current Tax Levy
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
June 30, 2012

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance

Fiscal Year June 30, 2011 Additions And Credits June 30, 2012
2011-2012 $ - $ 24,906,299 $ 24,088,464 $ 817,835
2010-2011 767,177 - 491,799 275,378
2009-2010 340,666 - 169,092 171,574
2008-2009 191,177 - 45,255 145,922
2007-2008 155,015 - 25,521 129,494
2006-2007 131,586 - 33,934 97,652
2005-20086 127,350 - 22,244 105,106
2004-2005 99,970 - 22,039 77,931
2003-2004 90,228 - 9,685 80,543
2002-2003 103,115 - 5,590 97,525
2001-2002 56,325 - 26,690 29,635
2000-2001 3,960 - 166 3,794
1965-1998 21,106 - 1,802 19.304

$ 2087675 $ 24906299 $ 24942281 $ 2.051.693
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts:
General Fund (925,464)
Special Revenue Fund (36,297)
Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable - Net 3 1,089,932
Reconcilement with Revenues:
Taxes - ad valorem - General Fund $ 24,663,963
Taxes - ad valorem - Special Revenue Fund 128,510
Total 24,792,473
Reconciling Items:
Discounts allowed 286,125
Interest coliected (214,563)
Taxes written off 78.246

Total Collections and Credits

_ 24,942 281
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
CITY WIDE LEVY
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Total Levy
Property
City-Wide Excluding
Rate Registered Registered
Property Valuation per $100 Total Levy Motor Vehicles Motor Vehicles
City-Wide Levy:
Original Levy:

Property taxed at
current year's rate $ 4,163,153,276 .58 $ 24146289 § 22374965 $ 1,771,324

Penalties - 11,522 11,522 -
Total 4,163,153,276 24 157.811 22,386,487 1.771.324

Discoveries:
Current year taxes 106,885,000 .58 619,933 606,527 13,406
Prior year taxes - - - -
Penalties - - - .
Total 106,885,000 619.933 606,527 13,406

Abatements and Adjustments:
Advertising, interest

and adjustments - (1,637) (1,837) -
Abatements (24.135,690) .58 (139,987) (105.503) (34.484)
Total (24.135,690) (141.624) (107,140) (34.484)
Total Property Valuation  $ 4,245,902,586
Net City Wide levy 24,636,120 22,885,874 1,750,246
Uncollected Taxes at June 30, 2011 (817.110) (564.,516) (252.594)
Current Year's Taxes Collected $ 23.819,010 $ 22321358 $ 1,497,652
Current City-Wide Levy Collection Percentage 96.68% 97.53% 85.57%
Downtown Special Tax District:
Original Levy:
Property taxed at current
year’s rate $ 80,343,125 .16 $ 128,549 § 127,324  $ 1,225
Discoveries:
Current year taxes 3,125 5 - 5
Abatements and Adjustments:
Abatements (6,875) (11) - (11
Total Property Valuation $ 80,339,375
Net Downtown Special Tax
District Levy 128,543 127,324 1,219
Uncollected Taxes at June 30, 2011 (725) (570) (155)
Current Year's Taxes Collected $ 127,818 % 126,754 § 1,064

Current Downtown Special Tax District
Levy Collection Percentage 99.44% 99.55% 87.28 %







Statistical Section

This part of the City of Burlington's comprehensive annual financial
report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what
the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial
health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand

how the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the city's
most significant revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the city's current levels of outstanding debt and the city's
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the city's financial
activities take place.

Operating information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the city's financial
report relates to the services the city provides and the activities
it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is
derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant
year. The city implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2003; schedules
presenting government-wide information include information beginning in
that year.
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Schedule 1

City of Burlington, North Carolina
Net Assets by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net assets

Primary government
invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net assets
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2012

$ 44,355,341
17,287,399
54,423,395

2011

$ 42,802,718
11,376,455
60,773,388

2010

$ 39,828,855
30,330,078
43,528,565

009

———

$ 41,007,895
26,384,988
41,653,949

$ 116,066,135

$ 114,952,561

$ 113,687,498

$ 109,046,832

$ 85,748,070
35,544,241
33,404,248

$ 97,111,037
24,282,332
31,292,633

$ 109,690,950
13,188,880
28,245,081

$ 109,331,715
12,414,038
23,327,332

$ 154,696,559

$ 152,686,002

$ 151,124,911

$ 145,073,085

$ 130,103,411

$ 139,913,755

$ 149,519,805

$ 150,339,610

52,831,640 35,658,787 43,518,958 38,799,026
87,827,643 92,066,021 71,773,646 64,981,281
$ 270,762,694 $ 267638563 $ 264,812,409 $ 254,119,917




Fiscal Year
008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$ 38,362,340 $ 36,184,194 $ 35180314 $ 34,883,928 $ 35735210 $ 35401001
23,458,009 25,085,657 17,798,695 15,781,629 7,045,027 7,920,876
40,317,116 31,377,433 28,535,344 25,390,153 29,935,573 28,450,804
$102,137,465 $ 92647284 $ 81514353 $ 76,055,710 $ 72715810 §$ 71,772,681
$ 107,080,492 $ 106,829,594 $ 102,785481 $ 104,670,547 $ 91,988,311 §$ 94,599,034
10,161,377 5,917,865 4,682,220 5,658,529 12,482,476 15,468,102
22,666,013 18,172,728 17,554,426 11,936,626 14,891,537 2,957,612

$ 139,907,882

$ 130,920,187

$ 125,022,127

$ 122,165,702

$ 119,362,324

$ 113,024,748

$ 145,442,832

$ 143,013,788

$ 137,965,795

$ 139,554,475

$ 127,723,521

$ 130,000,035

33,619,386 31,003,522 22,480,215 15,781,629 19,527,503 23,388,978
62,983,129 49,550,161 46,089,770 37,326,779 44,827,110 31,408,416
$ 242,045,347 $ 223,567,471 $206536480 $ 192,662,883 § 192,078,134 $ 184,797,429
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Schedule 3 133
City of Burlington, North Carolina

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,

Last Two Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2012 2011
General Fund
Restricted
Stabilzation by State Statute $ 6,113,452 $ 6,163,934
Historic Books 1,418 1,418
Animal Shelter 562 562
Committed
Capital Reserve Fund 18,323,847 18,603,387
Assigned
Subsequent Years Expenditure 2,053,816 1,636,986
General Government 4,316,000 4,316,000
Parks and Recreation 1,321,156 1,398,269
Public Safety 5,450,000 5,450,000
Economic Development 3,000,000 -
Public Works 3,125,000 700,000
Unassigned 8,211,865 12,946,857
Total general fund 51,917,116 51,217,413
All Other Governmental Funds
Restricted
Stabilzation by State Statute 5,014
Economic Development $ 7,400,720 7,606,888
Public Safety 345,649 375,237
Committed - Capital Improvements 977,891 1,204,506
Assigned
Subsequent year's expenditures: 491,785 505,148
Unassigned (156,794) 20,114
Total all other governmental funds $ 9,059251 $ 9,716,907

Note: The schedule above is after restating fund balance per GASB 54 statement.
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Schedule 4
City of Burlington, North Carolina

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Revenues

Ad valorem taxes

Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees

Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

General government
Public safety
Public works
Economic and physical development
Culture and recreation
Debt service:
Principal
interest
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds

Transfers to component unit

Capital lease obligations issued
Certificates of participation issued
Issuance of private activity bonds (RZED)
Proceeds from bond issuance

Proceeds from instaliment purchase
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures

135
2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 247200911 $ 25084004 $ 24,852,944 $ 23944594
10,261,128 10,086,790 9,081,632 9,910,654
4,509,286 4,444,816 4,298,234 4,344,070
4,023,377 3,868,203 4,651,477 4,208,258
1,025,476 868,641 700,723 810,402
3,947,957 3,983,062 4,046,529 4,224,621
249731 189,248 301,575 1,184,744
353,006 288,747 424,952 492,277
49,090,872 49,713,601 48,358,066 49,119,620
7,713,558 8,316,294 8,238,393 8,007,500
10523967 18654343 18584573 17,527,448
8,644,203 7,962,307 6,924,894 7,688,216
1,574,410 1,619,663 1,522,589 933,595
5,812,752 5,628,193 5,498,179 5,687,867
2,691,898 2,841,286 2,793,551 2,748,834
723,597 778,504 705,857 770,893
3,148,952 4,599,040 2,948,353 3,644,647
49833337  50,399.630 47,216,389 47,009,000
(742,465) (686,029) 1,141 677 2.110,620
2,679,386 711,581 2,725,287 3,781,627
(3,092.241)  (1,024,435)  (3,741877)  (4,346,869)
- - 2,899,000 -
1,267,473 991,857 1,077,538 1,325,622
854,618 679,003 2,959,948 760,380
112,153 $ (7.006) $ 4101625 $ 2,871,000
7.3% 7.9% 7.9% 8.1%



136

Fiscal Year

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

$ 220959919 $ 22020569 $ 18993866 $ 18,524,056 $ 16685362 $ 16535835

10,425,711 9,956,747 9,194,171 8,173,551 7,511,238 6,663,570
4,492,768 4,284,884 3,745,537 3,947,053 3,773,185 3,742,948
4,816,213 4,241,322 4,352,292 4,149,194 4,004,997 4,586,002
1,428,348 1,918,985 1,341,313 734,605 564,603 525,156
3,957,048 3,673,388 3,576,218 3,324,187 3,079,077 3,053,699
2,097,076 2,273,169 1,577,263 677,657 343,577 511,832
301,892 312,095 566,928 1,048,006 1,110,576 592,959
50478975 48,681,159 43,347,588 40,578,309 37,072,615 36,212,001
7,529,925 7,774,715 7,101,680 6,310,133 6,250,019 5,502,377
17,587,449 16,130,108 15,718,644 14,972,428 13,790,378 13,150,331
8,186,747 7,158,072 6,999,791 5,660,416 6,027,469 5,882,710
817,368 722,891 1,048,340 1,275,662 817,194 755,334
5,408,875 5,525,920 6,388,082 5,966,471 5,561,503 5,136,131
2,548,160 2,688,134 1,748,916 1,629,609 1,120,916 1,177,730
838,078 874,616 753,937 630,911 766,652 786,006
7,360,677 5,713,214 471,920 439,308 2,213,199 3,832,835
50277279 46,587,670 40,231,310 36,884,938 36,547,330 36,223,454
201,696 2,093,489 3,116,278 3,693,371 525,285 (11,453)
2,407,433 2,454,576 1,845,882 2,991,440 1,938,964 2,525,911
(2,717.787)  (3,200,456)  (2,987,867)  (3,127,242)  (3,005327)  (4,710,911)

- - - - (114,381) -

- - - - - 165,000

- - - - 630,000 -

- 9,359,162 - - - -
1,664,789 277,055 1,111,695 1,063,200 - -
1.354,435 8,881,337 (30,290) 927,398 (550,744) _ (2,020,000)

$ 1556131 $ 10074826 $ 3085988 $ 4620769 $  (25459) $ (2,031,453)

7.8% 8.9% 6.6% 6.4% 55% 6.1%
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Schedule 6

City of Burlington, North Carolina

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(rate per $100 of assessed value)

City Direct Rates Overlapping Rates
General

Fiscal Basic Obligation Total Downtown Alamance
Year Rate Debt Service Direct Corp County
2012 $ 0494 3 0.0852 $0.580 $ 0160 $ 0.520
2011 0.498 0.0916 0.590 0.160 0.520
2010 0.500 0.0903 0.590 0.160 0.520
2009 0.525 0.0996 0625 0.160 0.580
2008 0.525 0.0998 0.625 0.160 0.580
2007 0.512 01134 0.625 0.160 0.575
2006 0.476 0.0791 0.555 0.160 0.563
2005 0.495 0.0596 0.555 0.160 0.510
2004 0.435 0.0650 0.500 0.160 0.520
2003 0.439 0.0608 0.500 0.160 0.500

Source: City of Burlington's Finance Department
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City of Burlington, North Carolina
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
2012 2003
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Labcorp $ 97,529,255 1 258 % $ 76878475 1 234 %
Alamance Crossing LLC 56,732,998 2 1.50
Roche 31,682,468 3 0.84
Duke Energy Corp 31,393,186 4 0.83 24562165 3 0.75
PGS Burlington, LLC 28,778649 5 0.76
Carolina Hosiery 24,360,437 6 0.64
Ethan Pointe LL.C 22,103,353 7 0.59
Huffman Mill Plaza 21,103,934 8 0.56
Koury Properties 17,602,795 9 0.47
Alamance Industrial Park 17,198,859 10 0.45
Colonial Mall 32,964,328 2 1.00
Burlington Industries 23,600,000 4 0.72
Bell South 22,036,193 5 0.70
West Point Stevens 20,952,717 6 0.65
Ameritex 10,335,481 10 0.31
Hunters Bridge Apts. 13,899,813 7 0.43
Piedmont Naturai Gas 13,050,092 8 0.41
Lowe's Home Improvement 12,128,730 9 0.37
Total $ 348,485,934 922 % $ 250,407,994 768 %

Source: City of Burlington Tax Department
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Schedule 10 142

City of Burlington, North Carolina

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(dollars in thousands, except per capita)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Percentage of
General General Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Obligation Value (1) of Per
Year Bonds Bonds Total Property Capita (2)
2012 $ 10,604,081 $ 7594520 $ 18,198,601 043 % $ 359.75
2011 11,724,945 8,817,338 20,542,283 0.48 411.15
2010 12,855,089 10,059,723 22,914,812 0.54 443.55
2009 13,979,593 11,342,853 25,322,446 0.65 497.23
2008 15,103,317 12,626,408 27,729,725 0.74 561.98
2007 16,118,945 13,903,542 30,022,487 0.84 629.51
2006 7,732,142 15,315,348 23,047,490 0.67 487.31
2005 7,970,338 16,180,387 24,150,725 0.24 517.76
2004 8,455,386 17,515,580 25,970,966 0.25 561.74
2003 8,944,785 18,866,422 27,811,207 0.27 604 .46

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements

(1) See Schedule 5 for property value data.

(2) Population data can be found in Schedule 14.
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City of Burlington, North Carolina

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit QOutstanding Applicable(a) Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
Alamance County General Obligation Debt $ 56,320,000 33.17% $ 18,678,563
Guilford County General Obligation Debt 876,530,000 10.10% 88,504,506
Other debt
Alamance County Instaliment Loans 26,092,079 3317% 8,653,454
Guilford County Authorized & Unissued Bonds 270,940,000 10.10% 27,357,205
Guilford County Limited Obligation Bonds 16,845,000 10.10% 1,700,864
Guilford County Instaliment Financing 7,653,508 10.10% 772,786
Subtotal, overlapping debt 145,667,378
City direct debt 15,638,027
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 161,305,405

Sources: Population data used to estimate applicable percentages came from the Office of State
Budget & Management.

Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.

(a) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using population figures. Applicable
percentages were estimated by dividing the City's population by the County's population.



144

‘spuoq uonebijqo jessuab Buikedal
10} apise 198 sjunotue Aq 1980 oq Aew uoneiwi 8y} 0} 103fans 199p uonebyqo jeiouab ay) ‘mej Ag “anjea Auadoud passasse |elo) jo
jussiad g pasoXs 10U PINoYS Jgep uonebigo jeieuab Buipuelsino A0 Byl 'Y j0U0D R 18Bpng je007] BUHOIED YHON 18pUN 8JON

nwi) 1gop jo ebejusosad e se

VA4 %00'G %258 %L0'6 %8104 %ye L %SGL'Y V4% %Z8'G %LG°G Jwy ay) 0} sjqesydde 1g8p jeu jelo )
LYY PZE § ©£99°000'p2C § JVIGPOOLE $ L/8'PIGVEC §  6V8 1££'692 $ 68COVY LGZ $ 0/629¥2928 066'/€2°.62$% 010'691'0SC $ Z0¥'€6S 162 $ uiBiew 1gop [ebs
160'881°G1 2€9'890°L1 82.'068'82 G61'88€'82 660125 0€ 9ee‘118'2¢e Ge0'sL0cl 602'2¢6'ClL 9y8'06¥'Gl 292'0v8'vL ywy o} siqedydde jgap 18U |ejo |
102'2/9'68€ $ GBZ'SELIVE $ GL¥'9E6'8EE  $ 2/0'€96'CiE $ 8V6'G68'662 $ G2.'/52'v8Z $ CGOO'EPSG'GLZS 66L°0LL'1LZS 968'619'G9Z $ 699'CEY'99T HIVTRIvE 6]

Zi0Z 1102 0102 6002 8002 002 9002 S00¢ ¥00Z £002
0LL'¥8Y'¥2E uibrew jgop jebo
160'881'S1L Jwi| o} sjgedidde 1gap 18U [ejo ]
£€1'919'8Y SpUOg 19Mag pue JBJBAA 1SS
0£Z'v08'c9 198 ssoli9 [ejo |
66.'250'2 sjuswaalby Buoueul4 asea
€19'120'ty SpUOY SNUBASY

- uoiiediiled JO 91BOYINaD
FRN AR spuog ANAIOY 8jeAld
109'861'81 {gaQ pepuog [ejo |
199(] $5019)
102'229'6€¢€ (snjen passasse Jo %8) Hwi 1990

986°206'SYZ'Y

Auadoud ajgexe} Jo anjeA passassy
leo ) |eodsid Joj uonenajes uibiep 1qeq (eba

{spuesnoyj} ul sie|jop)

SiBAA |BDSI4 UB] 1seT]

uonewopu| uibiey 19aq |eba
eujjosed yuoN ‘uoibuiping jo Ao
Zl 8npayds



145

'SJUBWBIE]S BIOUBUI B} O} SSJ0U B} Ul punoy aq ued jqap Buipuessino s Ao ay) Buipsebal sjielaq
‘sasuadxa UoljEZILOWE JO ‘uoneioaidap ‘1saajul apnjoul Jou op sasuadxs Bunesedo 180N

"1 1,0Z J0 1snBny ul epew sem juswAed jsiy 8y} ‘| 1/0€/9 Jeak [edsy ul apew s1em sjuswied jgep oN (Z)

‘01,02 40 Jaquiaoa( Ul 000'00.'0L$ O Junowe ay} Ul gL 0Z SOUaS ‘'spuod anuaasy wajsAg astidisjug pauiquiod

pue 000'6Z8'L 1 $ J0 Junolwe ay} ul Y0102 $dLLs ‘spuoq anuaAsy Emuw\nm asudisjug paulquo) panssi Ao syt (1)

- - - ¥G1'286'9 £66'GZ8'vl L1'808°LT 1102
0L€ $ 69¥'20e’L ¢ 000096 ¢ Pre'v00'L $ 066'G8EVL $ ¥68'68€'LC $ 2102
abelano) ICEIE jedioutid anusAsy sasuadx3 sabieyn JBBA
(2) @ouss 198d ajqejieAy Buneiedo B0IAIBS |BOSIA

1oN 'SS97 AN

(1) spuog snuansy Jemag % 191N

(spuesnoyy ui siejjop)

Jea) |eosi4 om] iseT]

abeianon anuanay-pabpold
euljosed yyoN ‘uojbulling jo A19
€l 9Inpayos



146
Schedule 14

City of Burlington, North Carolina
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Alamance
Alamance County
County Per Capita
Population Personal Personal School Unemployment
Year Estimates (1) income (2) income (2) Enroliment (3) Rate (4)
2012 50,587 ** > 22,531 10.1%
2011 49,963 * * 22,451 10.0%
2010 51,662 4,655,074 30,720 22,384 11.7%
2009 50,927 4,611,574 30,671 22,304 9.3%
2008 49,343 4,659,254 31,501 22,260 5.2%
2007 47,692 4,282,107 29,675 22,202 5.3%
2006 47,295 4,012,634 28,265 21,772 5.9%
2005 46,645 3,863,435 27,551 21,614 5.9%
2004 46,233 3,740,467 27,016 21,638 6.7%
2003 46,010 3,556,329 26,030 21,366 7.6%

* Not available until April, 2013
** Not available until April, 2014

Sources:

(1) U.S. Census Bureau

(2) U. S. Department of Commerce - Bureau of Economic Analysis
(3) N. C. Department of Public Instruction

(4) U.S. Department of Labor - Bureau of Labor Statistics
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Schedule 16

City of Burlington, North Carolina
Fuli-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program
Last Seven Fiscal Years

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Function/Program
General government

Administration/Public Information 3 3 3 3 3

Customer Service/Coliections 18 19 16 19 19 18 18

Finance 13 14 13 14 13 13 12

information Technology 6 6 6 6 6 7 8

Legal 1 2 2 2 2 2 2

Human Resources 6 6 5 4 5 5 5

Planning 14 14 11 11 10 9

Inspections 9 9 10 11 14 13 13

Engineering/Traffic Control 14 14 18 17 8 18 17
Police

Sworn Officers 122 124 115 112 106 105 112

Civilians 41 41 40 42 40 43 40
Fire

Firefighter and officers 88 88 87 88 89 90 90

Civilians 1 1 1 1 2 2 2
Public Works

Administration 4 3 2 2 2 2 3

Maintenance 24 24 22 23 24 22 23

Street 22 23 23 24 24 23 23

Cemetery 14 16 16 16 13 14 13

Sanitation 17 21 21 22 23 21 23
Recreation 42 43 42 41 44 45 42
Water and Sewer 88 86 84 87 84 86 83

Source: Full-time Equivalent Employee information was provided by the City of Burlington's
payroll system that was installed in June of 2006. Only seven years of data were available.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Burlington

Burlington, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund and the aggregated remaining fund information of the City of Burlington, North Carolina,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprises the City of
Burlington's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 19,
2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the City of Burlington is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered
the City of Burlington's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Burlington’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that we consider material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Burlington’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City of Burlington, in a separate letter
dated October 19, 2012.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity,
members of City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specific parties.

Stour Suset M%owea £ Ko, LLP

October 19, 2012
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

To The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Burlington

Burlington, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the City of Burlington, North Carolina, compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in
North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the City of Burlington’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2012. The City of Burlington's major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City of Burlington’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Burlington’s compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB
Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City of Burlington’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Qur audit does not provide a legal
determination on the City of Burlington’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Burlington complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Burlington is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the City of Burlington’s internal control over compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over compliance.




A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider {0 be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity,
members of City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specific parties.

Stour Srueet M %pwen € Ko UP

October 19, 2012
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
STATE PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE
AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

To The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Burlington

Burlington, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited City of Burlington, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina,
issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The City of Burlington’s
major State program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major State program is the
responsibility of the City of Burlington’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the City of Burlington’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, as described in the Audit Manual for
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.
Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Burlington’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination on the City of Burlington’s compliance with those
requirements.

in our opinion, the City of Burlington complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
State program for the year ended June 30, 2012.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Burlington is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to State programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the City of Burlington’s internal control over compliance with the requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program in order to
determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance with applicable
sections of OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control over compliance.




A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity,

members of City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specific parties.

Stour SuseT M%owea £ K06, LLP

October 19, 2012
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Section |. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes

Significant Deficiency(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses Yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted Yes
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness{es) identified? Yes

Significant Deficiency(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses Yes

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of
Circular A-133 Yes

ldentification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster
14.218 Community Development Block Grant
14.239 HOME Investment Partnership Program
16.005 Federal Asset Forfeiture Funds

Dollar threshold used to disntinguish between Type A and
Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes

Unqualified

Unqualified

No

None Reported

No

No

None Reported

No

No



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

158

Section |. Summary of Auditor's Results

State Awards
Internal control over major State programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes

Significant Deficiency(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses Yes

X No

X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major State programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with State Single Audit
Implementation Act Yes

Unqualified

Identification of major State program:

Program Name

Powell Bill

Section |I. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section . Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Section V. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

None



CITY OF BURLINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

160

Federal
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA
Grantor/Program Title Number

Federal Grants:
Cash Programs:

U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development Direct Program:
Community Development
Block Grant - Entitlement Grant 14.218

Passed-through Greensboro Consortium:
Home Investment Partnership
Program 14.239

Passed-through N.C. Housing Financing Agency:
Stewart B. McKinney Homeless
Assistance Act 14.000

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Program:
Office of Justice:

Federal Asset Forfeiture Funds 16.005
Office of Community Oriented Policing
Services:
Public Safety Partnership and
Community Policing Grant 16.710

Passed-through North Carolina Department
Of Crime Control and Public Safety:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice
Assistance Grant 16.738

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed-through North Carolina
Department of Transportation:

Highway Planning and

Construction Grant 20.205
Federal Transit Metropolitan
Planning Grants 20.505

U.S. Department of Energy
Direct Programs:
ARRA -- Energy Efficiency and
Conservation Block Grant 81.128

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed-through North Carolina Division of
Emergency Management:
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042

Total assistance - federal programs

Federal
(Direct and
Pass Through)
Expenditures

State Local
Expenditures Expenditures

$530,268

384,851

65,000

389,170

271,005

69,293

256,829

13,800

52,621

79.641

1,725 50,379

2112478

1.725 50,379

Continued on next page.
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Grantor/Pass-through
Grantor/Program Title

State Grants:
Cash Assistance:

N.C. Department of Transportation:
Powell Bill

N.C. Department of Environment and
Natural Resources:
Community Waste Reduction and
Recycling Grant

Piedmont Triad Council of
Governments:
Division of Aging

N.C. Department of Health and
Human Services:
Get Alarmed Grant

Total assistance - State programs

Total assistance

Federal
CFDA
Number

Federal
(Direct and
Pass Through) State

Local

Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures

1,381,697

21,147

13,954

1.000

- 1.417.798

$ 2112478 $ 1419523 $

50,379

Notes io the Schedule of Expenditures Federal and State Financial Awards:

1. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State grant activity
of the City of Burlington and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local

Therefore, some

Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.

amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic

financial statements.
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